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MAIN OPERATIONAL STRUCTURE
TEXBRE

As at 27 March 2025
RZF-—AF=A=++H

Machinery Manufacturing

o Business
BB S T

Machinery Leasing
Business

RN S

Cosmos Machinery

. . Plastic Products Processing
Enterprises Limited

and Manufacturing Business

REEWMEERR QT SEVRR T REEEYS
Industrial Consumables
N Trading Business
TEHEHEMZEZER
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Manufacturing of Injection Molding Machines

W BUERT

Manufacturing of Extrusion Lines,
Rubber Injection Molding Machines
and Hydraulic Press

B - BT AEL M SO B 2 BUERTS

WELLTEL
Donghua Machinery Ltd.
RERWERAA
(Dongguan, the PRC 1] + 825)

WELLTEL
Cosmos Machinery Technology (Jiangsu) Co., Ltd.
REERE(IE) AR AR
(Jiangsu, the PRC &l + JL#)

DEKUMO

Dekuma Rubber and Plastic Technology (Dongguan) Limited
ERIEGRER (R) AR AF]
(Dongguan, the PRC A © %)

Processing of Plastic Food Packaging
RMZEHBEZNT X

Processing of Plastic Components
for Home Appliances

KEZHEEM ZINTEY

Manufacturing of
Mannequins and Display Items

AR MR B 2 BUEET

Note:

For identification purposes only

The details of the shareholding of each subsidiary held by the
Company or its subsidiaries, please refer to note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Huixin Leasing (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.*
DN
(Shenzhen, the PRC FED + F3Il)

Karmay Plastic Products (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd.*
EEERERINE)BRAT E
(Zhuhai, the PRC A » Zk/8)

Cosmos Grand Plastics Co., Ltd.
BIRRRBHEEBRAF %auﬂ%
(Hefei, the PRC ':F‘ ’ /E.\HE) COSHOS PLASTICS

Dongguan Cosmos Plastic Products Co., Ltd.*

%Kﬁﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ@ﬂ# lx Posh 1
(Dongguan, the PRC B + E2%) Pt

Melco Industrial Supplies Company Limited "'
FamLEBMERDE #
(Hong Kong &) o 1971

Guangzhou Melcandustrial Supplies Co., Ltd.
BMNmERIEEMERAHE
(GUangZhOU, the PRC ':P ’ J%J‘N) Since 1971

&

Melco Industrial Supplies (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.*
EaLERM(EBERAT
(Shanghai, the PRC EP ’ J:/) Since 1971
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERH|E

Looking back on this year, the business environment has been full
of challenges, and the international political situation has become
increasingly complex. The Russia-Ukraine conflict continued to
escalate, the Israel-Palestine conflict has intensified, global supply
chains have been repeatedly disrupted, energy and raw material
prices have remained volatile, international exchange rates have
fluctuated unpredictably, inflation rates have proven difficult
to stabilize, and interest rates have remained high. The global
economy continues to be stagnant.

The United States has maintained its decoupling policy toward
China, the trend of the “China + N” industry shift has continued,
and the real estate market in Mainland China has remained
weak, leading to sluggish demand in the Chinese market,
excess capacity in numerous industries, and a lack of investment
sentiment. In the face of intense market competition, industry
peers have adopted price reduction strategies to secure orders,
putting pressure on the Group’s operating profit.

The Group adopts a proactive attitude to navigate the challenging
operating environment. Our businesses have focused on specific
niche markets and customer needs driven by research and
development and innovation while delivering new products to the
market with continuous improvements in product performance,
advocacy of lean manufacturing and strict quality control. We
also provide producer services to help customers increase their
productivity and competitiveness.

For sales and marketing, our subsidiaries have actively
participated domestic and international exhibitions and
increased visits for direct interactions with our overseas agents
and customers. This has allowed us to gain a more accurate
understanding of customer needs and market demands enabling
us to upgrade product performance and service levels.

The Group has continued to comprehensively advance digital
management and activated a fully automated smart warehouse
system to improve overall management efficiency. Moreover, we
have fostered a culture of continuous learning and capability
enhancement among all employees to better respond to evolving
challenges. We remain committed to recruiting dynamic and
creative young technical talents to benefit from their forward
thinking and innovative insights, further strengthening our
competitive edge in the market. These initiatives not only bolster
our business strength but also serve as strategic workforce
investments for our future development, guiding us steadily
forward in the rapidly changing business environment.

The Group's overall operating expenses for the year have

increased, attributed to necessary investments aimed at
proactively addressing challenges.
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Regarding the processing and trading of printed circuit boards
("PCB") business (the "PCB Business"), given that it lacked
elements of technical innovation and synergy with the Group’s
other business segments, the disposal of our shareholdings in this
business was successfully completed during the year, optimizing
our financial portfolio.

Amid fierce market competition, the Group’s business
performance, excluding the PCB trading business, fluctuated,
experiencing both upward and downward trends. The overall
results maintained profitability, although they may fall short of
anticipated levels.

Looking ahead to the coming year, the business environment
remains challenging and unpredictable. Under the “Trump 2.0"
administration in the United States, international relations are
becoming increasingly complex and unforeseeable, particularly
regarding the implications of reconciliation efforts in both the
Russia-Ukraine and Israel-Palestine conflicts, which will lead
to changes in international relations that are not optimistic.
Meanwhile, the United States’ tariff policy is likely to escalate
international economic turmoil. The United States is also likely to
continue and intensify its political, economic, and technological
containment of China, and it is expected that the current
U.S. government will introduce more stringent measures, the
outcomes of which remain uncertain.

Our team is fully prepared for the difficult operating environment
ahead. We adhere to a proactive approach and advancement in
research and development, in response to the national initiative
for new quality productive forces. In all aspects of operations,
production and product design, we continuously enhance
operational management and quality in lean manufacturing
to comply with environmental requirements. We improve our
competitiveness to respond to adversity by proactively delivering
producer services, further developing in new markets and
maintaining stable cash flow.

In March 2025, the “Report on the Work of the Government”
released at the third session of the 14th National People's
Congress clearly outlined the overall requirements and policy
directions for economic and social development, as well as
the government's work tasks. These measures are proactive,
comprehensive and pragmatic, aimed at effectively boosting the
development of new quality productivity. This undoubtedly serves
as a positive new driving force for promoting the sustained
recovery and improvement of the economy in Mainland China,
and it is also a valuable opportunity and favorable condition for
our team to strive for performance enhancement.

I would like to offer my heartfelt congratulations to our team
which has continued to make progress under challenging
conditions, their improvement is crucial to enhancing the Group’s
competitiveness. Meanwhile, | would like to extend my sincere
appreciation to all Directors for their suggestions, advice, and
support.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEWL R D

RESULTS SUMMARY EXERE
2024 2023
—E-mE T =4
HK$°000 HK$'000 Change
F# T FHEIT =
(Restated)
(&&E5)
Continuing operations FEREER
Revenue PN 1,865,354 1,723,747 +8.2%
Gross profit E A 344,921 332,558 +3.7%
Operating profit £ T 27,914 36,053 -22.6%
Profit for the year F 25 A 11,063 21,698 -49.0%
Discontinued operation DRIEREER
Profit/(loss) for the year FENA, (EE) 7,690 (81,213) N/A 7~ 3 FB
FINANCIAL RESULTS - CONTINUING OPERATIONS TIEHE - FRESEEK
Revenue I'®N

The revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024
was approximately HK$1,865,354,000 (2023: approximately
HK$1,723,747,000), an increase of 8.2% as compared with last
year, which was mainly due to the significant increase in revenue
of the machinery manufacturing business and plastic products
processing and manufacturing business.

Gross profit

For the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, the gross
profit of the Group amounted to approximately HK$344,921,000
and HK$332,558,000 with gross profit margin of 18.5% and
19.3%, respectively. Intensified industry competition caused the
Group's gross profit margin to decline as compared with last year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Other income, gain and loss

The net of other income, gain and loss of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2024 was approximately HK$35,180,000
(2023: approximately HK$16,212,000), an increase of 117.0%
as compared with last year, which was mainly due to an increase
in government grants and the positive impact of currency
fluctuations during the year. The Group recorded a net exchange
gain of approximately HK$8,466,000 for the year ended 31
December 2024 (2023: net exchange loss of approximately
HK$3,525,000).

Selling and distribution costs

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the selling
and distribution costs of the Group was approximately
HK$179,088,000 (2023: approximately HK$155,498,000), and
the selling and distribution costs to revenue was approximately
9.6% (2023: approximately 9.0%). The increase in selling and
distribution costs was mainly due to increased selling expenses in
oversea market expansion.

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2024 was approximately HK$173,099,000 (2023:
approximately HK$157,219,000), an increase of 11.4% as
compared with last year due to rising staff costs.

Finance costs

The finance costs of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2024 was approximately HK$13,838,000 (2023: approximately
HK$14,922,000), a decrease of 7.3% as compared with last year
due to the repayment of part of the bank borrowings during the
year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEEWLR D (&)

BUSINESS REVIEW
Machinery Manufacturing Business

Surrounded by a complex and volatile global economic
environment and intensifying market competition, sales and
orders in the injection molding machine (“IMM") manufacturing
business have both increased compared to last year, especially
in the first quarter. However, since the second quarter, this
business has faced three major challenges in the domestic
market: declining demand, weakening investment sentiment
and intensified industry competition, all of which have impacted
order growth. Despite these pressures and challenges, including
a continuous downturn in the real estate market, excess capacity
across various industries and tightening domestic consumer
spending, this business has experienced growth in sales and
orders, though it has not yet reached anticipated levels. A critical
factor affecting profitability has been the escalating price wars
among industry peers. The export business has remained stable
compared to last year, despite geopolitical factors leading to
weak economic recovery in specific regions and fluctuations in
exchange rates.

This year, this business has continued to invest in various research
and development projects, and optimization initiatives, including
the optimized standard IMM (SeKlll series), the high-end precision
energy-saving IMM (Se5H series), the Polyethylene Terephthalate
(PET) high-speed solution series, and the optimization and
upgrade of the two-platen IMM (JSelll series). These initiatives
focus on adapting to market demands to enhance product
competitiveness. Throughout the year, sales revenue has been
primarily driven by small and medium-sized IMMs, particularly
the SeKIll/S, Selll, and PET series. The high-end energy-saving
IMMs, Se5 and Seb5H series, introduced last year and this year,
respectively, have also performed well. Industry applications in
daily necessities, household appliances and PET preform industries
have recorded growth, with the PET preform industry maintaining
momentum from last year. The ultra-large two-platen IMM (JSell
series) has benefited from stable demand in the household
appliances industry. Benefitting on market development efforts
over the past two years, electric IMMs (D and HD series) have
secured significant orders in the new energy automotive and
medical industries since the third quarter. The launch of our first
ultra-large electric IMM (1100HD) has further laid the foundation
for demand in the large electric machine market.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Moreover, this business has actively promoted corporate digital
transformation by comprehensively deploying and integrating
various system modules, including Supplier Relationship
Management (SRM), Warehouse Management System (WMS),
Customer Relationship Management (CRM), and Product Lifecycle
Management (PLM), based on existing digital systems, and
upgrading Manufacturing Execution System (MES) modules. These
upgrades are expected to be fully operational at the beginning of
next year, further enhancing production management efficiency
and quality tracking capabilities. Meanwhile, the launch of
the fully automated smart warehouse system will significantly
improve site utilization, reduce labour costs, and increase the
accuracy and efficiency of material management. Furthermore,
this business has continuously recruited and trained young talent
to prepare for future needs and support long-term development.

In the face of an uncertain market and political environment in
the coming year, this business will remain steadfastly focused
on market and customer needs. We strive to maintain growth,
enhance efficiency, stabilize quality, and reduce costs while
continuously pursuing dual-track growth in our business. In
the standard machine market, the updated and optimized
SeKlll, JSelll, and Se5 series are expected to gradually expand
their market share in this highly competitive environment.
For specialized niche markets, this business is committed to
promoting dedicated machine solutions. The PET and high-
speed energy-saving (Sec series) solutions target the packaging
industry, while the polypropylene (PP) solution series focuses on
the medical packaging industry. Additionally, the electric IMMs
(D and HD series) and two-platen IMMs (JSelll series) aim at the
consumer electronics, electric vehicles, and household appliances
industries. We will actively participate in regional industry
exhibitions and technical forums, continue to plan regional
marketing and show rooms, and persistently expand our overseas
market presence, to enhance brand influence.

Furthermore, management will implement a series of efficiency
enhancement and cost reduction measures to boost per capita
output and reduce material costs. We will launch an enterprise
intelligent collaboration platform to improve management
efficiency and streamline processes, thereby enhancing the
profitability of this business. We will continue to invest in
technical research and development, including the optimization
and cost-reduction efforts, as well as the implementation of
industry project systems that combine technology and sales
initiated this year. This aims to stimulate the enthusiasm and
initiative of the technical team in developing and promoting
industry projects. For talent development, we will focus on
recruiting engineering research and development and frontline
sales teams. At the same time, training programs will emphasize
comprehensive technical expertise, management skills, quality
control, and process optimization.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEEWLR D (&)

Despite facing challenges such as weak demand in the overall
machinery market in Mainland China and intense price
competition, the extrusion lines, rubber injection molding
machines and hydraulic presses manufacturing business achieved
considerable sales growth this year. Our three main product lines
recorded growth, with extrusion lines showing a particularly
significant increase. In recent years, this business has revolved
around a market strategy focused on specialized machines
for niche applications, striving to improve product quality and
gradually establishing a strong brand presence in selected niche
markets, thereby gaining a favorable reputation. Meanwhile,
we have placed greater emphasis on export markets, increasing
investment in brand promotion and on-site customer visits, which
lays a solid foundation for future export business growth.

This year, this business has benefited from its focus on innovation
and demand in niche markets. Our solutions for insulator rubber
and plastic injection molding machines, fully automatic hydraulic
press systems for automotive braking, and extrusion production
lines for electric vehicle oil pipelines have become our best-selling
products.

In the coming year, our research and development team will
concentrate on enhancing the unique design advantages of our
products. Combined with overseas market brand promotion and
business expansion efforts, we aim to drive rapid growth in key
products that already possess a significant competitive edge,
such as rubber track machines and automotive pipeline extrusion
production lines. At the same time, we will pay more attention to
continuously improving the reliability and stability of our products
and will engage experts for on-site evaluation to enhance
the quantitative assessment of product reliability, thereby
strengthening the market competitiveness of our products.
Furthermore, the upcoming implementation of a new digital
management system will improve management and production
efficiency.

Machinery Leasing Business

Amid the ongoing economic downturn and intensified industry
competition, the machinery leasing business has adopted a
stringent risk control strategy by strictly screening customers to
reduce overall leasing exposure. Given the uncertain recovery of
China’s manufacturing industry in the coming year and increasing
industry competition, we will maintain a cautious approach and
prioritize financial risk management.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Plastic Products Processing and Manufacturing Business

Sales and profits of the plastic processing plant for food
packaging in Zhuhai have decreased compared to last year. The
sales to a major customer, a market leader in dairy products
industry in Mainland China, were impacted by the slowdown in
consumer spending and the declining birth rates. Other market
segments, such as health products and adult milk powder, also
faced increased competition due to the influx of new brands,
leading to a reduction in customers’ original market shares. Fierce
price competition among dairy producers has also compressed
our profitability. Overall, the performance of the export business
remained flat compared to last year.

The promotion channels for this business have gradually shifted
from a single traditional approach to a multi-channel strategy,
combining online and offline methods, which has shown initial
success. We have developed new customers across various
countries and regions this year. Additionally, we have focused on
research and development of new technologies and increased
investment in new mold product development, tailoring our
product solutions to meet the unique needs of different
customers and striving to accurately match diverse market
demands.

This business continues to focus on production efficiency and
on-site quality management to ensure the delivery of high-
quality products to our customers. We prioritize comprehensive
quality production in all our operations. Key initiatives for on-site
quality management include strengthening the maintenance of
machinery and equipment to ensure stable production, upgrading
visual inspection configurations, and deploying automated
equipment to enhance production capacity as needed.

A seamless data flow has been created by integrating our self-
developed production intelligence system, "iSee 4.0," with the
Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system, laying the foundation
for intelligent production and management. Moving forward, this
business will continue to advance the digitalization of operational
management, preparing for efficient management of both the
northern and southern plants.

The opening of the new factory in Northern China has been
delayed due to the industrial park’s construction being behind
schedule. Currently, the site is expected to be delivered in the
first half of 2025. The completion of fixed decoration and
equipment installation is planned for the second half of that year,
with production gradually commencing in the first half of 2026.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEEWLR D (&)

Looking ahead, this business is committed to maintaining
competitive product pricing while ensuring high-quality
assurances to meet our customers’ innovative development
needs. We will continue to expand into diverse markets, including
dairy products, health products, food, and pet supplies through
multiple channels. Our commitment to green development will
guide us in integrating sustainable practices into our production
and design processes. At the same time, we will enhance team
collaboration and efficiency through the ongoing implementation
of digital management software.

The plastic component processing plant for household appliances
in Hefei has recorded a slight increase in sales but a decrease
in profits compared to last year. As domestic demand for
household appliances in Mainland China has reached saturation
in recent years, industry competition has remained fierce and
price wars among peers have become the norm. To cope with
this severe market environment, this business remains committed
to improving product quality, automation, and intelligence, as
well as deepening lean production management to ensure that
production efficiency surpasses that of other industry peers.

In the first half of this year, this business successfully launched
a new ERP system, achieving digital management of the
production process and significantly improving the accuracy of
material management and the rationality of labour allocation.
This not only enhances machine utilization but also effectively
reduces the product defect rate. As a result, overall inventory has
reached a satisfactory level. In the second half of the year, the
national stimulus policy of “trade-in” for household appliance
along with the annual export growth of Chinese household
appliances manufacturers, has helped us maintain a high volume
of orders and successfully secure new projects with higher export
specifications that require higher quality standards. Additionally,
we developed a non-spraying process for Acrylonitrile Butadiene
Styrene (ABS) materials that mimics a metallic surface, meeting
customers’ high-end product appearance requirements while
eliminating the polluting and costly spraying process.

In the coming year, this business will continue to further enhance
intelligent production, to reduce labour costs, handle diverse
customer orders, shorten delivery times, and ensure quality
standards that allow for inspection-free production. Under
the anticipated economic downturn, the management team
will actively track customers’ new product plans and progress,
including participating in technical development, providing
quality solutions, and precisely controlling costs, to maintain
steady order growth.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

The blow molded mannequins production plant in Dongguan has
recorded significant growth in sales and profits. This business
has consistently focused on the niche market of environmentally
friendly blow molded display mannequins over the years. We
have earned the trust and support of our customers by offering
high-quality products with advanced production techniques and
a fast “concept-to-production” lead time, thereby enhancing our
reputation and brand awareness. This year, we have developed
several new customers, including well-known sporting apparel
and fashion brands from various regions, laying a foundation for
diversified and balanced development in the future. Furthermore,
one of our major customers, a global sporting goods brand
and retail chain, has commenced its global store upgrade plan
early this year. We realized the processes from concept to mold
sampling to mass production within a very short timeframe,
resulting in record-high shipment volumes. Other customers, such
as world-famous sports brands, were satisfied with our quality
and responsiveness following our cooperation last year, leading
to a significant increase in order intake this year.

Given the current strong growth momentum, this business will
continue to invest in the development of low-carbon emission
materials and innovative processes. Many leading global sports
goods and fashion brands are clearly pursuing their commitment
to using environmentally friendly and low-carbon materials
in production. We have entered into a long-term cooperation
agreement with an official materials research institute in Hong
Kong, to co-develop plastic-reducing and low-carbon materials
and associated processes. The Group will support this business
in increasing capacity investments through various schemes, to
achieve long-term sustainable development.

PCB Trading Business

The PCB trading business recorded comparable results in the first
half of this year compared to the same period last year. However,
it lacks further development prospects given its simple business
model and low barriers to entry, and there is no synergy between
this business and the other segments of the Group. Accordingly,
the Group has determined that the PCB business will no longer
be our core business going forward and resources of the Group
will be focused on other segments with more potential for
positive cash flow, thereby enhancing the Group’'s financial
position. On 10 July 2024, the Group agreed to sell 52% of
the total number of issued shares of the Target Company at a
consideration of HK$52,993,165 to the Purchaser. On 21 August
2024, the conditions under the Sale and Purchase Agreement
were fulfilled and the completion of the Disposal took place.
For details of the Disposal, please refer to the circular and the
announcement of the Company both dated 21 August 2024 (the
“Circular and Announcement in relation to the Disposal of PCB
Trading Business”). Unless otherwise specified, capitalised terms
used in this annual report shall have the same meanings as those
defined in the Circular and Announcement in relation to the
Disposal of PCB Trading Business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEEWLR D (&)

Industrial Consumables Trading Business

The industrial consumables trading business recorded slight
growth in both sales and profits despite the complex and
volatile business environment. This year, overall consumption in
Mainland China remained weak, the real estate market continued
to slump, and a reduction in export orders along with their
relocation to other countries, has led to sluggish demand in many
manufacturing industries. Intense price competition across various
industries has impacted order volumes and profits. We recorded a
significant decrease in orders in the machinery, solar equipment,
lithium battery equipment, semi-conductor, consumer electronics
and elevator industries, especially in the first half of the year.
However, the government has released consumption stimulus
policies and measures to boost financial market confidence in
the second half of the year. Along with our team’s proactive
actions, we successfully seized opportunities, and our business
performance improved accordingly. Industries such as household
appliances, new energy vehicles, gasoline vehicles, lithium
battery equipment, industrial robots, and semi-conductors have
shown a notable rebound, driving the recovery in sales of servo
transmission system components and precision steel products.
Demand from high-end medical supplies customers has remained
relatively stable throughout the year, promoting steady growth in
our imports of specialized steel and metal wire products.

Our sales office and warehouse in Vietnam are now operational,
enabling us to provide local supply and services to key customers.
We will allocate resources to actively explore new customers and
secure orders throughout Southeast Asia.

In an environment where opportunities and risks coexist, this
business has adopted appropriate countermeasures for specific
industries. For example, our team has prudently managed
shipments and reduced financial exposure, to mitigate the short-
term financial risks associated with the longer payment cycles of
renewable energy equipment customers. As a result, the accounts
receivable risk from these customers has decreased compared to
last year.

This year, we have successfully identified and initiated several
new supply sources and products, further enriching the variety
and quality of our drive and control component offerings.
Moving forward, we will continue to explore and attempt to
develop new products and brands, aiming to seize opportunities
flexibly in a volatile and competitive market. The outlook for the
manufacturing market in Mainland China in the coming year
remains uncertain. The ongoing Sino-US tensions show no signs
of abating, and the tariff trade war continues to spread globally,
leading to economic and financial risks and resulting in unstable
domestic and international industrial demand. Meanwhile, price
competition within the industry is expected to intensify. This
business will rigorously manage financial risks while actively
planning more technologically advanced product solutions to
address the challenges posed by product homogenization.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Subsequent Events

There is no material event after the end of the reporting period.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s total outstanding bank
borrowings amounted to approximately HK$115,259,000
(31 December 2023: approximately HK$234,598,000), which
comprised mainly bank loans and trade finance facilities. The
bank borrowings repayable within one year, in the first to second
year and in the second to fifth year amounted to approximately
HK$106,759,000, HK$2,032,000 and HK$6,468,000, respectively
(31 December 2023: approximately HK$229,358,000,
HK$1,600,000 and HK$3,640,000, respectively).

After including lease liabilities of approximately HK$11,703,000
(31 December 2023: approximately HK$8,923,000) and
deducting cash and bank balances of approximately
HK$519,030,000 (31 December 2023: approximately
HK$660,468,000), the Group’'s net cash amounted to
approximately HK$392,068,000 (31 December 2023:
approximately HK$416,947,000). Total equity attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company as at 31 December 2024
was approximately HK$1,241,637,000 (31 December 2023:
approximately HK$1,271,722,000).

The gearing ratio of the Group is measured as a total of bank
indebtedness and lease liabilities less cash and bank balances
divided by net assets. The Group had a net cash position as at
31 December 2024 and 2023. As a result, no gearing ratio was
presented.

The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars. The Group carried out its business
transactions mainly in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi, United
States dollars and Japanese Yen. As the Hong Kong dollar
remained pegged to the United States dollar, there was no
material exchange risk in this aspect. The Group continues
monitoring its foreign exchange exposure in Japanese Yen and
Renminbi, and enters into forward contracts when necessary. The
Group's long-term bank loans were denominated mainly in Hong
Kong dollars and carried interest at floating rates. Credit risk was
hedged mainly through credit insurance.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEEmLR D (&)

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

On 27 May 2024, Purchaser Il has settled the Final Instalment
in full, and all transactions under the Disposals have been
completed in accordance with the MOU, the Sale and Purchase
Agreement |, the Sale and Purchase Agreement Il and the
Confirmation. Following Completion, the Company ceased to
have any interest in the GB Subsidiaries. Accordingly, the GB
Subsidiaries ceased to be indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Company and their financial results, assets and liabilities
were no longer be consolidated in the Group's consolidated
financial statements. Details were set out in the circular of the
Company dated 24 November 2023 and the announcement
of the Company dated 29 April 2024 and 27 May 2024 (the
“Circular and Announcements in relation to the Disposal of PCB
Processing Business”). Unless otherwise specified, capitalised
terms used in this annual report shall have the same meanings as
those defined in the Circular and Announcements in relation to
the Disposal of PCB Processing Business.

Save as disposal of PCB trading business disclosed in the heading
of “Business Review"” of this section and save as above, there
was no other material acquisition and disposal by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2024.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There was no change in the total number of issued Shares for
the year ended 31 December 2024. The total number of issued
Shares remained at 861,930,692 shares as at 31 December 2024.

EMPLOYEES, REMUNERATION POLICY AND
TRAINING SCHEME

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had a total of 1,743
employees (31 December 2023: 1,717) located in Hong Kong and
Mainland China, the ratio of women to men (excluding Directors)
in the workforce was 29:71. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
gender diversity for industrial business segment in which the
Group operates may be less relevant due to the nature of work.
However, the Group still managed to promote appropriate gender
balance.

The Group have formulated talent development plan, which
an approach to diversity concentrates on talent acquisition,
progression and retention, in delivering a more diverse
representation and endeavor to provide equal opportunity in
recruitment, career development, promotion, reward and training
to all employees.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

The Group has formulated the remuneration policy of
employees. The remuneration of employees is based on their
qualifications, competence and performance as well as market
trends. Employees’ benefits include retirement benefits, medical
insurance coverage, and various leave entitlements. The Group
reviews the overall remuneration packages, including an element
of discretionary bonuses, annually.

The emoluments of the Directors are determined by the Board
based on the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee
with reference to individual performance, qualifications and
experience of the Directors, the duties and responsibilities of
the Directors in the Company, the Group’s performance and
profitability, remuneration benchmark in the industry and
prevailing market condition.

The Group had provided training programmes or courses for
employees of the Group, including employees at all levels from
different departments in Mainland China and Hong Kong, and
also for Directors, respectively, so as to further enhance their
technical skills, professional skills and knowledge in production,
operation and management.

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS

As we step into 2025, the Group anticipates a year filled with
both challenges and opportunities. The business landscape
continues to be marked by high levels of uncertainty and
complexity. However, in Mainland China, the macro-economic
outlook appears more encouraging than in 2024, largely due to
a series of stimulating directives and policies from the central
government.

The government's commitment to ensuring ample liquidity in the
capital markets, alongside the forecast of relatively low interest
rates for 2025, provides a more positive backdrop for economic
activities. Noteworthy are the initial signs of effectiveness in
boosting consumer spending through the "trade-in" policies,
which particularly benefit industries such as consumer electronics,
electric vehicles and household appliances. Additionally, there are
indications that the housing crisis is stabilizing, with a potential
recovery on the horizon. In March 2025, the “Report on the
Work of the Government” released at the third session of the
14th National People's Congress clearly outlined the overall
requirements and policy directions for economic and social
development, as well as the government's work tasks. The main
contents include a series of proactive policies, such as strongly
promoting consumption, broadly expanding domestic demand,
improving innovation efficiency, continually developing new
quality productivity, and stabilizing foreign trade.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEEWLR D (&)

However, the challenges we face are multi-faceted. Unpredictable
policies and hostilities from the United States, ongoing tariff
wars, and the threat of sanctions affecting major global
economies, all contribute to a complex international landscape.
The increasing likelihood of the United States reversing its
interest rate cuts adds another layer of uncertainty. Domestically,
intensifying competition and price wars among industry peers are
expected to continue.

The Group remains cautiously optimistic that, despite the
challenges and uncertainties, significant opportunities exist in
the dynamic Mainland China market and other regions. Industry
leaders in Mainland China are poised to advance their products
through continuous innovation, further capturing market shares
from foreign competitors and driving new demand. Industries
such as consumer electronics, electric vehicles, renewable energy,
medical supplies and equipment, robotics, and packaging are
likely to remain strong.

Investment sentiment in the manufacturing industry is expected
to experience a slight rebound after the weak levels seen over the
past couple of years. The rapid advancement and popularization
of artificial intelligence (Al) will accelerate product innovation,
enhance user experiences, and drive efficiencies. As equipment
manufacturers, we are focusing our efforts on integrating Al into
our products and internal systems to better serve our customers
and stay ahead of the curve.

Moreover, we observe a clear trend towards sophisticated
equipment users demanding tailored turnkey solutions. These
users seek high energy efficiency, reduced direct labour costs,
and enhanced connectivity of digital systems. Solutions tailored
for specific applications are expected to improve productivity
and automation through the integration of expertise in raw
materials, thermal forming, and process controls. Our machinery
manufacturing business will continue to focus on developing
these turnkey solutions to meet our customers' evolving needs.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Our IMM manufacturing business will strive to expand sales both
domestically and globally by launching enhanced versions of
standardized and industry-specialized machines. Concurrently,
our management team is intensifying efforts to optimize
overall costs, thereby improving profitability. Our extrusion
lines, rubber injection molding machines and hydraulic presses
manufacturing business projects further growth by penetrating
niche markets with our series of industry-specific customized
solutions. The sales volume for our plastic products processing
and manufacturing business is expected to remain relatively
stable, barring any sudden demand shocks. However, to fend off
industry competition, we will enhance production efficiencies,
invest in additional production capacities, and focus on talent
development. Our industrial consumables trading business aims
to broaden its product portfolio by forming partnerships with
new suppliers, integrating new products and solutions for our
customers, and pursuing overseas expansion.

Internally, the Group has launched an enterprise intelligent
collaboration platform in early 2025, aimed at establishing an
efficient channel for team collaboration, enhancing convenience
and productivity, which will be deployed in phases. At the
same time, we will continue to integrate various digital system
modules, including ERP, CRM, PLM, WMS, MES and SRM, in order
to ensure seamless linkage of all crucial enterprise data. We wiill
maintain adequate investments in research and development, as
well as in talent development, to sustain our competitive edge in
products and services.

The overall financial health of the Group remains a priority.
We will closely monitor receivables levels and associated risks,
manage debt levels to meet our needs, and implement ongoing
cost reduction initiatives.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

ESREREEAEHRE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tang To, aged 76, was appointed as an executive Director
and the chairman of the Board on 14 July 1988 and 18
September 1997, respectively. He is the chairman of each of
the Nomination Committee and the Committee of Executive
Directors, and a member of the Remuneration Committee. He
also acts as a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
On 28 May 2010, he was appointed as the director of Suzhou
Sanguang Science & Technology Co., Ltd., a company listed on
the National Equities Exchange and Quotations and an associate
of the Company. Mr. Tang has over 50 years of experience in
manufacturing and trading businesses. Mr. Tang is the father
of Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman. As at the date of this annual report,
Mr. Tang is a director of certain substantial Shareholders within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman, aged 47, joined the Group in 2006 and
was appointed as an executive Director and chief executive officer
of the Company on 18 March 2011 and 1 July 2013, respectively.
He is a member of each of the Nomination Committee and the
Committee of Executive Directors. He also acts as a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Tang had worked in various commercial banks. Mr. Tang
graduated from The University of Western Ontario in Canada
and holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics and a Diploma
in Financial Planning. Mr. Tang is the son of Mr. Tang To. As at
the date of this annual report, Mr. Tang is a director of certain
substantial Shareholders within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Kan Wai Wah, aged 67, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 22 May 1998. He is a member of the Audit
Committee. Mr. Kan holds a High Diploma in Accountancy.
Mr. Kan has over 40 years of experience in corporate strategy
and corporate management. Mr. Kan is the son of Ms. Law Kit
Fong, a substantial Shareholder (as defined under the SFO). As
at the date of this annual report, Mr. Kan is a director of certain
substantial Shareholders within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES (CONTINUED)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan, aged 59, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 18 June 2004. She is a
chairman of each of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee, and a member of the Nomination Committee.
Ms. Yeung holds a Master degree in Business Administration.
She is a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (AICPA), and an associate member of each of
The Chartered Governance Institute (CGIl) and The Hong Kong
Chartered Governance Institute (HKCGI). Ms. Yeung held senior
financial positions in several companies. She has over 30 years of
experience in the finance sector.

Mr. Lam Kwok Ming, aged 61, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 24 November 2022. He
is a member of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Lam holds
a Master of Science in E-commerce for Executives from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA) and a
fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales (ICAEW). He has over 30 years of experience in finance,
business and management in different sectors. He is currently the
managing director of a plastics and chemicals trading and own
branded personal care products company, Jacobson van den Berg
(Hong Kong) Limited, which is a subsidiary of Chinney Alliance
Group Limited, a company whose shares are listed in the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 385).

Mr. Lee Wai Yip, Alvin, aged 46, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 24 November 2022. He is
the members of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Lee obtained
a Degree of Bachelor of Science in Business Administration
(Management) from San Jose State University in the United States
of America in 2001. He has over 20 years of experience in the
information technology industry. He serves as the chief executive
officer of Armitage Technologies Limited since 2011. He is
currently the chairman of Hong Kong Electronics & Technologies
Association, a member of the Information & Communications
Technology Services Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong Trade
Development Council, a member of the Departmental Advisory
Committee of the Department of Electrical Engineering of City
University of Hong Kong, and a member of the Electronics and
Telecommunications Training Board of the Vocational Training
Council.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES (CONTINUED)

EERGREEAEHE (&)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Ching Wang Ho, aged 39, joined the Group in 2018. He
is currently the financial controller of the Company, and also
acts as a director and a supervisor of several subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Ching has over 10 years of experience in financial
management gained from listed company and international
audit firm. Mr. Ching is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA). He holds a bachelor’s
degree of Integrated Business Administration from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Cao Xiaowei, aged 55, joined the Group in 1994. He
is currently the general manager of the Company’'s IMM
manufacturing business, and also holds directorship in certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Cao graduated from a course
at the vocational secondary school, majoring in mechanical
manufacturing technology and equipment. He has over 30 years
of experience in IMM manufacturing and management.

Mr. Ye Yueran, aged 51, joined the Group in 2002. He is
currently the general manager of the Company's extrusion
lines, rubber injection molding machines and hydraulic presses
manufacturing business, and also holds directorship in certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Ye has over 20 years of
experience in manufacturing of machinery.

Mr. Mei Zheqi, aged 47, joined the Group in 2000. He is
currently the general manager of the Company's machinery
leasing business, and also holds directorship in certain subsidiaries
of the Company. He was an executive Director from August
2018 to November 2020. Mr. Mei graduated from the School of
Accounting of Zhongnan University of Economics and Law with
a Master Degree in Management. He is a non-practising member
of Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Mr. Man Chi Fai, Bruno, aged 63, joined the Group in 2013. He
is currently one of the general managers of the Company’s plastic
products processing and manufacturing business, and also holds
directorship in certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Man
holds a Bachelor of Science (Mechanical) from The University
of London and a Master Science in Engineering (Industrial
Management and Manufacturing) from The University of Hong
Kong. He is a member of each of The Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers (HKIE) and The Institution of Electrical Engineers in
the United Kingdom (IEE). He had worked in various sizeable
corporations. He has over 30 years of experience in plastic
injection molding, metals manufacturing, molds design and
manufacturing, manufacturing assembly process management
and project management.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES (CONTINUED)

Mr. Diao Junde, aged 61, joined the Group in 2006. He is
currently one of the general managers of the Company’s plastic
products processing and manufacturing business, and also holds
directorship in certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Diao
obtained a Master of Business Administration from The University
of Science and Technology of China. He has around 40 years of
experience in plastic components for home appliances processing
and management.

Mr. Hui Oi Chun, aged 48, joined the Group in 2011. He
is currently one of the general managers of the Company's
industrial consumables trading business, and also holds
directorship in a subsidiary of the Company and serves as a legal
representative of a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Hui holds a
Bachelor of Business Administration in Applied Economics from
Hong Kong Baptist University. He had worked in various sizeable
corporations. He has over 20 years of experience in sales and
marketing of industrial consumables trading and management.

Mr. Lu Han, aged 51, joined the Group in 1999. He is currently
one of the general managers of the Company’s industrial
consumables trading business, and also holds directorship in a
subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Lu obtained a Master of Business
Administration from Fudan University. He has around 30 years of
experience in industrial consumables trading and management.

Mr. Xie Jie, aged 43, joined the Group in 2007. He is currently
one of the general managers of the Company’s industrial
consumables trading business, and also holds directorship in
a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Xie obtained a Degree of
Engineering and a Diploma of Computer Science and Technology.
He had experience in technology management in an energy
enterprise and also has around 20 years of experience in
industrial consumables trading and management.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERES

The Board is pleased to submit its report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries of
the Group are set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial
statements. Save as the Disposals disclosed in the heading of
“Business Review” of the section of “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this annual report and note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements, there were no other significant
changes in the nature of the Group’'s principal activities during
the year.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024
and the financial position of the Group at that date are set out
in the audited consolidated financial statements on pages 122 to
256.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group recorded net profit of approximately HK$18,753,000
for the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: net loss of
approximately HK$59,515,000). Further details in respect of the
fair review of the Group’s businesses, please refer to the sections
of “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” of this annual report.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT OF THE GROUP’S
BUSINESSES

Details of future development of the Group’s businesses,
please refer to the sections of “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The operational complexities inherent in the Group’s businesses
together with the competitive business environment exposed
to certain notable risks which may affect the Group’s financial
position and business operations. The Group believes that an
effective risk management is critical to achieve our long-term
strategic objectives and enhance the sustainability of value
creation and business growth. The Board has overall responsibility
for the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
and reviewing their effectiveness. The Group recognizes that
adopting a proactive approach and establishing a robust business
management system for risk mitigation must be balanced with a
degree of flexibility. This allows us to safeguard the interests of
Shareholders, customers, employees, and other stakeholders.

During the year, the principal risks and uncertainties of the Group
are known as set out below:

Market Risks
Risks of Macroeconomic Volatility

The Group’s businesses are sensitive to the weak global economic
recovery. A deterioration in global economic outlook may have a
material impact on our financial position.

During the year, major economies are facing the challenges
related to insufficient growth momentum due to ongoing
uncertainties such as inflation and geopolitical risks, while global
economic growth continues to encounter numerous uncertainties
and risks. We continuously monitor and regularly analyze the
impact of global and domestic macroeconomic trends on the
Group to develop and implement responsive measures in a
timely manner. Meanwhile, we promptly adjust our operational
strategies to enhance management efficiency, continuously
strengthen core competitiveness, and actively innovate the
business models to effectively address the risks arising from
market changes, ensuring that the Group maintains steady
development in a complex and ever-changing environment.

Market Competition Risks

The Group must compete on both selling price and product
know-how as multinational, regional and niche competitors
attempt to increase their market shares. Intensive competitive
pressure may impede the Group's profitability. Additionally,
customers are also affected by this competitive pressure, leading
to fluctuations in their sales. The Group possesses comparative
resilience and strives for agility by implementing cost-effective
solutions through digitalization of production process and refined
techniques. Meanwhile, the Group closely monitors industry
trends and market demand, increasing its investment in research
and development to introduce innovative products and services,
thereby attracting more customers and building lasting brand
influence.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHEE (A

Supply Chain Risks

Rising trade protectionism and geopolitical risk are disrupting
global supply chains. The Group may face difficulties due to
sudden material shortages, resulting in delays in delivery and
inability to procure substitutes at reasonable prices temporarily.
These challenges have led to loss of sales opportunities and a
failure to meet customers’ expectations. The Group minimizes
these occurrences through flexible supply chain management,
which includes strictly selecting qualified suppliers, extending
sourcing channels, and strengthening inventory control. The
Group actively manages cost pressures arising from fluctuating
raw material prices by implementing detailed cost tracking and
examining various scenarios for hedging opportunities.

Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Risks

ESG risks are ESG variables that affect the Group’s financial and
operation performance. Environmental, climate and weather-
related risks arise in various ways, both outside and inside the
Group's control. The Group adopts a proactive ESG strategies
and manages ESG-related risks through appropriate response and
control measures.

The Group faces environmental risks in production processes
and business operations, including carbon footprint, sewage,
waste treatment, greenhouse gas emission and climate change,
etc.. To ensure the Group's compliance with applicable laws and
regulations on environmental protection, we have implemented
a set of internal monitoring procedures involving innovations in
technology, processes and equipment, the use of new materials,
and investments of green facilities, etc.. Meanwhile, we conduct
training courses in environmental protection and energy
conservation to enhance employees' awareness in these areas
while maintaining rigorous internal monitoring and assessment.

Social risks include pay equality, workplace safety, supplier
practices, diversity, equity, and community contributions. The
Group advocates “people-oriented, foothold in industrial, value
pragmatism, continuous learning, innovation”. We maintain
a highly efficient workforce with supportive interpersonal
relationships and provide a safe and pleasant working
environment, all of which are essential to supporting our
sustainable development.
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Legal and Regulatory Compliance Risks

The Group has various production plants and offices across
Mainland China and Hong Kong. Any failure to comply with the
laws and regulations in those jurisdictions may result in penalties
and temporary production suspension, and could adversely
affect the Group’s reputation bringing about potential risks that
impact on our operations and profitability. Maintaining legal
and regulatory compliance is a core value of the Group. We
monitor changes in legislation with the engagement of legal
consultation services from time to time and have internal control
procedures to ensure compliance with regulatory provisions and
the implementation of internal policies.

Financial Risks

The Group is exposed to financial risks arising from the normal
course of its business and the commitments related to its
financial instruments, including foreign currency risk, interest rate
risk, price risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Details of such risks
are set out in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

Certain measures to manage the impacts of these potential risks
and uncertainties are described in the heading of “Business
Review"” of the section of “Management Discussion and Analysis”
of this annual report.
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FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The financial key performance indicators of the Group for the
years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 are summarized as

follows:

Continuing operations

Operating Performance

Revenue

Operating profit

Profit before tax

Profit for the year

Basic earnings per share
(HK cents)

Key Financial Information

Cash and bank balances

Total assets

Total liabilities

Total equity attributable to
equity shareholders of the
Company

Financial Ratios

Current ratio

Gross profit margin

Earnings before interests,
taxes, depreciation and
amortization (EBITDA)
margin (note)

Net profit margin

S LS
HERE

WA

T
bl
R
SREAREF ()

BT BE R

R RRTEH
BEMRE
BERE
ARFEERB A
FEnEmEE

B it =
R %
%

REFE RE - FER

#8540 0 E %
(Af3t)

B RFE

BBERRBEER

2024

—E-NEF

HK$°000
TET

1,865,354
27,914
27,137
11,063

0.31

519,030
2,172,191
861,674

1,241,637

1.9
18.5%

4.8%
0.6%

2023
—E-=F
HK$'000
FET
(Restated)
(seE75)

1,723,747
36,053
35,636
21,698

2.39

660,468
2,462,080
1,033,216

1,271,722

1.8
19.3%

5.8%
1.3%

AEEHEZE T -_NEN T -_=ZF+=
A=+—BUEFEMNPMKEERRREZH
ggn

Change

+8.2%
-22.6%
-29.5%
-58.2%

N/A A58

-21.4%
-11.8%
-16.6%

-2.4%

+5.6%
-0.8pp B

-1.0pp BOE
-0.7 pp BEOE
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Note:

EBITDA margin is calculated as EBITDA divided by revenue. The following

table sets forth the calculation of EBITDA:
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REPFIE - FR IR - 37 8 N8 AT 9 B M R AR
ME IRE FEREEAMNRNRARAGE -
TREVTIARFHNE - REBE - FTERBHEAORF

ZEtE:
2024 2023
—EB-ME —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated)
(g&E51)
Continuing operations BERSEEK
Profit before tax R 12 Bl A 27,137 35,636
Add: hn:
Finance costs B ER 13,838 14,922
Depreciation and amortisation on: PreE R
— Ownership interest in leasehold land and -ERAELREFH
buildings held for own use FrE HetE = 14,749 15,676
— Other owned assets -HEMmBEBEEE 27,183 26,813
— Right-of-use assets -EREEE 6,013 7,010
EBITDA RETFIE R -ER
iR & A 88,920 100,057

—ZE-MEEIK Annual Report 2024 31



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
ESEHREE (A

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year, there was no material breach of or
non-compliance with the laws and regulations applicable to the
Group. Apart from complying with Hong Kong laws such as the
Companies Ordinance, Listing Rules, SFO, Employment Ordinance
(Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and Anti-Money
Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance (Chapter
615 of the Laws of Hong Kong), we have also complied with the
laws of the PRC, including the Company Law of the PRC, Labour
Law of the PRC, Labour Contract Law of the PRC, Measures on
Enterprise Annuities and the relevant laws, rules and regulations
in relation to child and forced labour including the Regulations
on Forbidding the Employment of Child Labour and the Law of
the PRC on the Protection of Minors.

Moreover, the Group also complied with environmental laws and
relevant ordinances, rules and regulations on the prevention and
control of wastes, waste gases and sewage emission, including
but not limited to the Environmental Protection Law of the PRC,
Environmental Protection Tax Law of the PRC, Law of the PRC
on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution, Law
of the PRC on Prevention and Control of Water Pollution, Law
of the PRC on Promotion of Cleaner Production, Waste Disposal
Ordinance (Chapter 354 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Product
Eco-responsibility Ordinance (Chapter 603 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), Environmental Quality Standards for Surface Water,
Wastewater Quality Standards for Discharge to Municipal Sewers,
Measures for the Administration of Permit for Operation of
Hazardous Wastes and Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control
of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste. During the production
process, the Group consistently monitors and controls the waste
generation, waste gas emissions and sewage discharges, to
ensure compliance with standards. The Group has implemented
various measures to save energy and reduce emissions, including
improvements on plant equipment to reduce air, greenhouse gas
and other emissions, and effective energy conservation measures
to reduce the use of energy and water, and waste reduction
management in plants and offices. These environmental laws
will impact on the Group's operation if we do not dispose of all
wastes, discharge sewage and emit waste gases properly, we
might have to bear heavy environmental protection tax, thereby
increasing the cost of disposal of wastes. Detailed discussion on
the environmental policies and performance of the Group is set
out in the section of “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” of this annual report.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group's success depends on the support from key
stakeholders which comprise of employees, customers, suppliers,
Shareholders, government and regulators, as well as banks.

Employees

Employees are regarded as the most important and valuable
assets of the Group. Most of the management has been
serving the Group for a long period of time. The Group offers
competitive salaries and benefits and also provides training
programmes or courses for employees of the Group at all levels
from different departments in Mainland China and Hong Kong,
and Directors, respectively, to further enhance their technical
skills, professional skills and knowledge in production, operations
and management, while making a continual contribution to the
Group. Throughout the year, various business units of the Group
occasionally organized different activities, such as annual dinners
and ball games, for both the general staffs and management to
participate in together, in order to strengthen their partnership
and communication. Moreover, the Group celebrated various
festive seasons with our employees, and distributed gifts to them
as a token of appreciation for their hard work throughout the
year.

Customers

The major customers of the machinery manufacturing business,
plastic products processing and manufacturing business, and
industrial consumables trading business are the plastic pipe
manufacturer, washing machine manufacturer, and industrial
equipment manufacturer, respectively. Most of these customers
have been with us for more than three years and we provide
high-quality products and after-sale services in return for their
loyalty.

Suppliers

The major suppliers in the machinery manufacturing business,
plastic products processing and manufacturing business, and
industrial consumables trading business are supplying the
injection molding machine castings, plastic raw material particles,
and stepping motor and servo motor, respectively. Most of them
have been our suppliers for more than three years and have
maintained a good relationship with us in order to achieve cost-
effectiveness and obtain long-term commercial benefits.

Shareholders

The major Shareholders are Cosmos Holdings and its controlled
corporations, China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and
minority Shareholders. We are grateful to have Shareholders who
have been supportive of the Group for a long period of time.
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Government and Regulators

It is important for us to pay close attention to the regulatory
trends of local governments and regulators to anticipate any
legal or regulatory changes or community developments that may
affect our business.

Banks

Banks serve as the lenders for the Group by providing financing
for our businesses operations and development, including
trade finance and fixed asset purchases. We maintain stable
relationship with them through regular meetings and visits.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out in the section of
“Five Year Financial Summary” of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and
the Company during the year are set out in the “Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity” of and in notes 32 and 33 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2024, the Company’s distributable reserves,
as calculated in accordance with Sections 291, 297 and 299
of the Companies Ordinance, amounted to approximately
HK$409,145,000.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made HK$34,000 of donation.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this annual
report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tang To (Chairman)
Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Kan Wai Wah

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan
Mr. Lam Kwok Ming
Mr. Lee Wai Yip, Alvin

All Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
should be subject to retirement by rotation and be eligible for
re-election at least once every three years at the annual general
meeting of the Company in accordance with Article 102 of the
Articles and the CG Code. Mr. Kan Wai Wah and Ms. Yeung
Shuk Fan will retire from office by rotation and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section of
“Directors and Senior Management'’s Biographies” on pages 22
to 23 of this annual report.
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CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in
information of the Directors are set out below:

Mr. Lee Wai Yip, Alvin has ceased to be the chairman of the
Information and Software Industry Association. He is currently
the chairman of Hong Kong Electronics & Technologies
Association, a member of the Information & Communications
Technology Services Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong Trade
Development Council, a member of the Departmental Advisory
Committee of the Department of Electrical Engineering of City
University of Hong Kong, and a member of the Electronics and
Telecommunications Training Board of the Vocational Training
Council.

Save for the above, there is no other information of the Directors
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company has a service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries that is not
determinable by the Company or such subsidiaries within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 10A to
the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the headings of “Directors’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares or Debentures
under the SFO”, “Shareholders’ Interests or Short Positions in
Shares and Underlying Shares under the SFO” and “Related Party
Transactions” of this report, at no time during or at the end of
the year has been/was the Company, its holding company, or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors or their respective spouse or children under the age of
18 to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) has entered into a letter of appointment
setting out the key terms and conditions of his/her appointment
as a Director with the Company for a term of three years. They
are all subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at least
every three years at annual general meeting in accordance with
the Articles.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Although Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan, one of the independent non-
executive Directors, has been serving on the Board for more than
nine years, she has not engaged in any executive management of
the Group. Her familiarity with and extensive experience in the
Group's businesses place her in a better position to contribute
independent views to the Company. Taking into consideration of
her independent scope of works when performing duties as an
independent non-executive Director over the past years, there is
no evidence that the length of service has had an adverse impact
on her independence. Therefore, the Company considered all
independent non-executive Directors (including Ms. Yeung) are
independent throughout the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Saved as the related party transactions as disclosed in note 43
to the consolidated financial statements and in the heading
of “Related Party Transactions” of this report, no transaction,
arrangement or contract that is significant in relation to the
Group’s businesses to which the Company, its holding company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or
his/her connected entity had, directly or indirectly, a material
interest was entered into or subsisted at any time during the year
or at the end of the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

During the year, none of the Directors was considered to have
interests in any businesses which are considered to compete or
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with businesses of
the Group, pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year and up to the date of this report, the persons
who served as directors of the subsidiaries of the Company are
as follows:

Messrs. Cao Xiaowei, Ching Wang Ho, Diao Junde, Dinh Thanh
Phuong, Du Jiang, Fang Xirong, Ho Kwong Sang, Hu Ping, Huang
Dongging, Hui Oi Chun, Jiang Shufeng, Liu Dangwei, Li Haihua*,
Lu Hank, Man Chi Fai, Bruno, Mei Zheqi, Miao Hongliang, Tang
To, Tang Yu, Freeman, Tsutsumi Keiji*, Wong Yiu Ming, Xie Jie,
Yatsugi Atsushi*, Ye Qingzhong, Ye Yueran, Yip Kar Shun, Yip
Kin Keung* and Zhu Wenguang, and Mses. Ching Shuk Kwan,
Yu Hong and Yu Yaqging.

The persons marked with an asterisk* are no longer the directors
of the subsidiaries of the Company as at the date of this report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

As permitted by the Articles, every Director or other officer or
auditor of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out
of the assets of the Company against any losses or liabilities
which he may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the
duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The permitted indemnity provision is in force for the benefit
of the Directors as required by Section 470 of the Companies
Ordinance when this report is approved in accordance with
Section 391 of the Companies Ordinance and at any time during
the year ended 31 December 2024.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’

liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Group throughout the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR DEBENTURES
UNDER THE SFO

As at 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions of
the Directors in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporation(s) (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which he was taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or were required pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO to be entered into the register referred to therein;
or were required pursuant to the Model Code to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange are set out below:

Long Positions in the Shares or Underlying Shares:

Number of Shares Held

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEgREE (H)

BE (BERPEKERH) EERK
g‘ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁfﬁjﬂiﬂtﬁZEﬁi&m

,tg
\ |

—HHF+ A=+ —H EEFERAK
D\jji/ﬁ;{ifjﬁﬂwal(m%ﬁ< 541}&
BIEE MBI S XV E) &9 A% o - #8 B IR 1D 3k
BHEEBET EAERE (GEHERBEEN)
%XV*B%N&S"*/A%D@}K 7] I Bt 22 P

ZEERXR (BERE (EHF LB EK
WIJ>> JFH?EMX%&%EZ%‘}Z EHEA 2D R

B ERE (E %&Hﬂfﬂlﬂﬁw 8352
1 /,\%1%TM§EEHHPﬁuEﬁ‘ZTE s KR

FRECRETR) AHEARRA LB
PretEsm FORREINWMT

REROIEERD 2HFR:

Approximate %

FEROHE of the

Personal Family Corporate Total Number of

Name of Director Interests Interests Interests Total Issued ?bares

HERITRS

ESHR (EPN £ RikER ERED B BYZHNBEINL

Tang To 4,970,005 226,000 445,617,458% 450,813,463 52.30
G

Tang Yu, Freeman - - 442,157,052 442,157,052 51.30
R

Kan Wai Wah 136,400 - - 136,400 0.02
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Notes:
(1) 226,000 Shares were held by Mr. Tang To and his spouse jointly.

(2) Mr. Tang To was deemed to be interested in 445,617,458 Shares
under the SFO, comprising (i) 3,460,406 Shares held by Ginta
Company Limited (incorporated in Hong Kong) which is owned as
to approximately 99.999% by Fullwin Limited (incorporated in the
Republic of Liberia), which in turn is owned as to 50% by Mr. Tang
To and 50% by his spouse respectively; (ii) 405,907,052 Shares held
by Codo through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Tai Shing, Hung
Cheong and Cosmos Holdings; and (iii) 36,250,000 Shares held by
Saniwell (as the trustee of The Saniwell Trust, the beneficiaries of
which include Mr. Tang To and certain of his family members) which
in turn is owned as to approximately 57.14% by Mr. Tang To.

(3) Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman was deemed to be interested in 442,157,052
Shares under the SFO, comprising (i) 405,907,052 Shares held
by Codo through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Tai Shing, Hung
Cheong and Cosmos Holdings; and (ii) 36,250,000 Shares held
by Saniwell (as the trustee of The Saniwell Trust, the beneficiaries
of which include Mr. Tang To and certain of his family members)
which in turn is owned as to approximately 42.86% by Mr. Tang Yu,
Freeman.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, none of the
Directors, chief executives of the Company and their respective
associates had or was deemed to have any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporation(s) (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which he was taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or were required pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO to be entered into the register referred to therein;
or were required pursuant to the Model Code to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS OR SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
UNDER THE SFO

As at 31 December 2024, so far as was known to the Directors
and chief executives of the Company, the following persons
(other than a Director or chief executive of the Company) had,
or were deemed to have, an interest or a short position in the
Shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or were recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO:

Long Positions in the Shares or Underlying Shares:
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Number of Shares Held

Approximate %

RERGBHE of the
Name of Direct Deemed Total Number of
Substantial Shareholder Capacity Interests Interests Total Issued Shares
REEESR HERTRS
TERRER 54 ERER 2L By  RYEPEIL
Tai Shing Beneficial owner 170,104,452 - 170,104,452 19.74
ExEBA
Cosmos Holdings Beneficial owner and interest of 235,802,600 170,104,452 405,907,052 47.09
controlled corporations
ARER Eala ARTEEE 2 R
Codo Interest of controlled corporations - 405,907,0527 405,907,052 47.09
aE REEE ER
Law Kit Fong Interest of controlled corporations - 405,907,052% 405,907,052 47.09
B2F REEE ER
Saniwell Beneficial owner and interest of 36,250,000 405,907,052% 442,157,052 51.30
controlled corporations
EaliE A ARZEEE 2 S
China Resources (Holdings) Beneficial owner 169,649,046 - 169,649,046 19.68
Company Limited
EZ8(5E)ERARA EREEA
CRC Bluesky Limited Interest of controlled corporations - 169,649,046% 169,649,046 19.68
REEB R
China Resources Co Limited Interest of controlled corporations - 169,649,046 169,649,046 19.68
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Notes:

(1

Tai Shing was wholly-owned by Hung Cheong, which is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Cosmos Holdings. By virtue of the SFO, Cosmos
Holdings was deemed to be interested in 170,104,452 Shares held
by Tai Shing.

Cosmos Holdings was owned as to approximately (i) 99.999%
by Codo; and (ii) 0.001% by Glad Season Investments Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong), which was owned as to 50% by Codo
and 50% by Cosmos Holdings (as trustee for Codo). By virtue of
the SFO, Codo was deemed to be interested in 405,907,052 Shares
held by Cosmos Holdings.

Codo was owned as to approximately (i) 10.49% by Elegant Power
Enterprises Limited (incorporated in Hong Kong, “Elegant Power");
and (i) 37.92% by Friendchain Investments Limited (incorporated
in Hong Kong, “Friendchain”), which was owned as to 40% by
Elegant Power. Elegant Power was owned as to approximately
0.002% by Mr. Kan Wai Wah, a non-executive Director (as trustee
for Ms. Law Kit Fong), and approximately 99.998% by Ms. Law Kit
Fong. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Law Kit Fong was deemed to be
interested in 405,907,052 Shares held by Codo.

Codo was owned as to approximately (i) 31.42% by Keepsound
Investments Limited (incorporated in Hong Kong), which was owned
as to 94% by Saniwell; and (ii) 37.92% by Friendchain, which was
owned as to approximately 57.42% by Saniwell. By virtue of the
SFO, Saniwell was deemed to be interested in 405,907,052 Shares
held by Codo.

China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited (incorporated in
Hong Kong) was a wholly-owned subsidiary of CRC Bluesky Limited
(incorporated in the British Virgin Islands). By virtue of the SFO, CRC
Bluesky Limited was deemed to be interested in 169,649,046 Shares
held by China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited.

CRC Bluesky Limited was a wholly-owned subsidiary of China
Resources Co., Limited (incorporated in the PRC). By virtue of the
SFO, China Resources Co., Limited was deemed to be interested in
169,649,046 Shares held by CRC Bluesky Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, so far as were
known to the Directors and chief executives of the Company,
there was no other person (other than a Director or chief
executive of the Company) had an interest or a short position in
the Shares and underlying shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or were recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into certain transactions with those regarded
as “Related Parties” under applicable accounting standards.
These transactions mainly relate to the contracts entered into
by the Group in the ordinary and usual course of business
which were negotiated on normal commercial terms and on an
arm’s length basis. Further details are set out in note 43 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Directors confirmed that the related party transactions do
not fall under connected transaction or continuing connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Details of subsequent event occurring from the end of the
reporting period to the date of this annual report, please
refer to the heading of “Subsequent Events” of the section of
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreement that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares or that requires the Company to enter
into any agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares was entered into by the Company during the year
or subsisted at the end of the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group's corporate governance practices and procedures are
set out in the section of “Corporate Governance Report” of this
annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

Details of the remuneration policy of employees and the basis
for determining the emoluments payable to the Directors, please
refer to the heading of “Employees, Remuneration Policy and
Training Scheme” of the section of “Management Discussion and
Analysis” of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as of the date of this
annual report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, the respective percentages of purchases
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers and revenue
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers, on a combined
basis, were less than 30% of the total value of the Group’s
purchases and revenue.

None of the Directors, their close associates or Shareholders (who
to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
total number of issued Shares) had any interest in the Group’s
major suppliers or customers noted above.

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

This annual report has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
Information on the main works of Audit Committee and its
composition are set out in the heading of “Audit Committee”
of the section of “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual
report.

44 COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED KE#WME2ER AT

B BUR

BEFHERRMEEXNTEEZME %
AMHE FL2HAFRIEEERL LD
IEHAEE - F B BR &5 )

REARAGEZLAHEREREEAA
B RAFHREH ARAREHT (LT
) ETREZARTRE -

FTEHREBEREF

RAFER AEBxRAESAEERS
A cEBEEEA S ERABAREARERA
AT ZWABE DI BIME AL R 2B
EREERABEI30% -

MEEE HETBEAIRR (BEFS
PRAERS% A ENBEBHTRNDEE)EAR
tRAAREETZHEBXREL 2T MEm-

BEREEENEH

AERCHBERZESRHN -FHERZ
B E B TERMAKZERF IR A F R
CEEABEIEHANIERZES] R

o

10

[N



AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited was appointed as auditors
of the Company following the retirement of Ting Ho Kwan &
Chan on 29 May 2024. Apart from this, there was no change in
auditors of the Company in any of the preceding three years.

The Group's consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2024 have been audited by HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited, which will retire from office, and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

By order of the Board

TANG To
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2025
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREBRME

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Board is committed to practicing and maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance to enhance Shareholders’ value
and safeguard interests of Shareholders and other stakeholders,
and reviews the corporate governance practices and procedures
of the Group from time to time.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with all
applicable code provisions of the CG Code during the year.

CORPORATE CULTURE

The Board has established the purpose, values and strategy of the
Company, which align with its culture. It promotes them across
different business segments and to all employees at all levels,
and embeds the same in business decisions and operations.

Moving forward, the Company will keep upholding the core
values, continue to create new competitive advantages and
development momentum to enhance our core businesses rooted
in Mainland China, provide high-quality products and services to
our customers around the world, and aim to realise and maximize
value for the stakeholders, thereby building a strong reputation.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

THE BOARD
Composition

The Board currently consists of six members who are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tang To (Chairman)
Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Kan Wai Wah

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan
Mr. Lam Kwok Ming
Mr. Lee Wai Yip, Alvin

Save as the Directors’ biographical details and the relationships
among the Board members (if any) disclosed in the section of
“Directors and Senior Management’s Biographies” on pages
22 to 23 of this annual report, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, there is no any financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship among Board members.

Terms of Office of Directors

Executive Directors have not been appointed for any specific
or purposed length of service, but their letters of appointment
may be terminated by either party by giving to other party a
notice period without payment of any compensation (other than
statutory compensation). Their notice periods are not less than
(i) six months for Mr. Tang To; and (ii) three months for Mr. Tang
Yu, Freeman.

Non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) are appointed for a term of three years. Their terms
of office are (i) Mr. Kan Wai Wah (non-executive Director) and
Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan (independent non-executive Director), who
were appointed for a term commencing from 1 January 2023
and expiring on 31 December 2025; and (ii) Messrs. Lam Kwok
Ming and Lee Wai Yip, Alvin (both independent non-executive
Directors), who were appointed for a term commencing from 24
November 2022 and expiring on 23 November 2025.

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at least every three years at annual general meeting in
accordance with the Articles.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EXEAHE (F)

Board Diversity

A board diversity policy of the Company (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) has been adopted. The Company makes Board
appointments based on a range of diversity perspectives on the
selection of candidates, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and term of office, as well as any
other factors that the Board may consider relevant appropriate
from time to time to achieve Board diversity. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee reviews the said policy annually to
ensure its effectiveness, and discusses any necessary revisions,
and recommends such revisions to the Board for consideration
and approval. The Board is currently composed of Directors who
are diverse in gender, age and length of service, and who come
from various backgrounds with diverse academic expertise and
professional experience. Presently, female representation at the
Board level is 16.7%. The Board is of the view that the current
diversity of the Board is appropriate and aims to maintain at least
the current level of female member. The Board will continue to
seek opportunities to increase the proportion of female members
over time as suitable candidates are identified.
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An analysis of the Board’s current composition is set out as IREBEEEKEHAR DU T :
follows:
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted the nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”). It is summarized as follows:

e state the objectives of the Nomination Policy, including
ensuring the Board members have a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Group’s businesses;

e set out the nomination procedures, including selection,
appointment and re-appointment of Directors;

° set out selection criteria, including but not limited to the
qualification, skill and experience of a proposed candidate,
the requirements set out in the Listing Rules regarding
appointment of independent non-executive Directors, and
whether the proposed candidates for independent non-
executive Directors would be considered independence with
reference to the independence criteria or guidelines set out
in the Listing Rules; and

e list out the applicable laws and procedures regarding
appointment of Directors.

The Nomination Committee puts forward the proposal on the
nomination of new Directors, based on the Nomination Policy
and Board Diversity Policy, to the Board for consideration.

During the year, the Nomination Committee made
recommendations on re-election of Directors and assessed the
independence of all independent non-executive Directors, all
of which were approved by the Board. The Board considered
all independent non-executive Directors were independent
throughout the year.

On 27 March 2025, after taking into account the Board’s
composition and in accordance with the Nomination Policy,
the Board considered and proposed the nomination of Mr. Kan
Wai Wah and Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan, who shall retire from office
by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. They will be eligible and willing to offer themselves for
re-election. Each of the above Directors abstained from voting on
his/her own nomination when it was considered during the Board
meeting.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of chairman and chief executive officer are separate and
performed by different individuals to reinforce their independence
and accountability. Mr. Tang To is the chairman and is responsible
for providing leadership to the Board and overseeing the
functioning of the Board to ensure that it acts in the best
interest of the Group. Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman serves as the chief
executive officer, is the chief operating decision maker, and is
responsible for managing the business of the Group, attending to
the formulation and implementation of the Group’s policies and
strategic operating plans, and assuming full accountability to the
Board for the overall operations of the Group.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for establishing the overall strategies,
setting objectives and business development plans, overseeing
the Group's risk management and internal control systems, and
discharges its duties in the best interests of the Company and the
Shareholders. Moreover, the Board has delegated its power to
the Committee of Executive Directors for the management of the
Group's day-to-day business operations. It has also delegated its
power to the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and
the Remuneration Committee to manage particular aspects of
the Company's affairs and assist in sharing the responsibilities of
the Board. Details of these Board committees are set out in the
relevant paragraphs below.

Management is responsible for implementing the strategies
and plans established by the Board, and for performing the risk
management and internal control systems, under the leadership
of, and clear direction given by, the executive Directors.
Meanwhile, it reports back and obtains prior Board approval
before making decisions or entering into any commitments
on the Group's behalf. The Company also reviews those
arrangements periodically to ensure that they remain appropriate
to its needs.
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Board Proceedings

The Board holds at least four meetings a year. A notice is given
to all Directors at least 14 days before the date of all regular
Board meetings. The company secretary of the Company assists
the chairman of the Board in preparing the agenda for Board
meetings and ensures that all relevant rules and regulations are
followed. All Directors can include matters on the agenda for
the regular Board meetings. The agenda and the accompanying
Board papers (if any) are sent to all Directors at least 3 days
before the date of Board meeting, enabling them to review and
make informed decisions during the meeting. Queries raised by
Directors will receive a prompt and full response, if possible.

The chairman of the Board encourages all Directors to make a
full and active contribution to the Board’s affairs and takes the
lead to ensure that it acts in the best interests of the Company.
He also encourages Directors with different views to voice their
concerns, allows sufficient time for discussion of issues, and
ensure that Board decisions fairly reflect Board consensus.

A Director is required to abstain from deliberations and decisions
of the Board on matters to be considered by the Board where
he/she is the interested party, and he/she does not put pressure
on the Board regarding these matters. Independent non-executive
Directors and their close associates who have no material interest
in the transaction should be present at that Board meeting.

In the event that a corporate proposal is required to be approved
by Shareholders, interested Directors are required to abstain from
voting on the relevant Shareholders’ resolutions, and will further
undertake to ensure that persons connected to them abstain
from voting on the relevant Shareholders’ resolutions.

Minutes of each meeting of the Board and the Board committees
record in sufficient detail the matters considered and decisions
reached, including any concerns raised by Directors or dissenting
views expressed. A draft of minutes is circulated to all Directors
for their comments within a reasonable time after such meeting
is held. The final version of minutes is signed by the attending
Directors as a correct record of the proceedings of the meeting
and kept by the company secretary of the Company, and open
for inspection by Directors.

Every Board member is entitled to have access to Board papers
and related materials and has unrestricted access to the advice
and services of the company secretary of the Company to
enable them to make informed decisions and ensure that Board
procedures, and all applicable law, rules and regulations, are
followed.
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Mechanisms for ensuring independent views and input

The Company recognises that Board independence is pivotal to
good corporate governance and Board effectiveness, and thus
the mechanisms were established for ensuring independent views
and input are available to the Board, and their implementation
and effectiveness are under review annually.

These mechanisms are summarized as follows:

e The Board shall include at least three independent non-
executive Directors, representing at least one-third of the
Board.

. The Nomination Committee assesses the independence,
cross-directorships, any material relationships with other
Directors, qualification and time commitment of candidates
nominated to be an independent non-executive Directors
before their appointment; and also evaluates the continued
independence and time commitment of existing independent
non-executive Directors annually.

e No equity-based remuneration with performance-related
elements is granted to independent non-executive Directors.

e The Company shall confirm that the annual confirmation
of independence have been received from each of the
independent non-executive Directors, pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules.

e All Directors are encouraged to express their independent,
constructive and informed comments freely during the
meetings of the Board and Board committees.

e The chairman of the Board holds at least one meeting a year
with the independent non-executive Directors without the
presence of other Directors.

e No Director shall vote on any Board resolution approving
any contract or arrangement or any other proposal in which
he/she or any of his/her close associates has a material
interest nor shall he/she be counted in the quorum present
at the meeting.

e Management supplies the Board and its committees with
adequate, complete and reliable information, in a timely
manner, to enable them to make informed decisions.
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e Individual Directors and/or the Board committees, upon e
reasonable request, may seek external independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, the
Company should assist them in performing their duties;
or provide more information than is volunteered by
management, thus, they should have separate and
independent access to the Company’s senior management.

Attendance Record of Directors at Meetings Held During

the Year

During the vyear, four regular Board meetings and one annual
general meeting were held. The attendance record of Directors
at the meetings (including the Board meetings, Audit Committee
meetings, Nomination Committee meetings, Remuneration E&@ &% IRBLZESEH -
Committee meetings and annual general meeting) held during

the year is set out below:
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Name of Director Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meeting
EERE ES28E ENEESS8E RAEZESER FMZEeeR BRRAFAE
Executive Directors
HTES
Tang To 4/4 N/A 2/2 212 7
g A
Tang Yu, Freeman 4/4 N/A 212 N/A 17
HE& TEA TER
Non-executive Director
FYTES
Kan Wai Wah 4/4 5/5 N/A N/A 11
HEE TER TER
Independent Non-executive Directors
BUFHTES
Yeung Shuk Fan 4/4 5/5 2/2 2/2 11
B4
Lam Kwok Ming 4/4 5/5 2/2 2/2 1”1
WELEA
Lee Wai Yip, Alvin 4/4 5/5 2/2 212 1/1
FE%E
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Based on the above provided, all Directors have given sufficient
time and attention to the Group's affairs during the year ended
31 December 2024.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the CMEL Code on terms no less
exacting than the required standard set out in the Model Code,
serving as the Company’s code of conduct and rules governing
dealing by all Directors and relevant employees in the securities of
the Company. The Board will revise the CMEL Code from time to
time to ensure it aligns with changes brought about by relevant
amendments to the applicable laws, rules and regulations.

All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the
Company, they have complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code and CMEL Code during the year.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Every newly appointed Director (if any) receives a comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction package to ensure that he/she
is sufficiently aware of his/her duties, responsibilities and
obligations as a Director under the Companies Ordinance, Listing
Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements and the Company’s
policies, and to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of
the Company’s operations and business.

The Company provides all Directors with relevant reading
materials from time to time regarding the latest updates in
the industry, legal and regulatory in which the Group operates
its business to ensure their contributions to the Board remain
informed and relevant. In addition, all Directors are encouraged
to attend external seminars or training on topics relevant to
their duties, responsibilities and obligations and the Company’s
business.
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The individual training record of each Director during the year is
set out below:
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Reading Legal, Attending Seminars/
Regulatory and Training in relation to
Corporate Governance Businesses, Directors’ Duties

Name of Director

Updates or Professional Qualifications

RMEEE ERR HERBER ESHE
ESHE TEERNEFER REEERNTAFE LI
Executive Directors
HITES
Tang To 4 v
=
Tang Yu, Freeman 4 v
BB R
Non-executive Director
FHITES
Kan Wai Wah v v
HEE
Independent Non-executive Directors
BIYKHITES
Yeung Shuk Fan v v
15 B2
Lam Kwok Ming v v
AR [E AR
Lee Wai Yip, Alvin v v
FREHE
BOARD COMMITTEES EE2BETZE®
The Board has established four committees, namely the BEEES@DKUMBAZE S DR AKTE
Committee of Executive Directors, Audit Committee, Nomination EZE€ BHRELZEC ERZE SN FHWM
Committee and Remuneration Committee. Except for the B -BRUTESTZE I Fﬁﬁ%’?%

Committee of Executive Directors, all committees have specific
written terms of reference in accordance with the CG Code,
and each of the terms of reference has been published on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange, respectively.
All resolutions passed by the committees will be reported to the
Board at the forthcoming Board meeting.

No corporate governance committee has been established but
respective committees (as disclosed below) are responsible for
performing corporate governance functions set out in code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.
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Committee of Executive Directors

The Committee of Executive Directors comprises all executive
Directors. They meet frequently and are responsible for the
management of day-to-day business operation of the Group.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of four members, most of them
are independent non-executive Directors. They are:

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan (Chairman)
Mr. Lam Kwok Ming
Mr. Lee Wai Yip, Alvin

Non-executive Director

Mr. Kan Wai Wah

The Audit Committee meets with the financial controller and the
external auditors of the Company at least twice a year, where
applicable. They discuss their respective audit findings, the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, legal
and regulatory compliance, internal control and risk management
systems, and financial reporting matters (including annual
financial statements before proposing to the Board for approval).
Besides, the Audit Committee meets with the manager of the
Compliance Department without the presence of management,
reviews the Group’s annual internal audit plan together with
the necessary resources and considers the report of the results
of risk assessment and the effectiveness of internal controls in
the business operations of the Group submitted by the manager
of the Compliance Department, in order to assist in the Board
in maintaining effective risk management and internal control
systems.

During the year, the Audit Committee held five meetings and
performed its duties and responsibilities under the terms of
reference and as required under the CG Code. Its main works are
stated below: (i) review of the final results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2023; (ii) recommendation to the Board
for the appointment of the external auditors for Shareholders’
approval and review of the audit fees; (iii) review of the interim
results of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2024,
(iv) review of the audit plan for 2024; (v) review of the internal
audit report for 2024 and the internal audit plan for 2025;
(vi) review of the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems; and (vii) review of terms of reference of the
Audit Committee.
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The attendance record of the Audit Committee members is
set out in the heading of “Attendance Record of Directors at
Meetings Held During the Year” of this report.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of five members with a
majority of independent non-executive Directors. They are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tang To (Chairman)
Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan
Mr. Lam Kwok Ming
Mr. Lee Wai Yip, Alvin

During the year, the Nomination Committee held two meetings
and performed its duties and responsibilities under the terms of
reference and as required under the CG Code. Its main works are
stated below: (i) review of the current structure, size and diversity
of the Board; (ii) assessment of the independence of independent
non-executive Directors; (iii) review of the Board diversity policy;
(iv) recommendation on the nomination of two Directors to retire
and be re-elected at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company; and (v) review of the terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee.

The attendance record of the Nomination Committee members
is set out in the heading of “Attendance Record of Directors at
Meetings Held During the Year” of this report.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of four members with a
majority of independent non-executive Directors. They are:

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan (Chairman)
Mr. Lam Kwok Ming
Mr. Lee Wai Yip, Alvin

Executive Director

Mr. Tang To
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The Remuneration Committee recommends the Directors’
emoluments with reference to individual performance,
qualifications and experience of the Directors, duties and
responsibilities of the Directors in the Company, the Group’s
performance and profitability, remuneration benchmarks in
the industry and prevailing market conditions, to the Board.
None of the members was involved in determining their own
remuneration. Details of Directors’ emoluments for the year are
set out in note 10A to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held two meetings
and performed its duties and responsibilities under the terms of
reference and as required under the CG Code. Its main works are
stated below: (i) consideration and review of the remuneration
package of executive Directors; (ii) review of the directors’ fees
of non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors); and (iii) review of the terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee.

The attendance record of the Remuneration Committee members
is set out in the heading of “Attendance Record of Directors at
Meetings Held During the Year” of this report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the
Group's risk management and internal control systems on
an ongoing basis, and the Audit Committee reviews their
effectiveness at least annually with the assistance of the
Compliance Department. The Group's risk management and
internal control systems are processes performed by the Board
and management to provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance on the effectiveness and efficiency of operations
in achieving established corporate objectives, safeguarding
the Group’s assets, providing reliable financial reporting, and
complying with applicable laws and regulations. The purpose
of the risk management and internal control systems is to
identify and manage various risks faced by Group, which are
categorized as strategic, operational, compliance, financial, and
environmental, social and governance risks, in order to reduce,
mitigate, transfer or avoid them. However, these systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure in
operational systems, and can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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Internal Audit

To comply with the CG Code in relation to the requirements
of the establishment of internal audit function and the
implementation of appropriate and effective risk management
and internal control systems, the Compliance Department is
responsible for preparing an annual internal audit plan using an
appropriate risk-based methodology. This includes evaluating
the effectiveness of risk management and internal control
processes through a systematic and disciplined approach,
reviewing financial, operational and compliance controls, as
well as risk management functions, and reporting findings with
recommendations to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee
is responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of risk management
and internal control systems, and ensuring that the internal audit
function and its duties comply with the CG Code.

The internal audit function is carried out by the Compliance
Department and its purpose, authority, roles and responsibilities
are formalized in an internal audit charter adopted by the Audit
Committee.

The Compliance Department prepares an annual internal audit
plan based on a risk assessment methodology. Upon the Audit
Committee’s approval, it carries out audit work in accordance
with the approved plan. During the year, the Compliance
Department issued reports covering operational, financial, and
environmental, social and governance reviews of the Company,
as well as special reviews of areas of concern identified by
Management, to senior management. Internal audit reports,
including audit findings and recommendations, are prepared for
the Audit Committee’s review and discussion from time to time.

Risk Management

Our risk management process is embedded in our daily
operations, financial activities, compliance, strategy development
and business planning, investment decision and external factors.
The process used by the Company to identify, evaluate and
manage significant risks is summarized as follows:

Risk Identification

Identifying the risks that may have a potential impact on the
Group's business and operations.

Risk Evaluation

Evaluating the identified risks based on the likelihood of
occurrence and the impact level of each risk;
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Risk Treatment

Based on the evaluation results regarding the magnitude of the
risks, determining the risk management strategies and internal
control processes to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks, along
with performing ongoing monitoring of each risk, and reporting
to the Audit Committee regularly.

Internal Control

The internal control system consists of a set of rules, policies and
procedures, and organizational structures, which aims to:

e ensure that corporate strategies are properly implemented;
e achieve effective and efficient corporate processes;
e safeguard the value of corporate assets;

e ensure the reliability and integrity of accounting and
management data; and

e ensure that business operations comply with laws, rules,
policies and regulations.

Review of Risk Management and Internal Control, and
Corporate Governance Compliance

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has concluded a
review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems for the year ended 31 December
2024. This review covered all material financial, operational,
compliance controls and risk management functions, leading to
the conclusion that such systems were effective and adequate.
In addition, the Audit Committee also reviewed the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff, and the
training programs and budget for the Company’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting function, as well as those
relating to the Company’s environmental, social and governance
performance and reporting. During the year, the Audit
Committee was not informed of any audit findings that indicated
material weaknesses in either the internal control system or the
risk management system.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

PROCEDURES FOR HANDLING AND
DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

With a view to identifying, handling and disseminating inside
information in compliance with the Listing Rules, the SFO and
other regulatory requirements, the Company has adopted
a policy on the disclosure of inside information (the “Inside
Information Disclosure Policy”) to regulate procedures and
internal controls for handling of inside information. The Directors
and senior management of the Company are obliged to take all
reasonable measures stipulated in the said policy to ensure that
proper safeguards exist to prevent the Company from breaching
statutory disclosure requirement. The Inside Information
Disclosure Policy covers the following:

e setting out the processes for identifying and assessing
potential inside information and convening a Board meeting
to consider and discuss potential inside information;

e setting out the responsibilities of officers in preserving the
confidentiality of inside information; and

e identifying who the Company’s authorized spokespersons
are and their responsibilities for communications with the
stakeholders of the Company.

The Board considers that the Company's existing measures
and compliance mechanisms are effective and appropriate to
safeguard the Company and its officers in discharging their
disclosure obligations regarding inside information.

Whistleblowing Policy

A whistleblowing policy of the Company has been adopted
to allow employees and those who deal with the Company
(e.g. customers and suppliers) to raise concerns, in confidence,
with the Audit Committee about possible improprieties in any
matters related to the Company.

Anti-corruption and Bribery Policy

An anti-corruption and bribery policy of the Company has been
adopted to provide information and guidance to all employees
of the Group on how to recognize and deal with corruption and
bribery, and to prevent corruption and bribery in any business
dealings.
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RESPONSIBILITY FOR PREPARATION AND
REPORTING OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting and
financial reporting standards. This ensures that the presentation
of these financial statements is free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error. The Directors will, subject to
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards,
select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently,
make prudent, fair and reasonable judgments and estimates and
prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

An analysis of remuneration in respect of audit and non-audit
services provided by the external auditors to the Group during
the year is as follows:

AR ZBRMBHRRZEME

EENERSFEEIRBEECERNER
SRV BHREERNRRASELE S M
WER - AEREFHHERER TS EKAF K
MmO RBEAERRA - EFHZFH R
AEBRRERA G ERT EELE
BERAEMNEABR FHEER AFR
BEZHABMGE IRFSELEERER
BB TS K o

SMEEAZ B AT BN &

BRINEZBEINAFEARASEBEREHE
ZHEIGFRERGAEMEN DT

Fee paid/payable
e/ ENER

HK$'000
FET

Services rendered T 1 £ AR 7%
Audit services ZH AR 2,260
Non-audit services IEAZ RS 50
Total = 2,310

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Wong Lai Tong acts as the sole company secretary of the
Company. She is a full-time employee of the Company and
reports to the chairman and/or chief executive officer. During
the year, she has duly complied with the relevant professional
training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Company encourages Shareholders to actively attend annual
general meeting and other general meetings, so as to directly
communicate with them.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

At the annual general meeting, the chairman of the Board (who
is also the chairman of the annual general meeting) provided an
explanation of the detailed procedures for conducting a poll and
answered any questions from Shareholders on voting by poll.
Moreover, the chairman of each of the Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee were present
and addressed any questions from attending Shareholders. The
external auditors also attended the said meeting to answer
questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and
content of the auditors’ report, the accounting policies and
auditors’ independence.

Furthermore, the Company provides information in its annual
reports, interim reports, and announcements. All Shareholders’
communications are also available on the Company’s website at
http://www.cosmel.com.

Convening of a General Meeting

Pursuant to Section 566 of the Companies Ordinance,
Shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total voting rights
of all Shareholders having a right to vote at general meetings
can request the Directors to call a general meeting. The request
must state the general nature of the business to be dealt with
at the general meeting and may include the text of a resolution
that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the
meeting. Such request must be authenticated by the person(s)
making it and sent to the Company in hard copy form at its
registered office, or in electronic form to ir@cosmel.com for the
attention of the company secretary.

Shareholders’ Power to Request Circulation of Statement

Pursuant to Section 580 of the Companies Ordinance,
Shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all Shareholders or at least 50 Shareholders who have
a relevant right to vote at a general meeting, may request the
Company to circulate to the Shareholders entitled to receive
notice of a general meeting, a statement of not more than
1,000 words with respect to a matter mentioned in a proposed
resolution or other business to be dealt with at that meeting.
The request must (i) identify the statement to be circulated,
(ii) be authenticated by the person(s) making it; and (iii) be sent
to the Company in hard copy form at its registered office, or
in electronic form to ir@cosmel.com for the attention of the
company secretary at least 7 days before the meeting to which it
relates.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward Proposals at an
Annual General Meeting

Pursuant to Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance,
Shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all Shareholders who have a right to vote on the
resolution at the annual general meeting, or at least 50
Shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution at the
annual general meeting to which the requests relate, may request
the Company to give, to the Shareholders entitled to receive
notice of the annual general meeting, notice of a resolution
that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at
that meeting. The request must (i) identify the resolution of
which notice is to be given; (ii) be authenticated by the person(s)
making it; and (iii) be sent to the Company in hard copy form at
its registered office, or in electronic form to ir@cosmel.com for
the attention of the company secretary not later than 6 weeks
before the annual general meeting to which the requests relate;
or if later, the time at which notice is given.

Shareholders’ Communication Policy

A shareholders’ communication policy of the Company was
revised on 20 December 2024. It provided various channels for
Shareholders to express their views thereby facilitating effective
communication with them. Shareholders and other stakeholders
can read the said policy on the Company’s website for details.

The Board reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
said policy annually and is of the view that the implementation
of the said policy is satisfactory and effective during the year.

Procedure for Shareholders and Other Stakeholders to Send
Enquiries and Concerns to the Board

Shareholders and other stakeholders are invited to access the
Company’s website at http://www.cosmel.com for up-to-date
information of the Company. They are advised to send enquires
and concerns to the Board:

(i) by post at the registered office of the Company; or

(ii) by email to ir@cosmel.com; and

for the attention of the company secretary.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

DIVIDEND POLICY

A dividend policy of the Company (the “Dividend Policy”) has
been adopted, which sets out the factors for determining the
dividend payment of the Company and the frequency and form
of those payments. It is subject to updates and amendments from
time to time in accordance with the Articles, the Hong Kong law,
including the Companies Ordinance, and the Listing Rules.

In accordance with the Dividend Policy, the Board may, at its
absolute discretion, declare and pay an interim dividend, and
also make recommendation for the declaration and payment of
a final dividend to the Shareholders who are entitled to receive
the dividend, subject to the approval by the Shareholders at
the annual general meeting of the Company. The Board may
recommend the declaration and payment of a special dividend
under special circumstances.

When considering the decision on dividend declaration, the
Board will take into account, among other things, the following
factors:

(i)  financial performance and financial conditions of the Group;
(i) cash flows position of the Group;

(iii) capital requirements for business plans of the Group;

(iv) investment opportunities available to the Group;

(v) borrowing capacity of the Company so as to capture any
growth opportunities;

(vi) expected commitment of the research and development on
new products and technology; and

(vii) future outlook of the macro economic environment that
have an impact on the business or financial performance
and position of the Group.

The dividend shall be paid in the form of (i) cash; or (ii) a scrip
dividend; or (iii) a combination of partly in (i) and partly in (ii)
above.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year, there is no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.

EXER®RSE (&)

IR B BUR

ARREHEMEEBR ([RERK]) &
PAEEARAKMNEENEE A EKRE
SO REELA -BREBRKRARE (E
BAR) BFRZXR (B (RAEH) )
KR AEMRAD) TEEHRERT -

RERERK EF@ATREBHHIG®
BREERM PSS EARREERR
BRI BB BIRE IR MR R E
ARRERARBRREAFAG LHE-
EFEETAURERKRBR TREZAE IR &K
SRS

EAEERERRER BT R (H
REE)LNTEER:

() AEBE2HBRE R BARR:

(i) AKBEZ2RER:

(i) NEBEBE 2 EARAE:

(iv) REBZREKS

(v) ARBEZEE RS AIE E b 18 & #

=

=

(vi) TEHIFT 305 3% 80 2 om M Bl e A
K

(vii) HZBRBEAZARRE BAKEHN
EBRVBERENMRNRELEZZE -

B SR LAG) R & ¢ (i) AR R+ 2 (i)
iz E5I()EEEB MR L) BZHEA

&b
o

AEBERX M

WA R A B B A T X 3
EAED -

—ZE-MEEIK Annual Report 2024 65



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R HERERKRS

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Cosmos Machinery Enterprises Limited (the “Company”
or “Cosmos Machinery”; together with its subsidiaries,
collectively the “Group”) publishes its environmental, social
and governance (the "ESG") report (the “Report”) for the year
ended 31 December 2024. The Report expounds the Group's ESG
management strategies and performance in 2024.

Reporting Scope

The Report sets out the ESG information and data for the year
ended 31 December 2024. The Group is principally engaged
in the manufacturing of machinery. In line with ESG reporting
guidelines, the Company focuses on disclosing information that
is material to our sustainability goals and governance practices.
While we do not provide detailed financial segment reporting in
our ESG report, we highlight key achievements and challenges
across our operations that are relevant to our ESG objectives. This
approach ensures transparency and alignment with global ESG
reporting standards, without unnecessarily disclosing detailed
financial information for non-reportable segments. Hence, the
Report covers the Group’s segment/subsidiaries below:

(i) headquarters in Hong Kong (“Hong Kong Headquarters”);

(i) injection molding machine manufacturing business
(the “IMM Business”), including Donghua Machinery
Ltd. (“Donghua Machinery”) in Dongguan and Cosmos
Machinery Technology (Jiangsu) Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu
Machinery”) in Wuxi; and

(iii) extrusion lines, rubber injection molding machines and
hydraulic press manufacturing business (the “Extrusion
Machine Business”), including Dekuma Rubber and Plastic
Technology (Dongguan) Ltd. (“Dekuma”) in Dongguan.

Reporting Standards

The Report has been prepared in accordance with all mandatory
disclosure requirements and the “comply or explain” provisions
as set out in the ESG Reporting Guide (the "ESG Reporting
Guide”, renamed as the ESG Reporting Code with effect from
1 January 2025) of Appendix C2 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the "“Stock Exchange”) for the purpose of providing our
investors and stakeholders with comprehensive and comparative
non-financial information. The figures of 2024 and 2023 have
not been assured by any independent third party.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

The below four reporting principles outlined in the ESG Reporting
Guide formed the backbone of the Report:

Materiality

To determine the focus of the Report, materiality assessment
was conducted through stakeholder engagement to identify the
material issues of our core business units.

Quantitative

Environmental and social responsibility data were collected from
core business units to evaluate and validate the effectiveness
of our environmental and social responsibility initiatives and
management systems.

Balance

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the
Company reviewed the Report and confirmed there were no
omissions of any information related to material ESG topics. The
Report was prepared without bias.

Consistency

The Report adopted consistent methodologies to allow a fair
comparison of our performance over time. Where applicable,
we disclosed the changes in the methods or key performance
indicators (“KPIs”) used.

In addition, reference has been made to international standards
or guidelines in preparation of the Report. The scopes of
emissions and their emission factors are defined in accordance
with the Hong Kong and international reporting frameworks
published as shown below and retrieved from relevant websites:

e The Hong Kong Environmental Protection Department’s (the
"EPD") Vehicle Emission Calculation model;

e  Guidelines to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas
("GHG") Emissions and Removals for Buildings (Commercial,
Residential or Institutional Purposes) in Hong Kong (2010
Edition) published by the EPD and the Hong Kong Electrical
and Mechanical Services Department (the “"EMSD");

e 2006 IPCC Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas
Inventories and Fifth Synthesis Report (2014) published
by the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (the
“IPCC");

° 2024 ESG Databook of CLP Holdings Limited,;
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RE dE@REARE (F)

2022/23 Annual Report of Hong Kong Water Supplies
Department;

The national grid average emission factor in 2022 provided
by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the People’s
Republic of China (the “"PRC") in the Notice on Doing a
Good Job in 2023-2025 Reporting and Management of
Greenhouse Gas Emissions of Power Generation Enterprises
( (B 1272023 —2025F H BT B X R E R B BERER
EEEABMIEMBA) )and the Guide to Calculating
and Reporting Greenhouse Gas Emission in Industry and
Other Sectors (Trial) issued by the National Development and
Reform Commission of the PRC;

The International Civil Aviation Organization (the "ICAQ")
Carbon Emissions Calculators;

Energy Statistics Manual issued by the International Energy
Agency; and

How to prepare an ESG report, Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs, published by the Stock
Exchange on 31 December 2024.

Contact Us

If there are any comments or suggestions relating to the Report,
please share by post or email at the addresses as below:

Postal address:

E-mail address:

10th Floor, Billion Plaza 2
No. 10 Cheung Yue Street
Cheung Sha Wan
Kowloon, Hong Kong

ir@cosmel.com

The Report can be downloaded from the websites of the
Company at http://www.cosmel.com and the Stock Exchange at
https://www.hkexnews.hk.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE -HERERERSE (H)

ESG Reporting Structure and Responsibilities RE HEREARERBNRE
Parties Responsibilities
2H7 BE
The Board e Monitor corporate governance practices and procedures
e ERPEEREHRLIET

Company Secretarial Department,
Compliance Department and
Human Resources and
Administration Department
RAMER - EHRBRANERR
1T EB

ESG Working Group
R -negkERIEA

Principal business units/
subsidiaries

BEEBEL /B

e Maintain appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems of the Group to ensure compliance with applicable
rules and regulations
HRAEENRRERELRABEZERGEE RNAER UERETE
FA 9 #52 BI) K2 45 1

e  Review and approve the ESG report
HHWHAERE HERERME

e  Review the principles regarding ESG
EHEHRE g kEBHRE

e Monitor the progress on ESG and community engagement
programs
ERRE de@lkEOMER2EAIER

e Ensure good corporate governance standards and practices are
maintained

RER RENEXEERTEME R

e  Prepare the ESG report
%ﬂ%iﬁiﬁ N Ti@& B /|:| -?Fﬁ/_t

e  Prepare a list of key internal and external stakeholders, and identify
their main concerns and expectations
RE—DEENAIMINBIFNEBE  AHRIMFINEZREAM
HiE

e Input, collect and analyze data, and compute all relevant KPIs

WA WEMDTEIR - ARG EEEEERERIER

e Organize and implement community engagement programs
EBMNE LR 2 TS

e  Collect ESG related data and input data
WEIRE & MEAEEEUE M E A BUR

e  Formulate, improve and implement ESG related aspects policies/
guidelines/procedures

HIET  EEMEMRAMRE L RER/TENEE 1l EF
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RE dE@REARE (F)

Statement of the Board

The Company attaches great importance to sustainable
development. The Board has established an effective ESG
management mechanism to form an ESG governance structure
with a clear hierarchy.

The Group is committed to protecting environment, contributing
to society, maintaining high standards of corporate governance
proactively, and complying with relevant laws, rules and
regulations in Hong Kong and Mainland China where it primarily
operates its businesses. The Board is accountable for formulating
our ESG strategies (including evaluating, prioritizing and
managing our material ESG-related issues) and approving the
ESG report, as well as overseeing and managing our ESG-related
performance and risks, with the assistance of the ESG Working
Group, in order to ensure the Group’s operations in compliance
with the relevant ESG policies as well as applicable laws, rules
and regulations.

As climate change continues to intensify, with global warming
and extreme weather occur frequently, we take active actions
to address global environmental challenges. We continue to
develop more environmentally friendly and energy efficiency
products, such as electric and hybrid injection molding
machines. Additionally, we have actively promoted corporate
digital transformation by introducing an enterprise intelligent
collaboration platform, which not only establishes an efficient
communication channel for team collaboration and enhances
convenience and productivity but also reduces paper usage in the
office.

We always care about the diverse developments of our
employees. In addition to offering various training courses to
enhance their knowledge, we also organize different events, such
as festive season celebrations, to strengthen relationships among
employees.

In 2024, the Board has reviewed and assessed the material
ESG-related issues, and has discussed, reviewed and confirmed
the ESG work for this year. The Report has been reviewed and
approved by the Board.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

We truly believe that feedback from our stakeholders could help
navigate towards sustainable development, and we are dedicated
to build long-term relationships of mutual trust with them
through various internal and external communication channels to
ensure our business has an agile response to their suggestions.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

We identify any individuals or entities having significant interests
in principal activities of the Group as our stakeholders. These
stakeholders are classified as shareholders, employees, customers,
suppliers, governments and regulators, banks and financial
institutions, and communities. We engage with stakeholders
through communication channels categorized as follows:

Stakeholder category
B4 &85

Communication channels

BERE

RE dHE8RELRE (&)

> i

o0
e

B 35

0 S ot 3 5
gy

=7
o
o
o
=@
—m
\|

w

Shareholders

B3R

Employees
B8

Customers
BP

Suppliers
fem

Government and regulators

BT R EEHE

Banks and financial institutions

RIILEREE

Communities

gl

Emails, telephone calls and postal correspondence

BEE BRREM

Company website

NSESY!

Annual general meeting and general meetings
BRRBFAEMBRAE

Annual and interim reports

FHREPHERE

Circulars, announcements, notices and publications
BE-RE-BERTY

Investor relations enquiries

REEBEREH

Annual appraisals

FEZ

Trainings

5l

Department heads communicating with their subordinates
HAFERATEER

Company internal notices and communications
NAAE @S R

Team building activities

BBGER

Face-to-face and virtual meetings and visits
BEERELMERSELRD

Day-to-day communications via frontline staff
BBRRESNBEEER

Industry exhibitions

ERRE

Customer service hotlines and emails
EFRBREREE

Feedbacks on product quality and service from time to time
TRAREMSEMRBEHRE

Emails, telephone calls and postal correspondence

BR -FERGMH

Face-to-face and virtual meetings and visits
BEEMERSEKRKD

Assessment of their product quality, delivery date and price provided
EREREMNEREE XEHRER

Emails, telephone calls and postal correspondence

BE - FAEREMN

Face-to-face and virtual meetings and visits
BENEREGE KRS

Reports and submissions pursuant to regulatory requirements
BRREEATERBERREREN

Emails, telephone calls and postal correspondence

BR FEREGMH

Face-to-face and virtual meetings and visits
BEEMERSEKRKD

Community activities, charity works, voluntary services and social media

HEEE AEE & TR KA RRE
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AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Materiality Assessment BEEMTME

The Group has carried out a number of stakeholder engagement AEBR -_T - NFHEHTZEFHESHE
plans and updated the materiality assessment in 2024 to BT HEFEHEZUHFH #MRAEEZE
determine the importance of issues and prioritize them. BHNEZREIWEEMBEEERF -

72

Importance to Stakeholders

HENENEEY

Cosmos Machinery - Materiality Matrix

REHEE -—EEMERE

=18 LR

High Priority

Low Priority 1&{& 5%t 4% Bl

Low Priority 1& & 5 &% Bl High Priority =8 & & Bl

Importance to Cosmos Machinery

HAEEMNWERM
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

The Group reviews the material issues regularly and a stakeholder
survey has been conducted to seek stakeholders’ feedback on
the level of materiality of the issues. The materiality assessment
was updated in 2024 and a materiality matrix was created based
on the results of stakeholder survey. Material issues related to the
Group's businesses and daily operations have been prioritized.
Their materiality to stakeholders and the Group is shown below:

RE dHE8RELRE (&)

AEBETHRNEERE LEETHN
ETMERAE RERFNEUTZBREEN
RBENER - R-_Z-_WF HKMEFTE
ZUFE REFHERNSAETEREE
PREEEREE W HIERAEEER K
BEEENMSEERENELERT Ut
FRBHFDERASENEZ RS AW

Aspect

Air pollutants emission
Greenhouse gas emission
Hazardous waste
Non-hazardous waste

Energy consumption

Water consumption

Packaging consumption

Other impacts on environment

‘© BEC ~ BOIN V7 el W R —

Climate change

10.  Employment

11.  Occupational health and safety
12. Vocational training

13.  Child labour and forced labour

14.  Supply chain management
15.  Product safety

16.  Customer satisfaction

17.  Intellectual property

18.  Quality of products

19.  Data protection and privacy

T
Level of Impact within Impact outside
Materiality the Group the Group
& BEEMEE HAKERANEE HEAKEIMNY
 Envionmental  ®E
BRI n #
=R !
BEREY m w* b 4
FEZEY !
BLIRH e m w w
FEK !
BEFEM !
HIRB 2 B & !
RIRE !
Cosedal o EE
1R m W e
BRERRZ2 m * S
B m ) 4 ) 4
BT RAEHET !
~ Openating practices  ®mE®&H
HERER n *
EmRR n D
EFWEE n b 4
HBERE !
EmEE m w *
ERREMTLR !
R&ESEHI RBREF !

20.  Anti-corruption practices and
whistleblowing procedures

21, Community investment

HERE !
! Low 1K 11 Medium & 1 High®
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RE dE@REARE (F)

ENVIRONMENT

The Group is committed to proactively protecting the
environment and complying with relevant environmental laws,
rules and regulations in Hong Kong and Mainland China where
it primarily operates its businesses. We have implemented proper
measures to reduce wastes and GHG emissions in our production
plants in Mainland China and our office in Hong Kong to use
energy and resources wisely. Employees have been nurtured and
encouraged to develop energy and environmental awareness.

EMISSIONS

We consistently and rigorously monitor and control the wastes,
GHG and sewage generated from the production process,
ensuring that all are disposed of, emitted and discharged within
the environmental laws, ordinances and rules and regulations
applicable to the areas in which our production plants and offices
are located. These laws, ordinances and rules and regulations
include but not limited to the Environmental Protection Law of
the PRC, Environmental Protection Tax Law of the PRC, Law of
the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution,
Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control of Water Pollution,
Law of the PRC on Promotion of Cleaner Production, Waste
Disposal Ordinance (Chapter 354 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
Product Eco-responsibility Ordinance (Chapter 603 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), Environmental Quality Standards for Surface Water,
Wastewater Quality Standards for Discharge to Municipal Sewers,
Measures for the Administration of Permit for Operation of
Hazardous Wastes and Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control
of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste.

These environmental laws will impact the Group's operations. If
we do not properly dispose of all wastes, discharge sewage and
emit waste gases, we might incur heavy environmental protection
tax, thereby increasing the cost of disposal of wastes.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Climate Risk and Action Plan

The whole world is frequently experiencing extreme weather
and other impacts of climate change. In response, governments
around the globe have set targets to reduce the environmental
effect of climate change. Climate change significantly affects
our business operations. Rising temperature may lead to higher
electricity consumption for cooling, while extreme weather
such as storms and floods may result in financial loss and cause
physical damage to the infrastructure of our production plants.

We have deployed resources to address the continuous
increase in GHG emissions that are intensifying global warming
and climate change. Both Jiangsu Machinery and Donghua
Machinery installed a solar photovoltaic system on the roof
of the production plants, which aims to reduce our demand
for purchased electricity and indirect emissions, protecting the
environment and contributing to sustainable development.
Nevertheless, in view of the increase in production volume for
the IMM Business and the Extrusion Machine Business in 2024,
electricity consumption also increased as compared to last year.

In 2024, Donghua Machinery rebuilt the painting workshop in
plant no. 3 to ensure that all emissions discharged from the
workshop complied the standards and requirements set by the
PRC environmental regulatory authority.

Donghua Machinery and Jiangsu Machinery fully utilize
waterborne paint to replace oil-based paint, thereby reducing
the emission of Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs). However,
to comply with the emission requirement of the Dongguan
Environmental Protection Bureau, which stipulate that spraying
paint must be done in a confined space throughout the process,
Donghua Machinery and Dekuma changed from air drying to
natural gas for paint drying since 2022. In 2024, the practice
of paint drying to optimize the use of natural gas has been
improved thus consumption decreased by 5.69% as compared to
last year.

In 2024, Dekuma has installed a cooling spray system on the roof
of its production plant to reduce the plant's temperature, thereby
its water consumption sharply increased as compared to last
year. However, the decrease in total water consumption intensity
reflects the Group's achievements in water resource management,
establishing a stable foundation for our operations. This allows
us to focus on other sustainability goals while ensuring the
sustainable use of water resources. As the Group continues to
prioritize environmental responsibility, we can allocate resources
to other areas such as enhancing energy efficiency and reducing
GHG emissions.

RE dHE8RELRE (&)
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RE dE@REARE (F)

Details of the air pollutant emissions and GHG emissions are set
out in the headings of “Air Emissions” and “GHG Emissions” of
the Report, respectively.

Sewage Discharge Management

The Group rigorously complies with the Environmental Quality
Standards for Surface Water and Wastewater Quality Standards
for Discharge to Municipal Sewers of the PRC to discharge
sewage to sewer. To reduce water consumption, a sewage
recycling and treatment system was installed in the painting
workshop at both Donghua Machinery and Jiangsu Machinery.
During the spraying process, we use water for paint stains
removal, the system then separates water from those paint
stains. Water will be replaced upon recycling and reuse several
times to keep the tanks and pumps of the paint booths clean.
Furthermore, Jiangsu Machinery installed a sewage treatment
equipment in the sewage recycling system for removal of
foaming substances during sewage treatment, to reduce sewage
generation. However, it has undergone cleaning of circulating
pool in 2024. Thus, industrial sewage substantially increased as
compared to last year.

We engaged qualified wastewater treatment enterprises to
properly treat industrial sewage, and regularly engage local
certification bodies, which detect the pH value, chemical
oxygen demand (COD), ammonia nitrogen, total phosphorus,
total nitrogen, etc. of industrial sewage discharges to ensure
compliance with the standards set by the PRC environmental
regulatory authority.

Details of industrial sewage are illustrated in the heading of
“Hazardous and Non-hazardous Wastes” of the Report.

Waste Management

We have formulated a waste treatment procedure to collect,
store and dispose of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
generated in production process. We report information on
the generation, storage, transfer, utilization and disposal of
hazardous wastes to the hazardous wastes monitoring and
control system established by the government in a timely manner
and also engaged qualified waste disposal enterprises to dispose
of hazardous wastes properly, in accordance with the Measures
for the Management of Transfer of Hazardous Waste ( (/&% &
YEREIRIE) ) and the Law of the PRC on Prevention and
Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste. Most non-
hazardous wastes, including kitchen wastes, are handled by
recycling enterprises for recycling and reuse.

Details in respect of the disposal of hazardous and non-hazardous

wastes are illustrated in the heading of “Hazardous and Non-
hazardous Wastes” of the Report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Air Emissions

The air pollutant emissions” for Hong Kong Headquarters, the
IMM Business and the Extrusion Machine Business for the years
ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 is as follows:

RE dHE8RELRE (&)

BESRBE

BHE_-F% @i&_y__i-i- A
St-BULEE FEED TBREBR
ﬁ&%%%ﬁ@%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁtﬁ&%mﬁﬂt=

Unit: kg

Ef T 2024 2023
Sulphur oxides (SO,) meEfly (Z&h) 0.76 0.69
Nitrogen oxides (NO,) p=R (e 240.88 231.67
Respiratory suspended particles (RSP) BTN 20.47 19.61
Total air pollutants ERITRMEE 262.10 251.96

(1) The air pollutant emissions was generated from petrol
and diesel fuel combustion in vehicles and forklifts, and
calculated with emission factors as provided in “How to
prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance
on Environmental KPIs” published by the Stock Exchange.

(2) In 2024, the IMM Business and the Extrusion Machine
Business, in line with the marketing strategy, experienced
a notable increase in the frequency of business travel
and customer visits, which led to higher vehicle usage.
Consequently, mileage and fuel consumption rose by 7.66%
and 6.72%, respectively, compared to last year. Additionally,
the production volume of both businesses increased,
resulting in greater forklift usage, with diesel forklift fuel
consumption climbing by 14.08% compared to last year.
Therefore, the total air pollutant emissions in 2024 has
hence increased 4.02% as compared to last year.

(1) ZRSEMBEMETIETEMYEE
FAamREmATES WKRBE M
EH (MW EBRE g REBR
-8 = IRIE B R B B IR E R
Bal) 2HNAREFE

(2) RZZE_WF TP EERRE LK
X¥EBBELSHEER IBETNERP
HFoWBELEERS FERERE
Em-THERNMRBEERE 9Bt
EFEHT7.66%M6.72% ° B M
BEEBNESMEEMN FXEFE
REZMN LhXNENKMFERELL
EFEAHT14.08% cFH It —F — 1
FHERSEAVRERNELEF EFH
4.02% o
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE -HE8RERHRE (K)

N
ym =

GHG Emissions

The GHG emissions” for Hong Kong Headquarters, the IMM

BHE_Z_OFE K=

RN
—=Z%+=A8

%?
vd
A

Business and the Extrusion Machine Business for the years ended Z=+—HItFE HEQI FTHEEEBL R

31 December 2024 and 2023 are as follows: BEEEBORERBEREONT
Unit: tCO, e
B W _SinEE 2024 2023
Scope 1 Direct GHG emissions®? HE-EZRERBINE? 277.63 273.10
Scope 2 Energy indirect GHG emissions® &&= gt REELEREHE RS 4,414.95 3,837.59
Scope 3 Other indirect GHG emissions® — #E = EfEEAEREHERE® 168.30 156.97
Total GHG emissions (Scopes 1+2+3) BERBHKMEAE (EE—+=+=) 4,860.88 4,267.66

GHG emissions were calculated based on Guidelines to (1)
Account for and Report on GHG Emissions and Removals for
Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional Purposes)
in Hong Kong (2010 Edition) published by the EPD and

EMSD, unless otherwise stated.

(1

Scope 1 emissions comprise vehicle fleet that runs on petrol
and diesel, forklifts that runs on diesel, natural gas, as well
as HFC and PFC refrigerants, and were calculated with
reference to emission factors as stated in the 2006 IPCC
Guidelines for National GHG Inventories and Fifth Synthesis
Report (2014) published by the IPCC.

Scope 2 emissions were generated from the purchased
electricity consumption and calculated with reference to
emission factors as stated in 2024 ESG Databook of CLP
Holdings Limited, and the average emission factor of the
national grid in 2022 as provided by the Ministry of Ecology
and Environment of the PRC in the Notice on Doing a Good
Job in 2023-2025 Reporting and Management Greenhouse
Gas Emissions of Power Generation Enterprises ( R i 4f
20232025 HBITXCERERBHMNREEEEHT
TEEBAD) ) .
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Scope 3 emissions covered paper consumption, water
consumption and carbons emissions from business travel by
air, and were calculated with reference to emission factors
as stated in 2022/23 Annual Report of Hong Kong Water
Supplies Department, 2024 ESG Databook of CLP Holdings
Limited and ICAO, and the average emission factor of
the national grid in 2022 as provided by the Ministry of
Ecology and Environment of the PRC in the Notice on Doing
a Good Job in 2023-2025 Reporting and Management of
Greenhouse Gas Emissions of Power Generation Enterprises
( (AR M1F2023-2025F B BT ECE R ERBE NSRS
EBREMIENBA) ).

Emissions from our fleet only include employees and
customers transportation as we do not have our own fleet
to transport/deliver our products to customers of the IMM
Business and the Extrusion Machine Business.

GHG emissions from electricity purchased were calculated
with reference to the average emission factor of the national
grid in 2022 as provided by the Ministry of Ecology and
Environment of the PRC in the Notice on Doing a Good Job
in 2023-2025 Reporting and Management of Greenhouse
Gas Emissions of Power Generation Enterprises ( B8R i 4F
20232025 HEBTE X RAERBENBREERFHEL
fEEVBA) ) .

Total GHG emissions in 2024 increased by 13.90% as
compared to last year. The reason of the increase was
primary attributable to the purchased electricity consumption
in 2024 of the IMM Business and the Extrusion Machine
Business increased significantly as compared to last year,
details of which are set out in the heading of “Climate Risk
and Action Plan” of the Report.

(4)

(5)
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RE dERELAHRE (&)

Measures have been taken to Mitigate Emissions and
Energy Use and Increase Water Efficiency Initiatives, and
Results Achieved

We have implemented a number of energy-saving measures,
such as using energy-efficient equipment to reduce electricity
consumption in offices and production plants. Water-saving tips
have also been provided in our production plants’ kitchens and
lavatories to achieve energy savings and emission reductions. The
following actions have also been taken for the efficient use of
resources:

(1) Using waterborne paint for replacement of oil-based paint
to reduce production of activated charcoal and release of
VOCs in the production process of the IMM Business;

(2) Replacing high-volume low-pressure spray guns to improve
the paint transmission efficiency;

(3) Installing VOC monitoring and treatment facilities at our
production plants;

(4) Utilizing an Enterprise Resource Planning (“ERP") system and
an Enterprise Intelligent Collaboration Platform to achieve
paperless office;

(5) Implementing a solar photovoltaic system for on-site power
generation to reduce carbon emission;

(6) Delivering products with minimal packaging;

(7) Gradually replacing diesel forklifts with electric forklifts; and

(8) Launching more energy-efficient products.

The Group has also implemented energy-saving measures in
offices as stated in the heading of “The Environment and Natural
Resources” of the Report. The total water consumption of Hong
Kong Headquarters has decreased for six consecutive years
contributing by our colleagues’ hard work and dedication.

We have successfully achieved our target of reducing our energy
consumption intensity by 2% by 2024, compared to the 2019
baseline. The total energy consumption intensity in 2019 was
50.93 GJ per HK$ million sales, and by 2024, it had decreased to
37.75 GJ per HK$ million sales. This accomplishment is a result of
years of effective energy-saving measures. Moving forward, we
are setting new targets. By 2030, we aim to reduce our energy
consumption intensity by 5% and our GHG emissions intensity
by 5%, both compared to the 2024 baseline. To support these
goals, we plan to replace old fuel vehicles and forklifts with
hybrid and/or electric vehicles and electric forklifts gradually,
which are expected to reduce fuel usage. Additionally, both
Donghua Machinery and Jiangsu Machinery have installed solar
photovoltaic systems, which should decrease our reliance on
purchased electricity.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE -HERERERSE (H)

Hazardous and Non-hazardous Wastes EEREEEREY

For the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, no hazardous HE_Z WM& K T - =ZF + = A
waste was produced in Hong Kong Headquarters from, whilethe =+ —HIEFE FHAHA LT EELETM
amount of hazardous waste produced by the IMM Business and B EEY MIEIBEEB L E LR EBFE

the Extrusion Machine Business are as follows: EMBEBEDOT
Unit: tonne
By 2024 2023
Waste oil containers and oil paint containers MR ROm AR R 11.77 8.14
Others (e.g. waste filter, activated charcoal, H i (R @ EAR & 1R 3.55 7.33
waste paint residue and waste rag) R E R EEHR )
Total solid wastes EREENEE 15.32 15.48

Waste oil & 4.40 2.40
Industrial sewage T 5K 245.00 200.00
Total liquid wastes REENEAE 249.40 202.40

(1) The above hazardous wastes are defined in accordance with (1) LFit# B EREW IR E (F BE BE

the National Catalogue of Hazardous Wastes formulated MEAERERRE) BIEN (BERE
by the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of BEYMEE) TE-MBEELANES
Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste. All the hazardous BYaXHeEREEARBMEER
wastes generated were disposed of properly by those B RO HBRENTE-

qualified disposal contractors to mitigate the impact on the
environment.

The circulating pool of Jiangsu Machinery have to be (2) BMMAI&HEWMNR T —_WFE R AB MR

—
N
~

cleaned in May 2024, thus the industrial sewage in 2024 THREKE AT -WFHIE
has increased as compared to last year. EKELLEF N
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RE dERELAHRE (&)

The non-hazardous wastes generated by Hong Kong
Headquarters, the IMM Business and the Extrusion Machine
Business for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 are as
follows:

BE_Z-_HNFER :2:_¢+ A
=+- Etif EBME TPRERR
B IR SR T

Hong Kong Headquarters EBEE
Unit: kg
Bl T 2024 2023@
Paper Waste for recycling® o] g E AR 479 969

(1) Paper wastes for recycling included shredded paper and old
newspapers.

(2) The disclosed figure was incorrect in 2023 report and revised
in the Report.

(1) EURER BN ERA -

2) T _="FREBBEZHEHR X
RAREREL

The IMM Business and the Extrusion Machine Business L EY Y e EY

Unit: tonne

=gy 2024 20239
Paper wastes BEAR 17.85 14.21
Plastics BB 18.24 15.00
Metallic wastes TEBEY 799.43 650.60
Others wastes H Ay 333.34 206.83
Kitchen wastes & £ 25.00 24.00
Total non-hazardous wastes FEEBYHEE 1,193.86 910.64

(1) The above non-hazardous wastes are defined in accordance
with the National Catalogue of Hazardous Wastes
formulated by the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and
Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste.

(2) Since the production volume of the IMM Business and the
Extrusion Machine Business in 2024 was increased, all non-
hazardous wastes were increased as compared to last year.
Most of the non-hazardous wastes generated were properly
disposed of by those qualified contractors to mitigate the
impact on the environment.

(3) The disclosed figures were incorrect in 2023 report and
revised in the Report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Disposal and Reduction Initiatives of Hazardous and
Nonhazardous Wastes, and Results Achieved

The Group has entered into contracts with qualified disposal
enterprises in respect of the disposal of the waste oil, industrial
sewage, waste paint residue, waste oil containers, waste paint
containers and activated charcoal. These hazardous wastes
generated in production process of the IMM Business and the
Extrusion Machine Business were reported to the hazardous
wastes monitoring and control system established by the
government in a timely manner and disposed of properly by
those qualified disposal enterprises in accordance to the Standard
for Pollution Control on Hazardous Waste Storage regulated in
the PRC. The Group also has entered into contracts with recycling
enterprises in respect of the handling of the non-hazardous
wastes, such as scrapped iron, scrapped cast iron, metal scrap,
scrapped iron and steel, scrapped aluminum sheets, waste wires,
waste plastics and waste wood for recycling or reusing. Hong
Kong Headquarters have arranged the disposal of paper waste
to recycling enterprises for recycling and also disposed of some
computer equipment to the GREEN@COMMUNITY for recycling,
details of which are set out in the heading of “Caring for the
Environment” of the Report.

We did not meet our target of reducing office paper
consumption by 5% by 2024 compared to the 2019 baseline.
Instead, the combined offices of Hong Kong Headquarters,
Donghua Machinery, and Jiangsu Machinery experienced an
increase in paper consumption by 1.31% by 2024 compared
to 2019. Moving forward, we are setting a new goal to reduce
office paper consumption by 8% by 2030, compared to the 2024
baseline. To achieve this goal, we will actively promote corporate
digital transformation, which is expected to significantly
reduce paper usage. Key measures include paperless meetings,
transitioning to digital documentation, and promoting smart
printing practices to minimize unnecessary paper waste.

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group has implemented various measures to reduce the use
of papers, water and electricity consumption in our production
plants and office and has been encouraging employees to have
practices for energy and resources conservation. Details of the
green measures are set out in the heading of “The Environment
and Natural Resources” of the Report.

RE dHE8RELRE (&)
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RE dERELAHRE (&)

Direct and Indirect Energy Consumption

The direct and indirect energy consumption” of Hong Kong
Headquarters, the IMM Business and the Extrusion Machine
Business for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 is as

EERBEEERER

BE_Z_NFR_ZFE-_=ZF+=A
—t+—BHUIEFE BB FTBREBER
BEHMEBHEZENBEZELEREE O R

follows: wmR

Unit: GJ

By FIEH 2024 2023
Petrol fuel — vehicle fleet TR R R — BB 882.42 823.60
Diesel fuel — vehicle fleet 425 PR L — B8 Bk 53.56 53.83
Diesel fuel - forklift LEm AR — X & 864.50 757.80
Natural gas AARR 1,650.80 1,750.34
Electricity® EH 28,109.97 24,423.58
Total energy consumption BERERE 31,561.25 27,809.15

(M

—
N
~

—
w
~

84

Energy consumption was measured based on the data
of consumption of electricity, fuels and gas, and energy
conversion factors had taken reference from Energy Statistics
Manual issued by the International Energy Agency.

The office of Hong Kong Headquarters is co-used with
a wholly-owned subsidiary which engages in industrial
consumables trading business. We consider sub-meter for
individual office is not feasible. Hence, the data of electricity
consumption of Hong Kong Headquarters included that
business.

Total direct and indirect energy consumption in 2024
increased by 13.49% as compared to last year. The reason
for such an increase is illustrated in the heading of “Climate
Risk and Action Plan” of the Report.
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(1)

RREEDKEEN ML RER
RBEFTE MERBBRABKIZE
BFRERE R ME (BERBEFM) -

BARBE-—HRFIXERRZE
FEBHNEZEMBRARARAMRAE-
BPRR/RERIMAED LKL AT
AtBELRTNREEENREERET
A FETS

T oNFEERELAMEEREETR
BEREF FF13.49% « tFAZRER
RAREN [RIERREITETE]EZ



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Water Consumption

The water consumption®” of Hong Kong Headquarters, the IMM
Business and the Extrusion Machine Business for the years ended
31 December 2024 and 2023 is set out as follows:

BRE dERERERE (H)

FEKE

Bz Z_NWFrE_ZT_=Z4+=A
Zt+—HUEFE BEBI TBEREBR
TEHHEEROFERKEOTRT

Unit: m?
By 7 HR 2024 2023
Total water consumption WFEKE 94,123.00 91,497.00

(1

3)

The data of water consumption is quoted by the water
consumed as stated in the bills received.

The office of Hong Kong Headquarters is co-used with
a wholly-owned subsidiary which engages in Industrial
Consumables Trading Business. We consider sub-meter for
individual office is not feasible. Hence, the data of water
consumption of Hong Kong Headquarters included that
business. Also, only the data regarding drinking water was
collected given that the property management office is
responsible for water supply and discharge of in that office.

Total water consumption in 2024 increased by 2.87%
as compared to last year. The reason for such increase is
illustrated in the heading “Climate Risk and Action Plan” of
the Report.

(1)

FEK B BB TH AR IR I B B9 1R BB AT 51 A9
FEKEBEHHE -

BERME-—REEIXEERZE
SEBHNEZEMBRARAKARABOAE-
HARRRERIMAED KL AT
AitEBLTNEKERERET %
B AR MEERRE T ZM
RNEEHOKAMBE K Bt R g W R R
RKZBIE-

T EoNERBEKRKERESE FH
287% FAZRERARERN [ AR
B MTEEE | IZEARM-
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE -HE8RERHRE (K)

Packaging Materials for Finished Products SR m TR EEME

The finished products of the IMM Business and the Extrusion I EBEENEEBNENK RS HN
Machine Business would be packed by stretch films properly, {REZZ8% MEHEEBEHEK RN
and the finished products of the Extrusion Machine Business & MEREEE U@ eEEH BT L
would also be secured with pallets, to avoid any damage during BREMEZ - BE T _-_MEER T - =
transportation. The data of packaging materials for the IMM  F+ - A=+ —BItFE TBHEKMN
Business and the Extrusion Machine Business for the years ended BB EBNBREMHEE S RIZIRMT
31 December 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

The IMM Business JEB R
Unit: tonne
B 2024 2023
Stretch films R 9.33 7.55

The Extrusion Machine Business EHBER
Unit: tonne
B 2024 2023
Carton box ] 1.80 2.00
Stretch films i fef 2.50 2.00

Metallic pallets EEERE 36.00 35.00
Wooden box and wooden pallets REMAFEELE 9.00 10.00
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THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE -HERERERSE (H)

BRERRARER

We are aware that our business would have an impact on the HMBAAEKEPNERSHIIREMKRE
environmental and natural resources. Hence, we must implement JRE#&RFE£ AR MMV BEEEREM
various measures in our production plants and offices to reduce  #¥ A E B g & 8 M AU A Bk 2 B MR
our carbon footprint and environmental impact. Continuing EHEBEZENFE - RMPBEEPR LA EHE
with the idea of “go green” in our offices, we encourage all RERES HMEBEH2EESHFI TR
employees to adopt the following green measures: Y&

Electricity
B

Water
K

Waste
&

Offic

e Equipment

=

7

Air-conditioning
7T I
z=

Others
E A

Energy-saving labels are placed on all electrical appliances and light switches to remind
employees to conserve energy.

ERMEEELEEMBARA LHNEREE REREE LR

All computers are set to auto energy-saving mode.

HEKETERABEEEEERN -

Employees are reminded to switch off all lighting, air conditioning and electrical appliances
before leaving the workplace.

REEEHMHFIEEAIAEMESE THAKRES-

Lighting would be switched off during non-business hours unless needed for safety and security
purposes.

BREZERRZEHIN BRIEIEN AR HANGERERA-

Water saving labels are in place to remind employees not to leave the tap running in the pantry.
SRR RKRE RERE N ERIKE/KERERPRE -

Strengthen the daily maintenance of water supply equipment. Employees should inform Human
Resources and Administration Department to arrange repair for work promptly once water
supply equipment is damaged.

IR KRENEEEE - EE —BEBAMKRBIERE BEREBMANEBERLITRIBL I #
EIRe

Recycling bins are placed in the office to encourage employees to separate recyclables, such as
paper, plastic and metal.

R A ZERE WA SEREDERN R BBREE-

Used envelopes, folders, papers, packaging materials and eco-friendly reusable bags are
collected in recycling bins for reuse.

RECWAHEBEEET XHR -BK BEOYRRREEER-

Employees are encouraged to prioritize purchasing environmental friendly stationery and office
equipment and to stop purchasing items with potential adverse environmental impacts.
SEEEEEARBRANAIPAERH TEREAEEREEENXARBPAEZTRE
Affix “Save Energy” stickers near the main switches as a reminder to employees.
EEXEERMABEMLGR: EEORR] WRE  URESFEHIRTR-

Individual air-conditioner can be adjusted manually to a suitable temperature, with a
recommendation to set the temperature to 24.5°C or above.

BUERETHFOE QBB BB F24.5°C HA L

The last-man-out should switch off the air-conditioning in all areas of the office. Individual
office users should ensure that their air-conditioners are turned off before leaving.
REHRFANAZNEEREENAETMEREMNEH - BILPRAE(EREEERFATRRED
B -

To reduce paper consumption, employees are encouraged to adjust document margins and font
sizes before printing, use double-sided copying, and minimize colour printing.
SEESTER ARG ERNFERNRKAEAMZ DAL BERE  ARFPEEITH -
The Group’s annual and interim reports are printed on environmental friendly (FSC-certified)
paper.

RARR(AMEREZE@RB) Am B AEEFEFRRHPHRE -

Employees should reuse stationery, e.g. paper clips, folders, binders and envelopes.
EESERXA fIAEK  XHR FEERRIES-

Use reusable utensils and refuse to use disposable cups, plates, forks and other utensils.

EAERMSA WERERIENR T BF X FHMHEMER-
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RE dE@REARE (F)

Through implementing the aforementioned measures, we believe
that we can manage the negative impact on the environment and
use resources effectively and efficiently to the greatest extent.
We also continue to improve our environmental performance in
our production process by installing more environmental friendly
equipment.

EMPLOYMENT
Our People and Safety

Guided by our corporate philosophy of “being people-oriented
and pragmatic, and continuous learning”, the Group maintains a
highly-efficient workforce with caring interpersonal relationships.
Providing a safe and pleasant working environment for our staff
and attracting talent are integral to supporting our sustainable
development. As a responsible manufacturer, we actively manage
our supply chain to ensure that our suppliers adhere strictly
to the Group’s sustainable business practices and make every
effort to maintain product quality. In addition to minimizing
environmental impacts, discharging social responsibility is also
one of our commitments. In 2024, the Company continued
to be awarded the 15 Years Plus Caring Company Logo under
the Hong Kong Council of Social Service's Caring Company
Scheme, in recognition of our demonstration of good corporate
citizenship, and “Happy Company” by Promoting Happiness
Index Foundation.

In addition to presenting the Long Service Award to employees
who have served for more than ten years, the Group organizes
the Annual Best Staff Award to recognize and commend
employees who demonstrate excellent performance, a positive
and enthusiastic working attitude, and loyalty and dedication to
their work, as well as to promote employee initiative and foster
a working atmosphere that strives for improvement, enhancing
employees’ sense of belonging to the company.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

In 2024, the Group held employee engagement activities, such as
annual dinners, outreach activities, and basketball and badminton
competitions etc., to provide employees with a colourful and
positive experience outside of work and to build a sense of
belonging, advancing the development of corporate culture.

Celebrating Festive Seasons with Our Employees

We celebrate festive seasons such as Mid-Autumn Festival,
Mother's Day and Father's Day with our employees every year,
by presenting gifts to employees as a token of appreciation for
their hard work throughout the year. In 2024, we arranged a
floral design activity for International Women's Day, to enhance
cultural cultivation and create a warm and harmonious festive
atmosphere.

vanssn||

= wm=ue

Management Systems for the Employees of the Group

The Group has prepared human resources policies, which are
stipulated in employees’ handbooks, notices, and codes of
conduct, within its business units. These policies cover relevant
rules and regulations in respect of compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, and
other benefits and welfare. The rules and regulations set out
in those publications are in line with the applicable laws and
regulations in Hong Kong and the PRC, including the anti-
discrimination ordinances (e.g. Sex Discrimination Ordinance
(Chapter 480 of the Laws of Hong Kong)), Employment
Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Employees’
Compensation Ordinance (Chapter 282 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Chapter 509
of the Laws of Hong Kong), Company Law of the PRC, Labour
Law of the PRC, Labour Contract Law of the PRC, etc.. In 2024,
there was no material breach of or non-compliance with these
applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

RE dHE8RELRE (&)
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RE dE@REARE (F)

Compensation and Dismissal

We have formulated procedures in the employees’ handbooks
to deal with those who violate any regulations set out by the
Group. An oral warning or written warning notice will be given
or immediate dismissal will be imposed on those employees,
depending on the level of severity of each case. Any subsidiary
of the Company should consult with Human Resources and
Administration Department prior to the proposed dismissal of any
employee to ensure compliance with legal requirements. We will
pay sufficient compensation to those employees subject to the
aforementioned laws and regulations.

Working Hours and Rest Periods

The employees’ handbooks and employment contracts state
the working hours for employees. Employees who are required
to work irregular hours or on public holidays are offered
overtime pay and additional compensation as defined in their
job descriptions. The Group has complied with the relevant
employment laws and regulations in respect of working hours
and rest periods in Hong Kong and Mainland China, respectively.

Remuneration Policy

The emoluments of the Directors are determined by the Board
based on the recommendations of the remuneration committee
of the Company, with reference to individual performance,
qualifications and experience of the Directors, the duties and
responsibilities of the Directors in the Company, the Group's
performance and profitability, remuneration benchmark in the
industry and prevailing market condition.

The Group has formulated a remuneration policy of employees.
The remuneration of employees is based on their qualifications,
competence and performance as well as market trends. The
overall remuneration packages, which include discretionary
bonuses, are reviewed annually. In addition to salary payments,
other employee benefits including medical insurance, an
in-patient hospitalization scheme and a defined contribution
provident fund stipulated by State Regulators of the PRC,
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme stipulated by the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) and other retirement scheme or other similar defined
contribution provident fund have been provided as retirement
benefits to employees in Hong Kong and Mainland China. Other
holiday benefits are also provided to the employees in Mainland
China, subject to the Labour Law of the PRC. The Group offers
various leave entitlements, including annual leave, marriage leave,
maternity and paternity leave, bereavement leave, examination
leave, sick leave and injury leave.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Equal Opportunity, Abuse and Harassment, and Recruitment
and Promotion

The Group fosters a diverse and inclusive working environment
and strictly prohibits any discrimination, harassment, victimization
or vilification in terms of age, gender, marital status, pregnancy,
disability, family status or race, nationality or religion for
protection of human rights. Consequently, procedures regarding
recruitment, promotion and retention of talents are implemented
in accordance with the principles of equal opportunity under the
Sex Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter 480 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), Disability Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter 487 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) and Race Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter
602 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Family Status Discrimination
Ordinance (Chapter 527 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Law of the
PRC on the Protection of Rights and Interests of Women and Law
of the PRC on Protection of Disabled Persons.

Moreover, a nomination policy of the Company has been
adopted, which sets out the procedures for the selection,
appointment and re-appointment of Directors. This policy
includes the selection criteria that consider, but not limited to,
the potential contributions a candidate can bring to the Board
in terms of qualifications, skills, experience, independence and
gender diversity.

Personal Data Privacy

The Group respects personal data privacy and is committed
to implementing and complying with the data protection
principles, all relevant provisions of the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the Laws of Hong Kong), and codes
of practice and guidelines issued by the Office of the Privacy
Commissioner for Personal Data, Hong Kong, for collection of
employees’ personal data for the purpose of providing welfare
and compensation, salary payments, performance assessment,
promotion, etc..

Diversity and Gender Mainstreaming

The Board has adopted a Board diversity policy to attract and
retain talented individuals as Board members, primarily to
enhance diversity at the Board level, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and term of office,
as an essential element in supporting the attainment of the
Company's objectives and its sustainable development. A
summary regarding the Board diversity policy and measurable
objectives can refer to the heading of “The Board” of the section
of "Corporate Governance Report” on pages 47 to 48 of this
annual report.
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Total Workforce EEHAY

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and RZ-ZZE-_WNFER-_FT-_=F+=_F=+—
work location of Hong Kong Headquarters, the IMM Business B EE S0  JEPHER LB HEK L
and the Extrusion Machine Business as at 31 December 2024 and 1 75|- EEEA - Fic 5 & TIEH 28] 5

2023 is as follows: HiEE@EMT :
Unit: Number of people m2024 2023
By A%
735 735
704 704 713
681
637
604
427 419

159 163
98 100
0 0 22 23
Total Male Female Full time Part-time 30 or below 31to 50 Over 50 Hong Kong  Mainland China
B z a1 =+EmEAT =t—mER TR ATERMAE B B A3,
By gender By employment type By age group By location
ZIERIED ZIEREEE S RFRARE D BRI 2h81 5
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Employee Turnover Rate

The turnover rate of employee by gender, age group and work
location of Hong Kong Headquarters, the IMM Business and the
Extrusion Machine Business for the years ended 31 December
2024 and 2023 is as follows:

40.98%

14.90%
13.49%

10.34%
8.90%

7.14%
5.00%

8.59%

RE dHE8RELRE (&)

EBERKLER
BE_Z_N&FR-_ZFTE_=ZF+=A
—t+—HUEFE BB FBHREER
P ERIR R FE AR KT E B
ZoHEERKLLENT

m2024 =2023

26.09%

13.07%

9.09%

5.52%

Total turnover Male Female 30 or below 31to 50 Over 50 Hong Kong Mainland China
VS E -4 =FBEAT =t+—mER TR B+ L BB R A
By gender By age group By location
2RSS REHRARIBID BRI 2E D
HEALTH AND SAFETY BRERZZ

Safe workplace practices and occupational health are priority
issues, and we are committed to maintaining a safe, healthy and
productive environment for our employees. We provide orientation
training and ongoing safety training particularly to those working
in workshops and production lines, to raise their awareness of
occupational safety and help mitigate the risk of accidents.

The IMM Business and the Extrusion Machine Business have
formulated various production safety regulations, which provide
clear guidelines for handling personal work injuries and operating
equipment accidents in case of occurrence, managing dangerous
chemicals and operating machines in accordance with the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control
of Occupational Diseases, and Law of the PRC on Work Safety.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RE dE@REARE (F)

A safety production committee comprising of safety officers
has been established to monitor and manage safety initiatives
and prevent work accidents, aiming to estimate and reduce the
risk of occupational diseases. In addition, we have engaged a
professional testing organization to evaluate the occupational
disease hazards at positions with potential risks. This evaluation
includes harmful chemicals, dust, noise, temperature, and the
condition of occupational disease protection facilities. Also, we
arrange occupational health check-ups for employees exposed
to occupational hazards in their daily work to safeguard their
health.

The Group requires employees to take and/or wear full set
personal protective equipment provided by the Group when
handling dangerous chemicals or operating machines to protect
their health and safety. Employees should also check that the
machines and/or equipment are operating properly and safely
before use. All machines and equipment are inspected regularly
to ensure safety.

The Group always prioritizes the safety and health of our
employees and continues to focus on providing production safety
training to raise their awareness of occupational safety. We
have mandated that all new employees in Mainland China must
complete production safety training before taking up their duties.
Employees who have special job duties, such as electricians,
crane operators, welders, forklift operators, etc., must adhere to
the operational safety rules.

In addition to production safety training, the Group organizes
numerous drills every year, including hazardous waste
management, lifting operation safety, forklift operation safety,
general industrial solid waste system and bench fitting skills,
etc., to reinforce employees' crisis awareness. In 2024, three
production plants conducted various drills. Donghua Machinery
actively responded to national workplace safety policies and
in conjunction with its annual safety management plan, it has
organized a series of comprehensive emergency drills. These
drills included simulated responses to production accidents and
fire evacuation exercises, aiming to enhance employee safety
awareness, improve capabilities in handling emergencies, and
effectively safeguard both employee lives and corporate property.
Furthermore, Jiangsu Machinery and Dekuma held fire drill
and fire safety training to ensure employees are equipped with
respective knowledge and skills.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

In addition to our concern for the safety of production plants
workers, the Group also attaches great importance on the
safety awareness of our office workers. We provide training
to employees in Hong Kong and the PRC, emphasizing
the importance of occupational health and safety in office
environments. Hong Kong Headquarters actively participated
in a fire drill conducted by the building management office to
increase employees’ awareness of fire escape and familiarize
them with escape routes.

Number and Rate of Work-related Fatalities and Lost Days
due to Work Injury

Pursuant to Employees’ Compensation Ordinance (Chapter 282
of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Group should take out a policy
of employees’ compensation insurance to cover its legal liabilities
for work injuries in Hong Kong under both the Ordinance and
common law. All employees working in the PRC are protected
from work injuries and work-related diseases under China’s social
security system. If an employee suffers from work-related injury,
disease or fatality during the course of employment, we must
report it in writing to the Labour Department of Hong Kong
or the Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security of the
PRC within the period stipulated by the Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the
Regulations on Work-Related Injury Insurance of the PRC and The
State Council of the PRC.

Reportable work injuries refer to work-related accidents of
employees resulting in incapacity for a period exceeding three
days in Hong Kong under the Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance (Chapter 282 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the
number of days as defined under the Regulation on Work-Related
Injury Insurance of the PRC.
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RE dERELAHRE (&)

The number and rate of work-related fatalities, number of work
injury incidents and number of lost days due to work injury of
Hong Kong Headquarters, the IMM Business and the Extrusion
Machine Business for the years ended 31 December 2024, 2023

BHE-_ZT_MF —ZE-_=ZFR=-FT=-=
F+-_A=Z+—HILFE FEEIHL 8
BEBLBEEREBER T THRHASR ML
Z-TEEWNHELATEBELATIEALR

and 2022 are as follows: wm
2024 2023 2022
Number (rate) of work-related fatalities ET{ERENESEINFTEH (LX) - (0%) (0%) (0%)
Number of work injury incidents IEENRY 7 8 6
Number of working days lost due to TEBAIERY 358.50 265.5 379.5
work injury incidents
(1) As the injured person is still on leave, the number of (1) CEREMEREB BHERT

working days lost were taken on 31 December 2024.

Compensation for Work Injuries

The Group complies with the laws, rules and regulations related
to compensation for work injuries or occupational diseases in
Hong Kong and Mainland China. These include the Employees’
Compensation Ordinance (Chapter 282 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), Regulations on Work-Related Injury Insurance, Social
Insurance Law of the PRC, Regulations of Guangdong Province
on Work-Related Injury Insurance ( {EERE THBRBIEH) ),

Regulations of Jiangsu Province on Work-Related Injury Insurance
( T % TIERBIEHD ) and Compensation Standard for
Work Injury, to pay compensation to employee who has suffered
from work injuries or work-related diseases.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group provides all Directors and employees with continuous
development training programmes and courses to further
enhance their technical skills, professional skills and knowledge
in production, operations and management. Moreover, the Group
has implemented a refined talent development plan that sets
out training structures to provide internal and external training
programmes and courses to all levels of employees of the Group,
including managerial staff, general staff and frontline production
workers. These training programmes and courses include
orientation training, on-the-job training, safety education, on-site
training, simulation training and vocational training.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

In 2024, the training hours completed by employees of each
company had increased significantly as compared to last year.
In light of the rising incidence of fraudulent activities in recent
years, we have intensified workforce training initiatives, focusing
on fraud prevention protocols and cybersecurity best practices to
mitigate risks and bolster organizational resilience.

RE dHE8RELRE (&)
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Moreover, the Group encourages employees to participate in
various public competitions, allowing them to gain knowledge
outside of the company, promote creativity, increase practical
experience, and build networks. In 2024, Jiangsu Machinery
participated in “The 5th National New Area Economic
Development Zone High tech Zone Team Leader Management
Skills Competition”, which focused on enterprise production
safety, product quality, cost control, equipment maintenance
and employee well-being such areas and emphasized
fundamental theoretical knowledge, practical operational skills
and management skills.
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Percentage of Employees Trained

The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee
category of Hong Kong Headquarters, the IMM Business and the
Extrusion Machine Business for the years ended 31 December
2024 and 2023 is as follows:

RONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

ZlEEES

BE_Z_NFR_ZFE-_=ZF+=A
—t+—HUIEFE BB FBHREER
EHEERZERREBRAANEHNZ

BEBDHLLNT:

W 2024 2023
| |
| 99.8a% 10000% ; 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
99.46% 99.43% ! I
| |
l l 98.53%
| |
I I
| |
l 96.94% l
I |
| |
| |
: . 95.24% 95.31%
| |
I I
I |
I 94.00% I
| |
I }
| |
| |
I I
I |
| |
| |
I |
| |
| |
Employees who took part Male Female I Senior Level Middle Level General Staff
in training : 5 = : mRAE FRAE —RBREE
ZiESEEERY By gender I By employee category
: BRI 8IS : RESEE D
I |
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Average Training Hours Completed per Employee

In 2024, the total training hours completed by employees were
44,987.10 hours (2023: 30,158.20 hours). The average training
hours completed per employee by gender and employee category
of Hong Kong Headquarters, the IMM Business and the Extrusion
Machine Business for the years ended 31 December 2024 and
2023 are as follows:

Unit: Hours
By B

61.21

42.84

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

72.13

65.64
62.01 62.18

55.99

39.06

%

44
N
AR=+—BILtEE BHEH FTBHREY
RBEEHRXBRIEFNREISBRESNE
H 1B B =K

BRE dERERERE (H)

5T BX 35 I B9 7 39 B B

—E_MNFE RETRBIAEEAS

J\ET(—T__EE 30,158.20
—7—E¢&—7—7¢+—

ZHWFHEEMT

m2024 2023

79.69

61.34
56.22

38.12

Average training hours

per employee

FR1ER FHE IS

Male Female Senior Level
3 8 mRAE
By gender
RIERIE D

Middle Level General Staff
PRAR —REBRES
By employee category

RESEBD
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RE dERELAHRE (&)

LABOUR STANDARDS

We have formulated a comprehensive set of human resources
policies, including rules on recruitment and a strict policy to
prevent employment of child and forced labour.

Management Systems for Recruitment

We ensure that applicants and employees are treated equally
with respect to recruitment, assignment, development, evaluation
and reward. The Group has taken all practical measures to ensure
that applicants are lawfully employable, subject to the relevant
laws and regulations in Hong Kong and Mainland China. We
request new employees truthfully fill in their personal information
in the personal data form and provide identification documents
and/or a working visa (if any) to the Human Resources and
Administration Department in a fair and equitable manner and
also under legitimate procedures. These procedures include but
not limited to verification of identity to prevent the Group from
employing illegal workers.

Prevention of Child Labour and Forced Labour

In accordance with the Provisions on Prohibition of Child Labour
of the PRC and the Law of the PRC on the Protection of Minors,
the Group prohibits the recruitment of persons under the age
of 16 and the use of forced labour. In 2024, the Group was not
aware of any breach of or non-compliance with applicable laws
and regulations in relation to child labour and forced labour.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group maintains a good and long-term business relationship
with suppliers and conveys our concern about environmental
issues to them to ensure better procurement and meet our
production requirements, as well as to cooperate with us in
fulfilling our social responsibilities. We aim to choose suitable
suppliers who provide high-quality raw materials and good
services, and we are committed to delivering fine quality injection
molding machines, and extrusion lines, rubber injection molding
machines and hydraulic press to our customers. The IMM
Business and the Extrusion Machine Business have implemented a
series of procedures for supplier management, which oversee the
verification of suppliers and purchased products. An evaluation
procedure is in place for the selection of new suppliers and for
the regular assessment of existing suppliers to strictly monitor
the quality of raw materials, such as castings and steel, and to
ensure that the suppliers and their products meet our production
requirements. We evaluate suppliers based on several factors,
including price, quality, convenience in transportation, reputation,
financial condition, commitment to environmental protection
and social responsibility, among others. Additionally, we primarily
procure locally or from nearby areas rather than overseas to
reduce carbon emissions from transport and minimize the risk of
shipment delays.

Moreover, we constantly evaluate the performance of the existing
suppliers based on quality, on-time delivery, price and service,
etc.. All approved suppliers are incorporated into our qualified
supplier list. If any unsatisfactory practices are identified, we
will communicate with those suppliers and encourage them to
improve. Unqualified suppliers will be excluded from our qualified
supplier list to ensure the quality of products and services
provided by the suppliers meets our requirements and standards.
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Additionally, we regularly identify, evaluate and proactively ZKMEFELE - EK - BT HA#A - 5T 1E &
address risks in the procurement process, aiming to create a T EEHIREBREFNER  BMHORITE
sustainable supply chain. A B G-
Number of Suppliers by Geographical Region RwES SN HEERYAE
The number of suppliers by geographical region for Hong Kong HZEZE-Z-_WNHF K T = =F + = A
Headquarters, the IMM Business and the Extrusion Machine =+—HIFFE FHAHM THREBLL
Business for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 is as R EEBIZMES SO HEEEBEEOT :
follows:
Unit: Amount
- #A 2024 2023
Hong Kong e 42 45
Mainland China F B )3 480 501
Total my 522 546
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RE dE@REARE (F)

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

The Group places utmost importance on providing products that
meet high-quality and safety standard for our customers, aiming
to maintain the recognition of our “Welltec” and “Dekuma”
brands in injection molding machines, and extrusion lines, rubber
injection molding machines and hydraulic press industries. We
constantly monitor the quality of various specifications of the
products to ensure customer satisfaction which in turn foster
long-term support and trust, thereby enhancing the profitability
of the Group. To maintain customer confidence in our product
quality, the Group offers after-sale services.

In order to build up or enforce the confidence of customers
towards product quality control, in particular for the design,
development and production of injection molding machines,
extrusion lines, rubber injection molding machines and hydraulic
presses, the IMM Business and the Extrusion Machine Business
obtained the following certificates, respectively:

In 2024, the renewed QMS Certificates of Registration were
issued to Donghua Machinery and Jiangsu Machinery by
Vouching Technical Inspection Ltd. and Beijing ZhongDaHuaYuan
Certification Center (a third-party certification body with an
independent legal status which is authorized by Certification
and Accreditation Administration of the PRC (CNCA) and
accredited by China National Accreditation Service for Conformity
Assessment (CNAS) and ANSI National Accreditation Board
(ANAB)), which will be valid until 16 December 2027 and 13 July
2027, respectively.

In 2022, the renewed QMS Certificate of Registration was issued
to Dekuma by Vouching Technical Inspection Ltd., a commercial
services company specializing in third-party certification business,
providing quality management systems certification to domestic
and international clients, which will be valid until 28 November
2025.

On 19 March 2024, in accordance with the Evaluation Criteria
for Reliability Management Systems in the Machinery Industry
(T/CMQMA-2022), Dekuma was awarded the Mechanical Industry
Reliability Management System Evaluation Certificate by the
China Machine Building Quality Management Association and the
Guangdong Machine Building Quality Management Association,
which is valid for three years.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

For the IMM Business, we have established customer complaint
procedures and a customer complaint form for customers
to submit their concern. When a complaint is received, the
customer service department first communicate with the
customer and arranges technical personnel to visit customer’s
site for inspection. If necessary, we will fine-tune the products
to meet customer requirements. Any corrective actions will be
recorded and to followed up on. All products must undergo
carefully testing and inspection by the relevant departments
before delivery to customers. Unqualified or defective products
will be repaired or scrapped, and will not be shipped to
customers. Relevant departments will analyze these issues and
take corrective actions. Additionally, we conduct annual customer
satisfaction surveys to collect feedbacks on our product quality,
delivery efficiency and after-sale service. In 2024, the IMM
Business received twenty-one complaints related to products and
service.

For the Extrusion Machine Business, we have implemented pre-
product quality control procedures and a compliant channel for
customers. All products must be inspected and approved by
the relevant departments before shipment. If a product quality-
related complaint is received, the relevant department will
conduct an investigation. Follow-up actions and feedback on the
status will be reported to the customer to ensure resolution of
complaints effective. In 2024, the Extrusion Machine Business
received three complaints related to products and service.

The IMM Business and the Extrusion Machine Business provide
customers with comprehensive after-sales services, including
repair, replacement and return options within the machinery
warranty period. We offer parts and materials for repair and
maintenance at reasonable prices to improve the maintainability
of our products. Meanwhile, we reserve spare parts for products
that have been suspended for sale to better meet our customers’
repair needs.
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RE dE@REARE (F)

We attach great importance to the cultivating employees’
awareness of quality. In 2024, we conducted quality training
courses to help them understand the Company's core values
regarding quality and to improve their quality awareness and
capabilities.

In 2024, there were no products from the Group sold or shipped
that were subject to recalls for safety and health reasons.

We recognize the importance of intellectual property rights
protection. Intellectual properties are critical assets for the Group,
and we make effort to safeguard these rights and interests. We
sign confidentiality agreements with our customers and adhere
to stringent policies to protect customer information from
unauthorized access, usage and leakage, ensuring proper data
management. When we develop a new product or technology,
we will register a patent with the local or relevant intellectual
property administration to protect our rights and interests. We
are also committed to consistently upholding our rights against
counterfeiting, abuse and piracy of our trademarks to protect our
brands and trademarks from infringement.

Furthermore, we place great importance on information security,
implementing various management measures to continuously
improve our information security management system, regulate
internal information security behavior, and further strengthen the
protection of important data, thereby reducing the risk of data
leakage and loss.

In 2024, the Group complied with all relevant laws and
regulations that significantly impact our operations concerning
health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
related to our products and services.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

ANTI-CORRUPTION
Ethics and Integrity

We are committed to maintaining high ethical standards and
integrity in our business operations. The Group strictly regulates
the behaviour of employees, and requires all employees to comply
with national and local laws and regulations on preventing
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering, including but
not limited to the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201
of the Laws of Hong Kong) and Anti-money Laundering and
Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance (Chapter 615 of the Laws
of Hong Kong), the anti-corruption laws of the PRC, the Law of
the PRC Against Unfair Competition and Interim Regulations on
Prohibiting Commercial Bribery.

We have formulated anti-corruption and bribery policy and
whistleblowing policy, which are applicable to the Directors,
senior management and employees at all levels of the Group, and
as appropriate, the third parties doing business with the Group,
including but not limited to shareholders, customers, suppliers,
etc. and have been published on the Company’s website.

In 2024, we did not provide an anti-corruption training to the
Directors and employees. However, all new joiners receive training
on anti-corruption during their orientation and must declare
compliance with both policies. We will arrange such training as
appropriate to ensure that the Directors and employees are aware
of the topic.

Whistleblowing Mechanism

The Group has zero tolerance for corruption or bribery in
our operations. We have implemented preventative measures
regarding the whistleblowing policy across the Company
and all our subsidiaries. This policy outlines procedures for
whistleblowers who have concerns about any form of suspected
misconduct or malpractice identified in our operations. Various
reporting channels are available for employees to submit
information anonymously. Following a report, the investigation
process will commence, and the Company will prepare an
investigation report and then submit to the audit committee of
the Company (the “Audit Committee”) upon completion of the
investigation. The Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring
and reviewing the implementation of the whistleblowing policy
and providing any recommendations attributable from the
investigation of complaints.
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In 2024, the Group complied with relevant laws and regulations
with significant impacts relating to bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering, and was not informed of any litigation
of corruption involving the Group or its employees, or the
involvement in or occurrence of any violations related to
corruption.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT
Supporting our Local Community

The Group actively promotes and engages in community
activities, aiming to contribute to a cohesive community. We are
part of our local community and contribute positively to the local
communities we belong to. Therefore, we encourage employees
to participate in volunteer work within the community. Our staff
volunteer team has participated in charitable events from time to
time and gathered donations and supplies for people in need.

In February 2024, Hong Kong Headquarters participated in
Lunar New Year Food Recycling Scheme by Food Grace, a non-
profit making organization to collect surplus Lunar New Year gift
boxes and food to donate to needy, turning waste into love and
creating a society with no food waste.

In March 2024, Hong Kong Headquarters also participated in
“Skip Lunch Day” by The Community Chest, a non-profit making
organization to encourage our employees to donate their lunch
fees to support the needy.

In December 2024, Donghua Machinery held a blood donation
event to encourage employees to develop the good habit of
donating blood. More than twenty donors enthusiastically
responded to this event.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Caring for the Environment

Promoting internal environmental awareness is important for
achieving an overall reduction in our carbon footprint. We
actively promote environmental awareness among our employees
through various communication channels, and encourage them
to participate in green activities. The Company participated in
the annual Energy Saving Charter co-organized by the EPD and
EMSD for four consecutive years. In 2024, the Company has also
been awarded the Hong Kong Green Organisation Certification —
"Energywi$e Certificate” and “Wastewi$e Certificate” organized
by the Environmental Campaign Committee in recognition of the
Company’s contribution and commitment to energy conservation
and waste reduction.

We share energy-saving tips with our employees via emails to
encourage behavioural change from time to time. We collect
used envelopes, folders, papers, packaging materials and eco-
friendly reusable bags at the office for reuse. Furthermore,
we place several recycling bins in the office to encourage our
employees and their families to adopt waste reduction and
recycling practices to alleviate the burden on landfills. The
Company signed up for “Re-think Plastic: Volunteer anytime
anywhere to help solve excessive waste issue” to make
commitments to drop off our recyclables such as paper, metals,
plastics, glass bottles, certain electrical equipment, rechargeable
batteries to the recycling stores run by the EPD. Furthermore,
we also disposed of waste electrical and electronic equipment to
GREEN@COMMUNITY for recycling.

In addition to celebrating festive seasons with our employees,
we also put sustainability efforts into different festivals. The
Company participated in the Lai See Recycling Campaign
organized by Greeners Action at every Chinese New Year and
placed a box at office to collect used Lai See. During the Mid-
Autumn Festival, the Company also collected mooncake boxes
and sent to GREEN@COMMUNITY for recycling. Through
these campaigns, we were able to minimize our impact on the
environment, as well as raise our employees’ awareness of the
importance of waste reduction.

Caring for the Elderly

Apart from implementing green office initiatives, the Company
has also contributed love and care to the communities by
engaging in charitable activities. In September 2024, Hong Kong
Headquarters also participated in the Youth Pastoral Volunteer
Team, organized by the Youth Pastoral Psychotherapy Centre.
The team is committed to enhancing the quality of life for
seniors and foster a sense of community and care. By engaging
in such activities, it promotes a culture of empathy and social
responsibility, contributing positively to the community.
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ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX TABLE BRE - HERERBEES) RE

#&o|&
General Disclosures
and KPIs
—REER Description Page(s)
BEENIEE Bk BIR

General Disclosure Information on: 74-76
— M= (a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water

and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

BRERSREREBHN MAKRLHOES AEREEEEY

BB R A -

(@) BX: &

(b) BTHETAFERTENHBERZ LA

AR -
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. 77
RABEAE R IR AL HER e 1R e AR R B PR BUR -
KPI'A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas 78-79
FAREBUIER A2 emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per

unit of production volume, per facility).
BHE (SGE) kepREZE (GE2) RZREEMRE (UBAE) &
(MER)ZE (WMASEESEM FERMETHE)

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where 81
BB B A3 appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

MELEEERMEE CAMHE) R (DER)BE (MHASES
Bl SEBHHH) -

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where 82
FREBIEREA.4 appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

FELEEERNAE URHE) R (WER) BE (NNSES
B GERIEEHE) -

KPI A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve 75-76, 80
RABEAE BIEIRALS them.

HWlPTE] BN E B E R AERE LB IZMEMAFEE -
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are 76, 83
RARAEIEIZALG handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps

taken to achieve them.
HRREEENEEREEYN AL BRI ZARERZRE R
RERE L BRI B -
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Description Page(s)
& BA B

General Disclosure
— M=

KPI A2.1
BAS AR IR A1

KPI A2.2
BB A MIEIRA2.2

KPI A2.3
FARR AR BIERA2 3

KPI A2.4
FREMIERA24

KPI A2.5
FARARBIERA2.5

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water 83
and other raw materials.
ERERAER (BIEEIR KEREMERME) K-

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, 84
gas or oil) in total (kWh in '000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

REASSMNEER SHELR(NE - R30B) BFEE (AT
BEFERAE)REE (MABESEEM BERKHBAE) °

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of 85
production volume, per facility).

BREXKEREE (WASESEN FERETE) -

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken 80
to achieve them.

HIPRET MR RER AR AR R AREIEL BRI LR -
Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that 76, 80
is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them.

K EGE AR L] BERIERE - ARFTEI ARk B 12

N RERE L B RAERERE 5 -

Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) 86
and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced.

R BFTAREMENRE (UNTE) R (ER) BEEEN
HEe

General Disclosure

— B EE

KPI A3.1
BSR4 IR A3

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the 87-88
environment and natural resources
BIRBITAHRERRAAEREKNE XN ENIHE -

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the 87-88
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to

manage them.

M EBEDHRBERRABRNEAZERERNEREHAY
2778 -
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General Disclosures

and KPIs
—RBREER Description Page(s)
B ENIEE i 8 BR

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate- 75
— A B related issues which have impacted, and those which may impact,

the issuer.

BRI REHEKERAGEEHBETAEEYENERAREREE

B ISR o
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have 75
B SR A IE 12 A4 1 impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions

taken to manage them.
BB RIS HBITAEEZENEARGHEBESTE  KE
5178 -

Employment and Labour Practices

EBEREIER
General Disclosure Information on: 88-91
— R EE (a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and

promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,

diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

BRF MR E BELEN TERE B FTE#KE - Sk

FOBAR DA B B At 155 38 K A B

(@) B R

(b) BFHBETABEATENHEBEZLRHN

HE Rt o
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full- or 92
BG4 A5 1R B 1.1 part-time), age group and geographical region.

RMUR - EEER (M2 BSER) FRAMNbREASNES

BE-
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical 93
RS2 4B R 1R B2 region.

RIS FlRARN RREDMEERKLE -
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General Disclosures

and KPls
—RFER Description Page(s)
ERERER &t B PN
General Disclosure Information on: 93-96
— M= (a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting

employees from occupational hazards.

EARMZE2THERRERREREERLBEMREN:

(@) B=E: R

(b) BTHETARBEATENHBERZLAN

&R} o
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the  95-96
RS AE B 1R B2.1 past three years including the reporting year.

BE=F (BRERFE)EFRAITHOABEKRLE-
KPI'B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. 95-96
RS2 4B R 1R B2.2 EIEEAIIERAS.
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, 93-96
R B M IE1EB2.3 and how they are implemented and monitored.

MR ANBERFEEL2HEE URBERTRERTE-

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for 96-97

— B discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.
BRI EE BT IEBE N MBI BER - B IES -

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee 98

B 52 AR AIE1ZB3.1 category (e.g. senior management, middle management).
BRUBIREERR (NSRERE TREEE)SSNZIEE
AL

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender 99

RSB IE1EB3.2 and employee category.

BRI REBENE S BREETKZINFHREE -

—ZE-MEEIK Annual Report 2024 111



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE -HE8RERHRE (K)

General Disclosures

and KPls
—RBREER Description Page(s)
BRERER &t B HiR
General Disclosure Information on: 100
— M= (a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BRAPTIEE Tk a4 Ta:

(@ HE: R

(b) BTHBETAGBERTENHBBERZ LA

B E K} o
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid 100
B S48 B 1E B4 child and forced labour.

Hil R BB AR RET K64 T
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when 100
RS AR B 1EB4.2 discovered.

A ERRERBASEREBERMRRN LR -

Operating Practices

EEEM
General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply 101
—MRIEE chain.
EREEENIRE R g RARBUR -
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. 101
B 548 AR 1R B5.1 BiEE D HEREE -
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number 101
R 48 515 B5.2 of suppliers where the practices are being implemented, and how
they are implemented and monitored.
M EREREERNED MERTEBAEINHEREE LA
REERITRERT A
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social 101
B3 45 B 1R B5.3 risks along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and
monitored.
i A B R e s E R IRIR R g R R E 6 A RAE
BT RERT A
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally 101
R E N IE1EBS.4 preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, and

how they are implemented and monitored.
M EREHERRERESBREREMRIRENED - A KIEEHE
BMITMEERT A
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General Disclosures

and KPIs
—RFEER
BRENIEE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE -HERERERSE (H)

Description Page(s)
& BA B

General Disclosure
— M=

KPI B6.1
B¢ 45 B 1R B6.1

KPI B6.2
B4R N 1515 B6.2

KPI B6.3
B2 4E B 1R B6.3

KPI B6.4
S AR I 1R B6.4
KPI B6.5

B 45 BB 1R B6.5

Information on: 102-104
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and methods of
redress.
FRAMEHERMRBHNERELZS BS SEEAMEEEUR
R TT A

(a) EHE: R
(b) BFEHETABEALE N EWAR DAY
B R

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for 104
safety and health reasons.

EENCEXERARTRAR 2 HEEEAMARDKN A DL -
Number of products and service related complaints received and 103
how they are dealt with.

EEENEREREORFBEBENAREE L

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting 104
intellectual property rights.

M REENRENBEREENED -

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. 102-104
R E 2R TEREREMBKERF -

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and 104
how they are implemented and monitored.

RAEBEEERRERLERE ARBBEATRERTA-
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE -HE8RERHRE (K)

General Disclosures

and KPIs
—RIFER
B ENIEE

Description Page(s)

5t B3 "X

General Disclosure
— M=

KPI B7.1
A 45 B 1R BT 1

KPI B7.2
BAS AR N5 1R BT 2

KPI B7.3
AR 4B M IE1RBT 3

Community

HE

Information on: 105-106
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

(@) BE: R

(b) BTHBETAGBERTENHBBERZ LA

B E K} o

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices 106
brought against the issuer or its employees during the reporting

period and the outcomes of the cases.
RERPAHBTASIEEESRBEIEEFENESHARMHH

B REFAER-

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing 105
procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored.

B EE R RREF  ARBEBARITRERT A

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and 105
staff.

MamEENE TRENREFEI -

General Disclosure
— AL BE

KPI B8.1
A5 B 1R B8 1

KPI BS.2
BH R A5 512 B8 .2

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the 106-107
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities

take into consideration the communities’ interests.
FELRBERTHREEMEMETENRREEB DG E
AL F &S AV BUR ©

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental 106-107
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport).

ErERERE (HE BRRFE SITR -BE UL -8F)-

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. 106-107

EEIREMBAER (MEEAKHE) -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

B &t EH A R E
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

HLB

To the Members of Cosmos Machinery Enterprises Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Cosmos Machinery Enterprises Limited (the "Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the "Group”) set out on pages 122 to 256, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2024, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2024, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“"HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYRHMEE (F)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

FRETEE

AREAFTEERERMANEEHE R
RYERAPEAMBREANBTRSEZN
FEH-REFRERERMEAEEES M
BRERMEDABRRETREEN  ARRK
MreszEETRRHEBNER -

Key audit matter

BREBETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANBTNMNERERARETSEHR

Valuation of leasehold land and buildings held for
own use

We identified valuation of leasehold land and buildings held
for own use as a key audit matter due to the significance
of the balance to the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, combined with the significant estimates associated
with the determination of the fair value of the Group’s
leasehold land and buildings held for own use.
BMBANEREETHNEFHEREREFEFE TH
REZBBHEAVBERIABRBNEENL ULEETE &
SEERAEE I MNMEFH RV EEMEBNERMEET -

As disclosed in notes 16 and 17 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had property, plant and equipment
of approximately HK$455,254,000, of which approximately
HK$338,548,000 relating to leasehold land and buildings
held for own use was carried at revalued amounts.
BRIBERAMBEREMTIR17 BEEBENYE BER
% B #455,254,000%8 7T - B AR #9338,548,000/8 L EL B A
HETHMEFHEE LKEGHSEARK:

During the year ended 31 December 2024, revaluation
loss of approximately HK$22,056,000 was recognised in
property revaluation reserve. The fair value of the leasehold
land and buildings held for own use was supported by
valuations conducted by independent external valuers.
Details of the valuation techniques and key inputs used in
the valuations are disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements. The valuation of leasehold land and
buildings held for own use is dependent on certain key
inputs including adjusted market price per square foot and
capitalisation rate. Changes to the key inputs may result in
changes in the fair value of the Group’s land and buildings.
HE-_ZT-_HNF+_A=T—HLFE EHEBEY
22,056,000 TE A EEMFEHRTERR - BAHEEL
WHEFHAFEEAB LI EEMETOHLE I F-
EfEREANGERTMEZRANFEEELLS T
BHmEAMTI7TAHEE- B AAE L HMANEFEHEKRERE
T2 A BEEFTHFEREABNTEMNERLE £

EEANEDTLEN BEETHAETOATBEE
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BEAfELrHREFEHE

Our procedures in relation to management’s
valuation of leasehold land and buildings included,
but not limited to:
B EEE R ELHREFHEZRER
BE (BRER)

Evaluating the competence, capabilities
and objectivity of the independent external
valuers;

AR SN ERT R BE D B M BB

Checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy
and relevance of the input data used; and
EERAEERRRE TR AZBIBNE
AR &

Challenging the reasonableness of valuation
techniques, assumptions and key inputs used
in the valuation, including the market price
per square foot and capitalisation rate by
comparing it to market evidence with the
assistance of our valuation specialists.
BEEEGETAEANGERMN BRREEE
BMANSEE BEERMNEEZERKOGE
T EBEMSERLERE T RREOTEMN
BRfp X

We found the key assumptions were supported by
the available evidence.
BHMER FERJIEASNEREFFo



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

BYZHMBRE (&)

RRETEE(E)

Key audit matter

MEETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BB NMEERAERTSHE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

Refer to notes 25 and 42(b) to the consolidated financial
statements.

F2HEE B EmEM FE25%42(b) °

The Group had trade receivables, net of impairment of
approximately HK$470,228,000 at 31 December 2024.
RZZE-_WNF+_A=+—H EEENEHERKIE
(BRI 1E) £ 41470,228,000% 7T °

We identified impairment assessment of trade receivables
as a key audit matter due to the significance of trade
receivables to the Group’s consolidated financial position
and the involvement of subjective judgment and
management estimates in evaluating the expected credit
losses (“ECL") of the Group’s trade receivables at the end
of the reporting period.

BFIBERNE ZERFBRENEASBRESEE  HHR
BH5RWHKREY SEEEFSUBHARNEENL UNE
Al EEERNBRERRNBRHEEER ((RBEES
BBER S RO TEHEMEIRMEET -

The management of the Group estimates the amount
of lifetime ECL of trade receivables that are not credit-
impaired based on provision matrix through grouping of
various debtors after considering aging and/or past due
status of respective trade receivables. Estimated loss rates
are based on historical observed default rates over the
expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-
looking information. In addition, trade receivables that are
credit-impaired are assessed for ECL individually.
EXEEEERBE RS ERUGRIENRE & 308 ik
AETREHEAETOE REBEEGBERGGTREEER
ENESRKFEN T HRPEEER At ERAXRE
REBAERBSTANELELNE  WREAEEES
ETHB I EEGERENE S EKFIES @RI
HEEHPEEHR-

g 5 BWFRREN G

Our procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment of trade receivables
included, but not limited to:
BPRERBZESRWFERENGEZIEFE
B (ERRR) :

Understanding key controls of the
management estimation on the loss allowance
for trade receivables;
BREIEEYHE S RUGRIAEBER BN G
B = 2Pl

Testing the integrity of information used by
management to develop the grouping in
collective basis, including trade receivables
aging analysis as at 31 December 2024, on a
sample basis, by comparing individual items
in the analysis with the relevant supporting
documents;

AREEERRNESREAR THESENE
HHTEN BER_Z_MEF+_A=1T—
HE B 5 R WRIA R e o I @ id R AR A
ﬁ?ﬁﬁ$%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%§ﬁi#ﬁﬁ
LR

Challenging management’s basis and
judgment in determining credit loss allowance
on trade receivables as at 31 December 2024,
including the basis of estimated loss rates
applied in each category in the provision
matrix with reference to historical default
rates and forward-looking information; and
EEEEER _T-_NFE+_A=+—8%*
EEB HRKKIAREE BB B E KO KRN
B BEE2EFRLENERAELEE 4
%ﬁﬁ@#ﬁﬁﬁ%%%%%%ﬁ%ﬁm%
B &

Evaluating the disclosures regarding the
impairment assessment of trade receivables in
respective notes to the consolidated financial
statements.
AHEEAGe B RRIM TP ERE ZEKR
RIEREF B BN

We found the management’s impairment
assessment of trade receivables were supported by
the available evidence.

BMEE - BREHE S ERRFIAREN GEA S
BB S o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYRHMEE (F)

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2023 were audited by another auditor who
expressed an unmodified opinion on 27 March 2024.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are responsible
for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include
the consolidated financial statements and our auditors’ report
thereon (the “Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this Other Information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion, solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Directors.

BYZHMBRE (&)

BRBMR BT REMBERERNEE

BAPNER RSV BHRREBRES
THEEHRRFHBRMEMWE KRR
ARG AERE YHABRERMER
MR B A RS - B PR RBE L QB R
FAOSHEMRE - ERBEBKERE F it
PASI - 2 A1 B9 3R & T A] A AE oAt AR ik = TR P9
BAIRARENAT HEMEBALA
BEdARZEZREFE -G EREBRESKTHN
RiE BETREREBRR (BEBEFER) #
THEFT EX-EXBRRAFTERAE
BEEEIR o BHSRPR AL AT LA B EREF SR B ER Bl 2
MREEBAHEMEBRELAERAEY
BREVBRMREMERBEYERRAE
HE) A FEORTE > BB B R R AR BRI AT R AR
EEK-

BI5 (BABHER) BITBRE  RME
REZHE RBEEERARPRETE
BRI o B AP T

e FAKFEHEAMBRRANKIFL
ERMEHMERERRLER  E
EHEEFRBERARATERRF &
SRELNBEEEZEER/RERMNER
REEMR -ARAFSRERRE B
EOWEER REMRAIEE AR
ZH FMREERARERMHER
SRR PR B R BORBE B N AR 1
BYRNEAHERROARRES -

e HMEMERZABWOAMES  URF

RENEZREF BXHREEY =B
SEAMIEHNERIERERER -

« FEAAEHBRERTRE ARE
FHFEHEERARRBERT AR -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYRHMEE (F)

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors' use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business units within the group
as a basis for forming an opinion on the group financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and review of the audit work performed for purposes of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions
taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditors’ report is Leung King Kit.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Leung King Kit
Practising Certificate Number: P08264

Hong Kong, 27 March 2025
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
mEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—E-mFEf - A=1—HIFFE

2024 2023
—E-_ME —E-=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
e FET FET
(Restated)
(&&&E5)
Continuing operations
Revenue A \ 5 1,865,354 1,723,747
Cost of sales 5 5 B AR (1,520,433) (1,391,189)
Gross profit EF 344,921 332,558
Other income, gain and loss, net HEM WA - Yzs K EEFEE 6 35,180 16,212
Selling and distribution costs Ok =E-d: (179,088) (155,498)
Administrative expenses THEA (173,099) (157,219)
Operating profit RERF 27,914 36,053
Investment income LB WA 7 9,070 10,458
Share of results of associates iR ha RN 3,991 3,635
Gain on disposal of an associate HE— M E Qe 2 K - 412
Finance costs MBER 8 (13,838) (14,922)
Profit before tax BR 8 A% T 9 27,137 35,636
Income tax expense s & A 11 (16,074) (13,938)
Profit for the year from REFELEER 2
continuing operations FEBF 11,063 21,698
Discontinued operation ERIEREENR
Profit/(loss) for the year from REDRIEEEELK 2
discontinued operation FEHEA(FE) 712 7,690 (81,213)
Profit/(loss) for the year FERAN(BA) 18,753 (59,515)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable Zx 2 T R 15 E AL
to equity shareholders wmA(EE)
of the Company
From continuing operations KA FELE T 2,668 20,571
From discontinued operation REERIEEEETE 5,228 (64,372)
7,896 (43,801)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable 3F # i% #& 25 FE {5
to non-controlling interests wE (E8)
From continuing operations MERFEKEET 8,395 1,127
From discontinued operation RKEDRIEEEERS 2,462 (16,841)
10,857 (15,714)
Profit/(loss) for the year FE®AN (BE) 18,753 (59,515)
Earnings/(loss) per share - Basic BRERN(FHE)-BEXR
From continuing operations REFEREET 0.31 2.39
13 HK cent &l HK cents &1
From discontinued operation REERIEEEETE 0.61 (7.47)
13 HK cent &1l HK cents &1
0.92 (5.08)
HK cent Al HK cents &1
The notes on pages 131 to 256 are an integral part of these 131 E256B v WHBAGATBREY

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

REETHEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-—F-mFE+ - A=+—HIFE

2024 2023
—E_ME —E-=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$000
M it FET FET
(Restated)
(&&E5)
Profit/(loss) for the year EERAN (EBE) 18,753 (59,515)
Other comprehensive (expense)/ FEHEMZE (ZE)
income for the year, net of tax: e - HIBRFRIE - 14
ltems that have been reclassified or EE%)T"*EYﬁ@:—IE%
may be reclassified subsequently NEEERCIEE
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising BREBINEB I R
from translation of financial RELEZERER
statements of foreign operations \ (23,684) (17,848)
Share of reserves of associates FEALESE & R R (81) (996)
Reclassification adjustments: BB
Release of translation reserve & — 2 A AR
upon disposal of an associate HERFEER D - 166
Release of translation reserve & B A Al B
upon disposal of subsidiaries RERFEHERD 40 1,803 8,568
(21,962) (10,110)
ltem that will not be reclassified TEEFIEEERY
to profit or loss: HH:
Deficit on revaluation of ERMESEHERE
properties held for own use (17,870) (4,464)
(39.832) (14,574)
Total comprehensive expense FEXEXHARE
for the year (21,079) (74,089)
Total comprehensive (expense)/ EARREFEA
income attributable to equity EEzmE(XH)
shareholders of the Company: W48 %8
From continuing operations REAEBEEEER (38,738) 5,221
From discontinued operation KREERIEEEER 7,348 (55,621)
(31,390) (50,400)
Total comprehensive income/ FEREZENEZE
(expense) attributable to W (XH)
non-controlling interests: wEE:
From continuing operations MERFERLEED 7,557 (5,338)
From discontinued operation REERIEREER 2,754 (18,351)
10,311 (23,689)
Total comprehensive expense FEXEZHARE
for the year (21,079) (74,089)
The notes on pages 131 to 256 are an integral part of these $131E256E 2B ARG A BT BIHREK 2
consolidated financial statements. — & 1p -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B AR R R

At 31 December 2024
RZFZmEf=A=+—H

2024 2023
—ESE-NF —E =%
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
e FET FET
Non-current Assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment WE BE k& 6 455,254 523,103
Right-of-use assets FREEE 18 42,768 41,286
Goodwill EES 19 = 3,896
Intangible assets ﬂﬁ?ﬁ? 20 = -
Interests in associates Bt 22N Al E 2 21 36,987 36,549
Finance lease receivables W L E & A 22 22,256 13,625
Deferred tax assets RERTEE = 23 25,525 22,048
Deposit paid for purchase of property, BEEY % -HMENMEEZ
plant and equipment Bfties 25 19,996 -
602,786 640,507
Current Assets REBEE
Inventories 5B 24 408,584 418,825
Finance lease receivables Rl R E FHE B 22 63,750 84,802
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H b FE WK IE 25 577,880 651,584
Other financial assets Hih g & E 26 = 5,630
Current tax recoverable REFA YL B FR IE 161 264
Cash and bank balances B e MIRTT4 27 519,030 660,468
1,569,405 1,821,573
Current Liabilities IR
Trade and other payables H 5 R EMENFIE 28 622,708 681,902
Contract liabilities BHBE 28 81,613 72,446
Bank borrowings HRITIE K 29 110,399 234,598
Lease liabilities HEAE 30 4,657 4,182
Current tax payable NHEAFE SR TR 5,627 4,836
825,004 997,964
Net Current Assets REBEEFHE 744,401 823,609
Total Assets less EEHSERABER
Current Liabilities 1,347,187 1,464,116

124 cosmos MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED * I#is & 24 /R 2 5



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

RERBRRE (K)

At 31 December 2024

R-ZFZpFE+=—A=4+—H

2024 2023
—E_ME —E-=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
Bt it FET FHEIT
Non-current Liabilities FREBEME
Bank borrowings RITIEN 29 4,860 -
Lease liabilities HEBE 30 7,046 4,741
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBAE 23 24,764 30,511
36,670 35,252
Net Assets BEFE 1,310,517 1,428,864
Equity Em
Capital and reserves attributable to RRRIRERE AEML
equity shareholders of the Company: & A& K f##E
Share capital fi% < 31 609,027 609,027
Reserves f# 8 632,610 662,695
1,241,637 1,271,722
Non-controlling Interests FERESR 68,880 157,142
Total Equity EREE 1,310,517 1,428,864

The consolidated financial statements on pages 122 to 256 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
27 March 2025 and were signed on its behalf by:

TANG TO

DIRECTOR

The notes on pages 131 to 256 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

FI122E8256 B2 G MBHRER_E_H
FoZAZT+HHEEESTSHEWRETE
WHTIEEREESE:

TANG YU, FREEMAN

BB

DIRECTOR

EF

F131E256ACMABRAGEMBREZ

R
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mEEZSBR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
e —F_mE+—HA=+—HIFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ADARERF ARE
Non-
Share Other Retained controlling Total
capital reserves profits Total interests equity
R Ef kG RE &R BmE FERER ExEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FETL FET
Balance at 1 January 2023 R-E-_ZF-f—A&H# 609,027 109,501 603,594 1,322,122 216,274 1,538,396
Loss for the year FEEBE - - (43,801) (43,801) (15,714) (59,515)
Other comprehensive (expense)/income FEAMRE (XH) /aE:
for the year:
Share of reserves of associates e DRI - (996) - (996) - (996)
(Deficit)/surplus on revaluation of properties BRNEER (BR) /A%
held for own use - 2,029 - 2,029 (6,554) (4,525)
Deferred taxation adjustment ELRERE - (926) - (926) 987 61
Exchange differences arising from translation of B E BN EHH K HERE
financial statements of foreign operations EEVERER - (15,440) - (15,440) (2,408) (17,848)
Release of translation reserve upon & —HE 2 AR R
disposal of an associate ERFEEEL - 166 - 166 - 166
Release of translation reserve upon HENE LA RN
disposal of subsidiaries EREERL - 8,568 - 8,568 - 8,568
Total other comprehensive expense for the year ~ FEEMZ2E X HARE - (6,599) - (6,599) (7,975) (14,574)
Total comprehensive expense for the year EEREYHAR - (6,599) (43,801) (50,400) (23,689) (74,089)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR - - - - (35,009) (35,009)
Dividend paid to the non-controlling BRI —MEHEAREER
shareholders of a subsidiary BE &N - - - - (439) (439)
Capital contribution from non-controlling —MM BRI R A
shareholders of a subsidiary - - - - 5 5
Balance at 31 December 2023 RZZZ=F+-A=1+—H
Her 609,027 102,902 559,793 1,271,722 157,142 1,428,864
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)
REERB B (HF)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-pmEf+ - H=1+—HItFZE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARARESEARY
Non-
Share Other Retained controlling Total
capital reserves profits Total interests equity
[Z Hitfefs REEF wE  FERER e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Balance at 1 January 2024 RZZZME—-A—RA&EH 609,027 102,902 559,793 1,271,722 157,142 1,428,864
Profit for the year FEEF - - 7,896 7,896 10,857 18,753
Other comprehensive (expense)/income EEEME2E (TH) /RE:
for the year:
Share of reserves of associates ERBE N RS - (81) = (81) = (81)
(Deficit)/surplus on revaluation of properties BRNEER (BR) /B8
held for own use - (22,056) - (22,056) 799 (21,257)
Deferred taxation adjustment EERBRE - 3,507 - 3,507 (120) 3,387
Exchange differences arising from translation of B E BN EHH K HRE
financial statements of foreign operations EEVERER - (22,459) - (22,459) (1,225) (23,684)
Release of translation reserve upon HEMBL AR
disposal of subsidiaries EREFEEL - 1,803 = 1,803 = 1,803
Total other comprehensive expense for the year ~ FEEM2E X HAE - (39,286) = (39,286) (546) (39,832)
Total comprehensive (expense)/income for the year EE2E (F i) /MzEEE - (39,286) 7,896 (31,390) 10,311 (21,079)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40) HENBAR (H7t40) - - - - (44,890) (44,890)
Release of revaluation reserve upon HENBLRARKERER
disposal of subsidiaries B - (5,705) 5,705 - - -
Dividend paid to the non-controlling EOLiEPGIE
shareholders of subsidiaries B & - - - - (49,491) (49,491)
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 41) WiE - B DA (Hitar) - 1,305 - 1,305 (4,192) (2,887)
Balance at 31 December 2024 RZB-_ME+-A=+—-H
e 609,027 59,216 573,394 1,241,637 68,880 1,310,517
Details of other reserves of the Group during the year are setout ANEBRAFEZHMHFEEZDFBHR
in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements. AR ERME3I2W -

The notes on pages 131 to 256 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

FI3NE256BE VB AGREUMEREZ
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—E-mFEf - A=1—HIFFE

2024 2023
—E-MF —T=F
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
Bt it FET FET
(Restated)
(seE5)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETH
Profit/(loss) before tax: BRIATLRF (EBE) -
From continuing operations REFELEET 27,137 35,636
From discontinued operation BRI EET 9,392 (78,094)
Profit/(loss) before tax BEEE A, (EE) 36,529 (42,458)
Adjustments for: BT EIEFE:
Bank and other interest income RIT R H A F B A 7 (8,325) (9,057)
Finance costs MEER 8 13,843 16,549
Impairment loss on goodwill EEFEEE 19 - 29,100
Realised and unrealised gain on HhemEE D #H
other financial assets N R B IR W 7 (1,405) (2,395)
Gain on disposal of an associate HE—HEEAa 2
Wz - (412)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEWNBRARZ
(k=) B8 40 (2,560) 46,151
Share of results of associates R RN T 21 (3,991) (3,635)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BERREBTE
equipment 16 42,593 52,702
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE 18 6,255 13,557
Amortisation of intangible assets BmVEEHEE 20 - 922
Loss on disposal of property, LEWE - HEREEZ
plant and equipment BB 743 1,736
(Reversal of allowance)/allowance RIFERBE (7))
for impairment of bad and BiEFE
doubtful debts, net 9 (4,171) 13,656
Written down of inventories, net FEREREFE 9 906 3,376
Gain on modification of lease term HEBRRIE 2= (333) (470)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

RERERER (H)
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-—FT-_pWFEf-—A=1+—HIFZ

2024 2023
—E-MF —ET=F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B &t FET FiET
(Restated)
(BES)
Operating cash flows before BEESBBAIZ
changes in working capital BRERSR 80,084 119,322
Increase in inventories FE 0 (12,363) (14,579)
Decrease in finance lease receivables [ Us 5t & 78 & z 18 R > 7,346 11,782
(Increase)/decrease in trade and B 5 Nk E M ERGRIA
other receivables (&) md (101,054) 7,073
Increase in trade and other E 5 M H b E A A K&
payables and contract liabilities EHaEEN 30,194 54,761
Cash generated from operations REFHEEAZRE 4,207 178,359
Hong Kong profits tax paid ERNEBFE (1,443) (1,474)
Overseas tax paid B8N (14,163) (11,516)
The PRC withholding tax on dividends &/ Ei& 8 FEMNH
paid (3,219) (600)
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED ResEs (FR) EE2
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReFHE (14,618) 164,769
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZEH
(Increase)/decrease in pledged bank B 2 RITFER
deposits (gm) L (11,613) 14,011
Purchase of property, plant and BEME BELEE
equipment (16,444) (70,831)
Deposit paid for purchase of property, BEEWE  -BEMKEZ
plant and equipment TEfT K (19,996) =
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - -BWER&HE2
plant and equipment KIB 201 180
Interest received 2 F B 8,325 9,057
Net proceeds from disposal of HEHEMERMEEZ
other financial assets RIEFE 6,993 7,011
Dividend received from associates U B Bt N B IR B 3,472 2,814
Repayment from associates RN o 5,042 355
Decrease in bank time deposits with FIE AR = A8
maturity over three months R1TE HFFOR L 208 4,664
Net proceeds from disposal of LEMRBRARMEZ
subsidiaries PRIE 40(a) 15,917 13,555
Receipt of consideration receivables W BB FR B 40(b) 68,143 =
Proceeds from disposal of an associate H &% N Al T8 KI1A - 3,337
Acquisition of subsidiaries s 8% B B8 A 41 (2,887) =
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/ RETBEEL(EA)Z
(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES B RE 57.361 (15,847)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

mERERER ()
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

2024 2023
el 111 - —E-=F
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
e FET FET
(Restated)
(&g&E75)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES AMEEE
Repayment of bank loans ERIETER 34 (359,766) (161,268)
Interest paid B F B 34 (12,991) (14,394)
Capital element of lease rentals paid BENEERSNAREIHD 34 (5,300) (14,071)
Interest element of lease rentals paid B NHEEMHEHF B IH 34 (852) (2,155)
New bank loans raised HgIRITE R 34 241,345 168,788
Dividend paid to the non-controlling B —EH B2 & 3E#E ik
shareholders of a subsidiary AZ B A% B (49,491) (439)
Capital contribution from — M B~ &) IEFE A%
non-controlling shareholders of R EE
a subsidiary - 5
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING METBHFEACESFE
ACTIVITIES (187,055) (23,534)
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN RERBLEE
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (RD) /EinEEE (144,312) 125,388
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FNRERBELEE
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 643,213 524,795
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE MEERRBTE
RATE CHANGES (8,139) (6,970)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT HXRBEERBEELZE
END OF THE YEAR 27 490,762 643,213

The notes on pages 131 to 256 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

— B0 o

130 cosMOs MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED * [EI#is & %4 /R 2 5

FI3NE2S6BEZMETBAG AT BREZ



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL

Cosmos Machinery Enterprises Limited is a public limited
company domiciled and incorporated in Hong Kong and its
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
address of its registered office is 10™ Floor, Billion Plaza 2,
No. 10 Cheung Yue Street, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon,
Hong Kong. The principal activities of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 44.

Saniwell and Cosmos Holdings are the ultimate holding and
immediate holding company of the Company, respectively.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

(1) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”), which also
include Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS")
and Interpretations (“Int”), issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the requirements of the Companies Ordinance.
These consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Listing Rules. A summary of the material accounting
policies adopted by the Group is set out below. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of interest in leasehold land and buildings
where the Group is the registered owner of the
property interest and certain financial assets, which are
carried at fair value.

A M BHRRHME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-—F-mFE+ - A=+—HIFE

o

AAEBEEERABD R/ —HARER
HEMRZ 2 ARBER DA MERKND
B P £ e

ARBAE—MIEEZER QG T
%@mm%%&nﬁﬁwg WHE10
RERES2HIOZE-EXTZHEBE QA
ZEBEETEH LK EL4 -

Saniwell & K R 5 5 & A& Q7 &
IR N B R EEER AR -

EXRSHBERRBE

MBENGAMBREREA ZEXSF
BOREN T B =B HBIN I F K
REMEB/NAEFENERER -

(1) EREXE

AEENGRAMBRERREL
SEMAERMN (FAEMB R
SFEA) (BE (FEGFHERD
R (EE) ) FELREFRA
R (R RMGH]) 95 TE AR B » A AR
AEUBHRERRAENSE (ETARRD
MBEREER -AEEERRZ
EXEMBRBEBHERN T &
EUMBHRRCERELKAER
§A1W$EIE%%%¥”
BEACHELHWREEFOMA
%%\&%$%ﬂﬁﬁméﬁ&
FEEIEMELER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REPBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(1)

(2)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of accounting policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the
judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgments made by management in the application of
HKFRS that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 4.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and the entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

—  has power over the investee;
— is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

—  has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-pmEf+ - H=1+—HItFZE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2. EXEHEBEBE (£Z)

POLICIES (Continued)
2) #A8RA (&)

(2) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated income statement from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets, liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REPBHRRME (F)
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(2) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for
as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRS).
The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKFRS 9 (note 2(9)), when applicable,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture (note 2(3)).

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss
as incurred.
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2. EXREBEBE (&)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-—FT-_pWFEf-—A=1+—HIFZ

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2. EXEHEBEBE (£Z)

POLICIES (Continued)

(2) Basis of consolidation (Continued) 2) #EFRA (&)

Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

— deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 Income taxes and HKAS 19 Employee
benefits respectively;

— liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based payment
at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below); and

— assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations are measured in accordance with that
standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately
in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REPBHRRME (F)
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(2) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

2. EXREBEBE (&)

(2) w=&RA (&)

Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on
a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are measured at their fair value
or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
HKFRS.

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in
a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at its
acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period
adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments made against goodwill.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments
that arise from additional information obtained during
the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed
one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-pmEf+ - H=1+—HItFZE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2. EXREBEBE (&)

(2) Basis of consolidation (Continued) 2 #EFRA (&)

Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that do not
qualify as measurement period adjustments depend
on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or
a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates
in accordance with HKFRS 9, or HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as
appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period (see above), and
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to
reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that,
if known, would have affected the amounts recognised
at that date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REPBHRRME (F)
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(3) Associates and joint ventures

2. EXREBEBE (&)

An associate is an entity in which the Group or
Company has significant influence, but not control
or joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group
or Company and other parties contractually agree to
share control of the arrangement, and have rights to
the net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, unless it is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale). Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted
for any excess of the Group's share of the acquisition-
date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets
over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter,
the investment is adjusted for the post acquisition
change in the Group’s share of the investee's net assets
and any impairment loss relating to the investment.
Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
investees and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in the consolidated income statement,
whereas the Group's share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(3) Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associates or the joint ventures, the Group’s interest
is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose,
the Group's interest is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with the
Group’s long-term interests that in substance form part
of the Group’s net investment in the associates or the
joint ventures.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and the joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interests in the investee, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate or joint control
over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former investee at the date when
significant influence is lost, is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (note 2(9)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates and joint ventures are stated
at cost less impairment losses, unless classified as held
for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale).

REMBBRERME (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-pmEf+ - H=1+—HItFZE

2. EXREBEBE (&)

(3)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REPBHRRME (F)
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(4) Property, plant and equipment

2. EXREBEBE (&)

(4) ME BERRE

Interests in leasehold land and buildings held for own
use where the Group is the registered owner of the
property interest is stated at their revalued amount,
being their fair value at the date of the revaluation less
any subsequent accumulated depreciation.

Any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation
is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the
asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued
amount of the asset.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed
in profit or loss during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Revaluations on properties held for own use are
performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that
the carrying amount of these assets does not differ
materially from which would be determined using fair
values at the end of the reporting period.

Changes arising on the revaluation of properties
held for own use are generally dealt with in other
comprehensive income and are accumulated separately
in equity in the property revaluation reserve. The only
exceptions are as follows:

— when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be
charged to profit or loss to the extent that it
exceeds the amount held in the reserve in respect
of that same asset immediately prior to the
revaluation; and

— when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
credited to profit or loss to the extent that a deficit
on revaluation in respect of that same asset had
previously been charged to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-—FT-_pWFEf-—A=1+—HIFZ

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2. EXEHEBEBE (£Z)

POLICIES (Continued)

(4) Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 4) VE - BERRE (Z)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
cost or revalued amounts to their residual values (if any)
over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Ownership interest in leasehold
land held for own use

Unexpired term of
the leases

Ownership interest in buildings
held for own use

40 years or
unexpired term of
the leases, if shorter

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 to 10 years

Plant and machinery 5 to 10 years

Motor vehicles 3 to 10 years
The assets’ residual values (if any) and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period. An item of property, plant and
equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset.

Assets under construction represent buildings,
structures, plant and machinery and other fixed assets
under construction or installation and are stated at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses, and
are not depreciated. Cost comprises direct costs
of construction, installation and testing as well as
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction or installation. Assets
under construction are reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds (if any) and the carrying amount of the item
and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal. Any related revaluation surplus
is transferred from the revaluation reserve to retained
profits and is not reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REPBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(4)

(5)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note
2(10)(ii)).

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to direct the use
of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of
the economic benefits from that use.

(i) As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s)
and non-lease component(s), the Group has
elected not to separate non-lease components
and accounts for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less and leases of low-
value assets. When the Group enters into a lease
in respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised are recognised as
an expense on a systematic basis over the lease
term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-pmEf+ - H=1+—HItFZE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2. EXEHEBEBE (£Z)

POLICIES (Continued)

(5) Leases (Continued) (5) M# (&)

(i) As a lessee (Continued) (i) 1fEEERHBEA(E)
Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability EHEEEARL HEAE
is initially recognised at the present value of the EHBENEERENRA
lease payments payable over the lease term, MAHA LIEEEFRFAE
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the BN R BEIR 3z A X
lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, TEE BN 0 & 7F - Bl LA 46 B8 15
using a relevant incremental borrowing rate. After SERMER R T
initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at R -HEBRZRBHEAAR
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated FrEmMAMERZARAER
using the effective interest method. Variable lease BREEFE-HEAEBED
payments that do not depend on an index or rate &I B KRB 1R Bisk
are not included in the measurement of the lease FETEMEERIE AL
liability and hence are charged to profit or loss in REEENSTHEEER
the accounting period in which they are incurred. R o
The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease REACHESHERNER
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which BEEVLSEKAGE H
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability FEEHEBENVIRESE
plus any lease payments made at or before the MmERFAIKRB R ZAELR®
commencement date, and any initial direct costs FEBENFHARERE
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right- AR BB o Wi A
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to TAEEENKATBER
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to HEBGREBEE HER
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it HEEEXZEEME L
is located, discounted to their present value, less MELEMGEEIKA ZEIR
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset 1B B 35, 30 30 8 T {77 BT e iy 8
is generally depreciated over the shorter of the EEE-FRAEEE —KRIE
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight- BEMIEASHMNEEH
line basis. The right-of-use asset is subsequently PR AR B AE B BABR LA B AR VA ET
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and RTE-FTRAREEERERIR
impairment losses (see note 2(10)(ii)). RABEBFITE RREEIR
518 (R M EE2(10)() ) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REPBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2. EXREBEBE (&)

(5) Leases (Continued) (5) M# (&)

(i) As a lessee (Continued) (i) 1EBERBA(E)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change
in the Group's estimate of the amount expected
to be payable under a residual value guarantee,
or there is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in
this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

(ii) As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at
lease inception whether each lease is a finance
lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified as
a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of
an underlying assets to the lessee. If this is not the
case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. The rental income
from operating leases is recognised in accordance
with note 2(23)(ii)(a).

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the sub-
leases are classified as a finance lease or as an
operating lease with reference to the right-of-use
asset arising from the head lease. If the head lease
is a short-term lease to which the Group applies
the exemption described in note 2(5)(i), then the
Group classifies the sub-lease as an operating
lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(6)

(7)

Goodwiill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business less accumulated impairment losses (if
any).

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may
be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then
to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly
in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Research and development

Research expenditure is recognised as an expense
as incurred. Costs incurred on development projects
(relating to the design and testing of new or improved
products) are recognised as intangible assets when the
following criteria are fulfilled:

(i) it is technically feasible to complete the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

(i)  management intends to complete the intangible

asset and use or sell it;

(iii) there is an ability to use or sell the intangible

asset;

(iv) it can be demonstrated how the intangible asset

will generate probable future economic benefits;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REPBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(7)

(8)

Research and development (Continued)

(v) adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell
the intangible asset are available; and

(vi) the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset

during its development can be reliably measured.

Other development expenditures that do not meet
these criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an expense
are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent
period. Capitalised development costs are recorded as
intangible assets and amortised from the point at which
the asset is ready for use on a straight-line basis over
its useful life.

Intangible assets (Other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
and recognised separately from goodwill are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date
(which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination are reported at cost
less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and accumulated impairment losses
(see note 2(10)(ii)), on the same basis as intangible
assets that are acquired separately.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives
is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the assets’ estimated useful lives. The estimated useful
life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit
or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(9) Financial assets

(i)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

— those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and

—  those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group's business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
other comprehensive income. For investments
in debt instruments, this will depend on the
business model in which the investment is held.
For investments in equity instruments that are
not held for trading, this will depend on whether
the Group has made an irrevocable election at
the time of initial recognition to account for the
equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

See note 41(a) for details of each type of financial
asset.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

(ii) Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REPBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2. EXEHBEBE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
9 SWMEE(£)

(9) Financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Measurement (iii) ;&

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss are recorded in profit
or loss. Financial assets with embedded derivatives
are considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition is recognised directly in
profit or loss and presented in other gains/(losses)
together with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as separate line
item in the consolidated income statement. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in
finance income or other income using the effective
interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-pmEf+ - H=1+—HItFZE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2. EXEHEBEBE (£Z)

POLICIES (Continued)
9 SWMEE(£)

(9) Financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Measurement (Continued) (iii) &2 (#&)

Debt instruments (Continued)

Fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVTOCI"): Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVTOCI. Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through other
comprehensive income, except for the recognition
of impairment gains or losses, interest income
and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the financial
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss and recognised in other gains/(losses) — net.
Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income or other income using
the effective interest method. Foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in other gains/
(losses) and impairment expenses are presented
as separate line item in the consolidated income
statement.

Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"): Assets
that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL. A gain or loss on
a debt investment that is subsequently measured
at FVTPL and is not part of a hedging relationship
is recognised in profit or loss and presented net in
the consolidated income statement within other
losses/gains, net in the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REPBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(9) Financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as
other income when the Group's right to receive
payments is established. Changes in the fair value
of financial assets at FVTPL are recognised in other
gains/(losses) — net in the consolidated income
statement. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments measured
at FVTOCI are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.

(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses ("ECLs”) on the following
items:

—  financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and bank balances, trade and
other receivables); and

- finance lease receivables
Financial assets measured at fair value including

other financial assets are not subject to the ECLs
assessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-pmEf+ - H=1+—HItFZE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2. EXEHEBEBE (£Z)

POLICIES (Continued)
(10) GEFEREERE (&)

(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments () THTAELZIEEEKE
(Continued) (&)
Measurement of ECLs HEEEBENGT =
ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of EHEEEEREEERY

credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e.
the difference between the cash flows due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using
the following discount rates where the effect of

discounting is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets and trade and other
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at initial recognition or an approximation R B T B B BR R &
thereof; ok H i UE

—  variable-rate financial assets: current effective - FEeMmEE:ANHSE

interest rate;

—  finance lease receivables: discount rate used
in the measurement of the finance lease
receivable;

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over

which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REPBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the reporting
date; and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of the items to
which the ECLs model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and finance
lease receivables are always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these
financial assets are estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors and an assessment of both the current
and forecast general economic conditions at the
reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs unless there has been a significant increase in
credit risk of the financial instrument since initial
recognition, in which case the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group compares the risk
of default occurring on the financial instrument
assessed at the reporting date with that assessed
at the date of initial recognition. In making this
reassessment, the Group considers that a default
event occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely
to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held); or (ii) the financial
asset is 3 years past due. The Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition:

—  failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in a financial instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor; and

— existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REPBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit
risk since initial recognition. Any change in the
ECLs amount is recognised as an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account,
except for investments in debt securities that are
measured at FVTOCI (recycling), for which the loss
allowance is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the fair value reserve
(recycling).

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note
2(23)(ii)(c) is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial
asset is credit-impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on the amortised cost
(i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss allowance)
of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
have occurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income (Continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

— significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization;

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; or

—  the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of the
issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset
or finance lease receivable is written off (either
partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the
case when the Group determines that the debtor
does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a reversal
of impairment in profit or loss in the period in
which the recovery occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e A% R R B EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024

=

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

—EomFES A=+ —HIFFE

POLICIES (Continued)

2. EXREBEBE (&)

(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

property, plant and equipment, including
right-of-use assets (other than ownership
interest in leasehold land and buildings held
for own use carried at fair value);

investments in subsidiaries and associates
(except for those classified as held for sale or
included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale) in the Company’s statement
of financial position;

goodwill; and

intangible assets.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable

amount is estimated.

In addition, for goodwill,

intangible assets that are not yet available for
use and intangible assets that have indefinite
useful lives, the recoverable amount is estimated
annually whether or not there is any indication of
impairment.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets
(Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), or value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

REMBHRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-pmEf+ - H=1+—HItFZE

2. EXREBEBE (&)

(10) FEBEBREERE (&)
(i) BttF#nBEERE (&)

fE SRR (B 5 18

MABEREEREMBZ
ReELBU s REE
F B H A Y Bl & 5 Rl
MREBEAMERRREER
B-okRERESEL
BEUAZRERBR"
ERIDEERTEL
B (KEMARN) WE
MEENREME EMm
B OIR D EA (HE
AN AEMEEZ
FEE HEEEZKE@
BEABRL 2 RN EE
B2 BB R & AR
(WAt E)HEMRER
(WRIERE) °

7% [ R 1B &5 18

R BN EEMS -
i AREE KD S HE
ZAEEHH IR A Rk &
A O RERE A
EE SR OPC RN SRR UR)
SO -

MEBE 2 EEERR
i 70 38 1 4F 2K RO
BEEEMETE <EEKR
HE-BEEBRZEE
ERRBE 2 FEFTA

—Z-EEIHK Annual Report 2024 157



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REPBHRRME (F)
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(11) Borrowing costs

2. EXREBEBE (&)

(11) BEERA

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred. Capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised.

(12) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position initially when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and that
the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as revenue in profit or loss
on a systematic basis in the same periods in which
the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and consequently
are effectively recognised in profit or loss over the
useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.

(13) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities
(i) Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(13) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Continued)

(i)

Financial guarantees issued (Continued)

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee (being the transaction
price, unless the fair value can otherwise be
reliably estimated) is initially recognised as deferred
income within trade and other payables. The fair
value of financial guarantees issued at the time
of issuance is determined by reference to fees
charged in an arm’s length transactions for similar
services, when such information is obtainable, is
otherwise estimated by reference to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged
by lenders when the guarantee is made available
with the estimated rates that lenders would have
charged, had the guarantees not been available,
where reliable estimates of such information can
be made. Where consideration is received or
receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with
the Group's policies applicable to that category of
asset. Where no such consideration is received or
receivable, an immediate expense is recognised in
profit or loss on initial recognition of any deferred
income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with note 2(13)(iii) if
and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder
of the guarantee will call upon the Group under
the guarantee, and (i) the amount of that claim
on the Group is expected to exceed the amount
currently carried in trade and other payables in
respect of that guarantee, i.e. the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REPBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(13) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Contingent liabilities acquired in business
combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination which are present obligations at
the date of acquisition are initially recognised at
fair value, provided the fair value can be reliably
measured. After their initial recognition at fair
value, such contingent liabilities are recognised
at the higher of the amount initially recognised,
less accumulated amortisation where appropriate,
and the amount that would be determined in
accordance with note 2(13)(iii). Contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination that
cannot be reliably fair valued or where not present
obligations at the date of acquisition are disclosed
in accordance with note 2(13)(iii).

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(14) Inventories and other contract costs

(i)

(ii)

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in
the ordinary course of business, in the process of
production for such sale or in the form of materials
or supplies to be consumed in the production
process or in the rendering of services.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted average method. The cost of finished
goods and work in progress comprises raw
materials, direct labour, other direct costs and
related production overheads (based on normal
operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less applicable
variable selling expenses.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

Other contract costs

Other contract costs are either the incremental
costs of obtaining a contract with a customer or
the costs to fulfil a contract with a customer which
are not capitalised as inventory (see note 2(14)(i)),
property, plant and equipment (see note 2(4)) or
intangible assets (see note 2(8)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e A% R R B EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024

=

2.

—EomFES A=+ —HIFFE

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(14) Inventories and other contract costs (Continued)

(ij) Other contract costs (Continued)

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are
those costs that the Group incurs to obtain a
contract with a customer that it would not have
incurred if the contract had not been obtained
e.g. an incremental sales commission. Incremental
costs of obtaining a contract are capitalised when
incurred if the costs relate to revenue which will
be recognised in a future reporting period and the
costs are expected to be recovered. Other costs of
obtaining a contract are expensed when incurred.

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised if the
costs relate directly to an existing contract or to
a specifically identifiable anticipated contract;
generate or enhance resources that will be used
to provide goods or services in the future; and
are expected to be recovered. Costs that relate
directly to an existing contract or to a specifically
identifiable anticipated contract may include direct
labour, direct materials, allocations of costs, costs
that are explicitly chargeable to the customer and
other costs that are incurred only because the
Group entered into the contract (for example,
payments to sub-contractors). Other costs of
fulfilling a contract, which are not capitalised
as inventory, property, plant and equipment or
intangible assets, are expensed as incurred.

Capitalised contract costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Impairment losses are recognised to the extent
that the carrying amount of the contract cost
asset exceeds the net of (i) remaining amount of
consideration that the Group expects to receive in
exchange for the goods or services to which the
asset relates, less (ii) any costs that relate directly
to providing those goods or services that have not
yet been recognised as expenses.

Amortisation of capitalised contract costs is
charged to profit or loss when the revenue
to which the asset relates is recognised. The
accounting policy for revenue recognition is set
out in note 2(23).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-pmEf+ - H=1+—HItFZE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2. EXEHEBEBE (£Z)

POLICIES (Continued)
(15) BHEEREGHER

(15) Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see note 2(23)) before being

WASEBERIRES W EZ R
1'%?&??/\ﬁT%ﬁﬂﬂtFH&HMJQEZ

unconditionally entitled to the consideration under the ﬁE = BUA ( EJBHE‘IZ(B)) Uk
payment terms set out in the contract. Contract assets REBEHNEE-EHNEERER
are assessed for ECLs in accordance with the policy set E/\\W u£2(1 0)(i )ZLBZ%E HIEHE
out in note 2(10)(i) and are reclassified to receivables ERE WU ERE 2 F K

when the right to the consideration has become
unconditional (see note 2(16)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue (see note 2(23)). A contract
liability would also be recognised if the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration before the
Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a
corresponding receivable would also be recognised (see
note 2(16)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
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(16) Trade and other receivables (16) ES R HMEWFIE

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. If revenue has been recognised
before the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a contract
asset (note 2(15)).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit
losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REPBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2. EXEHBEBE(£)

POLICIES (Continued)

(17) Cash and cash equivalents 17) B BELEE
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank ReEbBReFEBERTFAR
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and Re ERTEEMCSREREN
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly EHTERUREHARS MRS
liquid investments that are readily convertible to WEE EERETJARERR
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an PEHSENRES MEATAEX
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been WEEZHRERKR BEEAZKZ=
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank BAANINEH-ARERZREREITE
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an RALEERSEIER 2 —2HIRT
integral part of the Group’s cash management are also EX - MEeBHeRERME Y
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents AR RBESEMNAKDLHD -
for the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash ReE R\ ZEZRWF2010)(0) AT
flows. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECLs THBRFIEEFEEBSE-

in accordance with the policy set out in note 2(10)(i).

Pledged bank deposits are not included in cash and EERZRTERTERERR S
cash equivalents. ERSFEEBEN-

(18) Share capital (18) B A
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. TEREEAER -
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue EREEHBETIROMIERE
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a BERARNTRRAEZ RS AT
deduction (net of tax) from the proceeds. BEIE (HKBKRE) 23R -
Where any group company purchases the Company’s WERNSBEQARBEERQR Z#
equity share capital (treasury shares), the consideration mERA(BFRG) AXHzR
paid, including any directly attributable incremental B(ERAMNEEEEEEKRA
costs (net of income taxes) is deducted from equity (MBRAER) )RAR G RER
attributable to the Company’s equity shareholders until EAELzEZPNR EER
the shares are cancelled, reissued or disposed of. Where METHE EFETHEERIE-
such shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any B BERDE B DS EE
consideration received, net of any directly attributable 77 B AT B 2 AR B ($OBR (E
incremental transaction costs and the related income MEERERZIEEXNALBHE
tax effects, is included in equity attributable to the FTEMEE)TARRTRIER
Company's equity shareholders. BAEILZ R -

(19) Trade and other payables (19) ES R HEMEMNFIE
Trade and other payables are initially recognised at BEHRHEMENREBZRRAFEEA
fair value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities MR T IEBHFE2013)0)
(if any) measured in accordance with note 2(13)(i), SRECHBEREGN EH R
trade and other payables are subsequently stated at Efth A BRTE B {2 4R AH AR A
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would R MR FEYTEKLN AR
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. B AR AR ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-—FT-_pWFEf-—A=1+—HIFZ

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2. EXEHEBEBE (£Z)

POLICIES (Continued)

(20) Bank and other borrowings (20) SRITR EMEER

Bank and other borrowings are initially recognised at
fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Transaction
costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset
or financial liability, including fees and commissions
paid to agents, advisers, brokers and dealers, levies
by regulatory agencies and securities exchanges, and
transfer taxes and duties. Bank and other borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
income statement over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Bank and other borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the end of the reporting period.

(21) Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred
tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent
that it relates to a business combination, or items
recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive
income.

Current tax comprises the estimated tax payable or
receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year
and any adjustments to the tax payable or receivable
in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax
payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax
amount expected to be paid or received that reflects
any uncertainty related to income taxes. It is measured
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date. Current tax also includes any tax arising
from dividends.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain
criteria are met.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REPBHRRME (F)
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(21) Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not
recognised for:

— temporary differences on the initial recognition
of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not
a business combination and that affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss and does not
give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences;

— temporary differences related to investment in
subsidiaries, associates and joint venture to the
extent that the Group is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that they will not reverse in the
foreseeable future;

—  taxable temporary differences arising on the initial
recognition of goodwill; and

— those related to the income taxes arising from
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted to
implement the Pillar Two Model Rules published by
the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and
Development.

The Group recognised deferred tax assets and deferred

tax liabilities separately in relation to its lease liabilities
and right-of-use assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-pmEf+ - H=1+—HItFZE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2. EXEHEBEBE (£Z)

POLICIES (Continued)
(21) FA81R (&)

(21) Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which they can
be used. Future taxable profits are determined based on
the reversal of relevant taxable temporary differences.
If the amount of taxable temporary differences is
insufficient to recognise a deferred tax asset in full,
then future taxable profits, adjusted for reversals of
existing temporary differences, are considered, based
on the business plans for individual subsidiaries in
the Group. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will
be realised; such reductions are reversed when the
probability of future taxable profits improves.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if
certain criteria are met.

(22) Employee benefits

(i) Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution plans under
the mandatory provident fund scheme, the ORSO
scheme and state-managed retirement benefits
scheme are charged as expenses as they fall due.

(ii) Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula that
takes into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company’s shareholders after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REPBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2. EXEHBEBE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
22) EERR (&)
(iii)) BGBAZ#HE

(22) Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii)) Share-based compensation

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost with
a corresponding increase in share option reserve
within equity. The fair value is measured at grant
date using the Hull White Trinomial Model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the share options, the
total estimated fair value of the share options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into account
the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged or credited to the income
statement for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share option reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that vest
(with a corresponding adjustment to the share
option reserve) except where forfeiture is only due
to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to
the market price of the Company’s shares. The
equity amount is recognised in the share option
reserve until either the option is exercised (when
it is transferred to the share capital) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to retained
profits).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(22) Employee benefits (Continued)

(iv) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits.
The Group recognises termination benefits at the
earlier of the following dates: (a) when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits;
and (b) when the entity recognises costs for a
restructuring that is within the scope of HKAS 37
and involves the payment of termination benefits.
In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy, the termination benefits are measured
based on the number of employees expected to
accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period are
discounted to their present value.

(23) Revenue recognition and other income

(i)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for goods supplied or service
performed, stated net of rebates and returns.
The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the entity; and when specific criteria have been
met for each of the Group’s activities, as described
below. The Group bases its estimates of returns on
historical results, taking into consideration the type
of customers, the nature of transactions and the
specifics of each arrangement.

Sales of products

Revenue from the sale of goods directly to the
customers is recognised at the point that the control
of the inventory have passed to the customers,
which is primarily upon the acceptance of the
products by the customers. The customers have
full discretion over the products, and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customers’
acceptance of the products. The Group collects
cash or bank acceptance notes from the customers
before or upon deliveries of products through banks.
Cash or bank acceptance notes collected from the
customers before product delivery is recognised as
contract liabilities (note 2(15)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REPBHRRME (F)
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2. EXREBEBE (&)

(23) Revenue recognition and other income (Continued)

(i) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(ii)

Installation services income

Installation services income is recognised when the
relevant services are provided.

The Group's obligation to repair or replace faulty
products under the standard warranty terms,
which cannot be purchased separately and serve as
an assurance that the products sold comply with
agreed-upon specifications at the time of sale.

Finance lease income

Interest income from the finance lease is
recognised on a basis that reflect a constant
periodic rate of return on the net investment in
the finance lease.

Other income

(a)

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by
the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of
the leased asset. Lease incentives granted
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are earned.

Handling and services income are recognised
when services are provided.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method. For
financial assets measured at amortised cost
or FVTOCI (recycling) that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied
to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For
credit-impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset (see note 2(10)(i)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-pmEf+ - H=1+—HItFZE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2. EXEHEBEBE (£Z)

POLICIES (Continued)
(23) WERAREMWA (£)

(23) Revenue recognition and other income (Continued)

(ii) Other income (Continued)

(d)

Dividend income is recognised when the

performance of, the Group's various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of

(i) Bt (&)
(d) ngﬂiz)\ﬁ/\#ﬁz HA KA

shareholder’s right to receive payment is W ER AR E’] R R EF B

established prior to the end of the reporting Tﬁﬁﬁﬂ‘ﬁ

period.

(24) Dividend distribution (24) RE DK
Distribution of final dividends proposed by the Board HESZERRENRARER
is classified as a separate allocation of retained profits MR RE R NIER S
within the equity section of the statement of financial BERNMOEEBI TN BEERR
position, until it has been approved by the shareholders RBEERE ARG E#E IR -5 LR
in a general meeting. When these dividends have been BERRSENSTIRE &R
approved by the shareholders and declared, they are BfE-
recognised as a liability.
Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and RN <<$$%, Al BT EEHED
declared, because the Articles grant the Directors the NERAPEHRE AP HRES
authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, @HTE%&E o Bl BEREK
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a R H AR SR R EAR B RN R
liability when they are proposed and declared. mRREE-
(25) Segment reporting (25) P HHmE

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment EEBNHRAUBBREMERZ
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, EDHEBE 2B BEHMAK
are identified from the financial information provided SERREEERHIEEUTH
regularly to the Group’s top management for the WMEFHERN BEEERBZER
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the EPEBERTAEETRES R
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customers, the methods used to distribute the products PARESE IR E 7 m A E LA
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory B A - 1H] Rid 3F BRIER 2&ED
environment. Operating segments which are not A E KB FER - BIZ —%

individually material may be aggregated if they share
a majority of these criteria. A discontinued segment is
separately presented from continuing segments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REPBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(26) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HK dollars, which is the
Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation
currency. All values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in profit or loss, except
those arising from qualifying cash flow hedges
or qualifying net investment hedges which are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities, such as equity instruments
held at FVTPL, are recognised in profit or loss
as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary financial assets, such
as equities classified as financial assets at FVTOCI,
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair value
reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-pmEf+ - H=1+—HItFZE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2. EXEHEBEBE (£Z)

POLICIES (Continued)
(26) N E (&)
(iii)) EBF A &

(26) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii)) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

(i) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions);
and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the
translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
currency instruments designated as hedges
of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the translation reserve. When a foreign
operation is sold, such exchange differences are
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when gain
or loss on disposal is recognised.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the year-end closing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REPBHRRME (F)
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(27) Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control of the Group;

(2) has significant influence over the Group; or

(3) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group.

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(1) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(2) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(3) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(4) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(5) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

(6) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in note 2(27)(i).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-pmEf+ - H=1+—HItFZE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2. EXEHEBEBE (£Z)

POLICIES (Continued)

(27) Related parties (Continued) (27) BB 5 (&)

(i) (Continued)

(7) A person identified in note 2(27)(i)(1) has
significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(8) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

(28) Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can
be clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and
which represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is part of a single
co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to
be classified as held for sale, if earlier. It also occurs
if the operation is abandoned. Where an operation is
classified as discontinued, a single amount is presented
on the face of the consolidated income statement,
which comprises:

— the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

— the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or
on the disposal, of the assets or disposal group(s)
constituting the discontinued operation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REPBHRRME (F)
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the
first time for the current year’s financial statements.

. Amendments to HKFRS 16, Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback

e  Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current (the “2020 Amendments”)

° Amendments to HKAS 1, Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants (the “2022 Amendments”)

e Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7, Supplier Finance
Arrangements

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs are
described below:

(i)  Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements
that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability
arising in a sale and leaseback transaction to ensure
the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount of the
gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains.
Since the Group has no sale and leaseback transactions
with variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate occurring from the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16, the amendments did not have
any impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current, including
what is meant by a right to defer settlement and that
a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting
period. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the
likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement. The amendments also clarify that a liability
can be settled in its own equity instruments, and that
only if a conversion option in a convertible liability is
itself accounted for as an equity instrument would
the terms of a liability not impact its classification.
The 2022 Amendments further clarify that, among
covenants of a liability arising from a loan arrangement,
only those with which an entity must comply on or
before the reporting date affect the classification of
that liability as current or non-current. Additional
disclosures are required for non-current liabilities
that are subject to the entity complying with future
covenants within 12 months after the reporting period.

The Group has reassessed the terms and conditions
of its liabilities as at 1 January 2023 and 2024 and
concluded that the classification of its liabilities as
current or non-current remained unchanged upon
initial application of the amendments. Accordingly, the
amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 clarify the
characteristics of supplier finance arrangements and
require additional disclosure of such arrangements.
The disclosure requirements in the amendments
are intended to assist users of financial statements
in understanding the effects of supplier finance
arrangements on an entity's liabilities, cash flows and
exposure to liquidity risk. As the Group does not have
supplier finance arrangements, the amendments did not
have any impact on the Group's financial statements.

REMBBRERME (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-pmEf+ - H=1+—HItFZE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REPBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGMENTS

The

assumptions, estimates and judgments are continually

evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

()

(i)

(iii)

Allowance for impairment of trade receivables and
finance lease receivables

For trade receivables and finance lease receivables,
the Group applies the simplified approach to provide
for ECLs as prescribed by HKFRS 9, which requires
the use of the lifetime expected loss allowance for
all trade receivables and finance lease receivables.
The loss allowances for financial assets are based
on assumptions about risk of default and expected
loss rates. The Group uses judgment in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates
at the end of each reporting period. A considerable
level of judgment is exercised by the Directors when
assessing the financial condition and credit worthiness
of each customer.

Provision for inventories

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of inventories
at the end of each reporting period to determine
whether the inventories are carried at lower of cost
and net realisable value in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2(14). The Directors
estimate the net realisable value based on the current
market situation and historical experience on similar
inventories. Any change in the assumptions would
increase or decrease the amount of inventories write-
down or the related reversals of write-down and affect
the Group's net asset value.

Fair values of ownership interest in leasehold land
and buildings held for own use

The Group appointed an independent qualified
professional valuer to assess the fair values of the
ownership interest in leasehold land and buildings
held for own use. In determining the fair values, the
independent qualified professional valuer had utilised
valuation approaches which involve certain estimates.
Management of the Group had exercised its judgment
and was satisfied that the valuation approaches and
inputs used were reflective of the current market
conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-pmEf+ - H=1+—HItFZE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4, EESH AT RYE (&)
JUDGMENTS (Continued)

(i) EREETHREBFNREEER

(iii) Fair values of ownership interest in leasehold land

and buildings held for own use (Continued)

As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amount of
ownership interest in leasehold land and buildings
held for own use were approximately HK$338,548,000
(2023: approximately HK$391,370,000).

Details of the valuation techniques, inputs and key
assumptions used in the determination of the fair
value of the ownership interest in leasehold land and
buildings held for own use were set out in note 17 to
the consolidated financial statements.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a) Revenue

Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents
the amounts received and receivable for goods sold
to external customers, less returns and discounts and
interest income from finance lease receivables during

ZAVEEE)

R-ZE-_WNWFEF+=—_A=+—8"
ERELTHREFNMEERE
S HEBRTE B A #338,548,00008
T (ZZF = =4:4391,370,000
BIL) e
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EAEN G BHRMET7 -

KARDHRSE
(@) WA

LUNPIEIRNESE Ak 3 R E
AAEERINBEFIHEE DR
RERFTINERZE B EKRFR
EREEKWBEHEHEREZNE

the year. An analysis of revenue is as follows: WA W ADHTIR
2024 2023
—E-FE —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated)
(&&E5)
Continuing operations BEREXRYK
Revenue A
Sales of goods EmiEE 1,855,233 1,708,373
Installation services for machinery e, 22 3 AR 7% 5,106 5,174
Revenue from contracts with customers HKBZEE&SHZIA 1,860,339 1,713,547
Finance lease income REMRE WA 5,015 10,200
Total revenue I A 1,865,354 1,723,747
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REPBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 5. WARZEH®E (&)
(Continued)
(a) Revenue (Continued) (a) WA (&)
Disaggregation of revenue WARE
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with REIZERBEN>ENKRERP
customers by major products is as follows: BHZWALT
2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET
(Restated)
(ggE5)
Continuing operations BELSEER
Trading of industrial consumables TITEHERES 397,107 388,339
Sales of plastic products FEBBIMIHE 573,373 525,873
Sales of machinery ek iHE 884,753 794,161
Installation services for machinery Ak 22 5 R 7 5,106 5,174
1,860,339 1,713,547
The timing of revenue recognition of all revenue from FIBEREBEFAEHNZHRAHERE
contracts with customers is at a point in time when F RS & G ok AR 7% 12 i 4 & B [
customers obtain control of goods or services. BhAER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(b) Segment Reporting

The Group manages its business by a mixture of
both business lines and geographical locations. In a
manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Group’s top management
for the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the Group
has identified, on a product basis, the following four
reportable segments.

(1) trading of industrial consumables;

(2) processing and manufacturing of plastic products;
(3) manufacturing of machinery; and

(4) machinery leasing.

The PCB Business discontinued in the current year. The
segment information reported does not include any
amounts for this discontinued operation. For details,
please refer to note 12. Certain comparative figures
have been restated to conform with current year
presentation.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group's top
executive management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on
the following basis:

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities
include items directly attributable to a segment as well
as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to
that segment. For example, segment assets may include
inventories, trade receivables, right-of-use assets and
property, plant and equipment. Segment revenue,
expenses, assets, and liabilities are determined before
intra-group balances and intra-group transactions are
eliminated as part of the consolidation process, except
to the extent that such intra-group balances and
transactions are between group entities within a single
segment. Inter-segment pricing is based on similar
terms as those available to other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred
during the period to acquire segment assets that are
expected to be used for more than one period.

REMBBRERME (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-_F+ - H=1+—HIFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REPBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 5. WARZEH®E (&)
(Continued)
(b) Segment Reporting (Continued) (b) /L (&)
Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) DBFEE BEREE (&)
Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and RASEBEEXZZEFEEZR LD
corporate assets and corporate expenses. ¥XEENMDMEER-
The segment results for the year ended 31 December BHE-_ZFT-_ME+=-A=+—H
2024 are as follows: EFEZDEEERT
Industrial Plastic Machinery Other
consumables products  Machinery leasing  operations Eliminations Consolidated
IEHER EERR BH  BEEE HitgE £ g8

HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS 000 HK$000 HKS 000 HK$000
FET FET FET FEx FET FEx FET

Continuing operations BREEXY

REVENUE WA

External sales HMAE 397,107 573,373 889,859 5,015 - - 1,865,354
Inter-segment sales (note) PBEHE (W) 20,366 34 1,234 15 - (21,649) -
Total revenue ETON 417,473 573,407 891,093 5,030 - (21,649) 1,865,354
Segment results PHER 22,073 35,246 (18,798) 1,615 6,749 - 46,885
Unallocated corporate expenses FUNEZLEER (18,971)
Operating profit ES eyl 21,914
Investment income BEBA 9,070
Share of results of associates YA INTES: 3,991
Finance costs HBER (13,838)
Profit before tax BAAER 27,137
Income tax expense MERER (16,074)
Profit for the year FEET 11,063
Note: Bt

Inter-segment sales are determined at prevailing market rates. DEEHERRITMISERETE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-pmEf+ - H=1+—HItFZE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 5. WARDEHE (&)
(Continued)
(b) Segment Reporting (Continued) (b) /L (&)

N

y

PSR BEEREE (E)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December RZE_NFE+_A=+—HZ
2024 are as follows: NEEERABRBHOT :
Industrial Plastic Machinery Other
consumables products Machinery leasing operations  Consolidated
I¥E%ER EEHR W BHES Hit&E ®a
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
ASSETS BE
Segment assets NHEE 348,224 385,505 951,146 199,594 68,847 1,953,316
Interests in associates Be N AR 36,987
Unallocated corporate assets KA ARz hEEE 181,888
Consolidated total assets GRBEERE 2,172,191
LIABILITIES &
Segment liabilities HEEE 101,196 114,890 445,986 42,931 4,558 709,561
Current tax payable AHERRE 5,627
Borrowings EES 115,259
Unallocated corporate liabilities KA ARz hEEE 31,227
Consolidated total liabilities GaBfaE 861,674
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REPBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 5. WARDIHHE (&)
(Continued)
(b) Segment Reporting (Continued) (b) DEH/mE (&)

N

Yy

PSR EEREE (E)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

The segment information as at 31 December 2024 is as N_ZE-_MWF+_A=+—H2
follows: DERPER T
Industrial Plastic Machinery Other
consumables products  Machinery leasing operations Unallocated Consolidated
IXH#R EEHR BH  HEREE  EfEE FAE Ga
HK$000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000
FET TET FET FET TET FET FET
Continuing operations BREEER
OTHER INFORMATION -
Capital additions BREM 11,021 6,284 10,589 - - 27 27,921
Depreciation and amortisation REREH 4,434 12,324 25,314 258 497 5,118 47,945
Allowance/(reversal of allowance) for REENERE/
impairment of bad and doubtful debts (%) 15 387 (1.873) (177) (2,523) - #.171)
Share of results of associates EEBERRAEE - - 3,991 - - - 3,991
Interest income L ON 1,236 1,892 1,525 947 3 2,062 7,665
Finance costs B%ER 814 1,752 8,191 19 20 3,042 13,838
Income tax expense/(credit) ERER/ (B8) 5,179 4,593 1,162 (1,441) 4,025 2,556 16,074
Other non-cash item: Hi RS ER
Written down/(reversal of write down) FE(MREE) /
of inventories il 1,593 97 (784) - - - 906
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5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBHRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024

B2 —F-—pF+=—A=+—HIFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 5. WARZDEH®E (&
(Continued)
(b) Segment Reporting (Continued) (b) DEBIRE (&)
Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) DA BEREE (&)
The segment results for the year ended 31 December HE-_Z-_="%+Z-HA=+—H
2023 (restated) are as follows: FEFE(KEV)ZBEE W
T
Industrial Plastic Machinery Other
consumables products Machinery leasing operations  Eliminations ~ Consolidated
I%EER e BR EWEE Hitg@ i o)
HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
Continuing operations BELSEER
REVENUE KA
External sales HorEE 388,339 525,873 799,335 10,200 - - 1,723,747
Inter-segment sales (note) PBEHE (M) 28,623 61 1,573 6 - (30,263) -
Total revenue ETON 416,962 525,934 800,908 10,206 - (30,263) 1,723,747
Segment results PHEE 18,210 33,331 1,007 1,412 3,264 - 57,224
Unallocated corporate expenses FAPEZLEER 21171)
Operating profit AR 36,053
Investment income RERA 10,458
Share of results of associates EEBENRAZEE 3,635
Gain on disposal of HE-HHEARZ
an associate W& 412
Finance costs HBER (14,922)
Profit before tax BRiREAR 35,636
Income tax expense MERER (13,938)
Profit for the year FERF 21,698
Note: HEE -

Inter-segment sales are determined at prevailing market rates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE—E-FE+ - H=1+—HIFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 5. WARSHHRE (2
(Continued)
(b) Segment Reporting (Continued) (b) DEH/mE (&)
Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) DEBFEE BEREE (&)
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December RZEZ=F+=ZH=+—8z2
2023 are as follows: DHEERBENT:
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
BEIEH
Printed
Industrial Plastic Machinery Other circuit
consumables products Machinery leasing operations boards  Consolidated
I%E#ER FEER 3 EREE HingE  ORIRRR o)

HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TET TiET TET TET TET TET TET

ASSETS EE

Segment assets PBEE 316,582 372,179 927,785 295,004 54,266 278,363 2,244179
Interests in associates BENAER 36,549
Unallocated corporate assets FRANRZGEEE 181,352
Consolidated total assets RAEESE 2,462,080
LIABILITIES af

Segment liabilities PHaRE 75,389 117,079 417,099 49,277 143 101,327 760,314
Current tax payable REEMARE 4,836
Borrowings & 234,598
Unallocated corporate liabilities FRANRZLEEE 33,468

Consolidated total liabilities RARELE 1,033,216
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5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 5.
(Continued)

(b) Segment Reporting (Continued)

The segment information as at 31 December 2023
(restated) is as follows:

Industrial Plastic
consumables products
I#Efm 286
HKS'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Continuing operations BREEXK
OTHER INFORMATION At EH
Capital additions EAEN 593 17,692
Depreciation and amortisation FEREH 5,016 14,918
Allowance/(reversal of allowance) for REERERE/

impairment of bad and doubtful debts (E#) 2,178 445
Share of results of associates EEBENAEA - -
Interest income FEMA 567 1,774
Finance costs YBER 661 372
Income tax expense/(credit) FERER/ (B%) 4,982 2,402
Other non-cash item: HEEBREER:
(Reversal of write down)/ FE(HERE) /

written down of inventories il (758) 39

REUBRRME ()
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-_F+ - H=1+—HIFE

WARDEB®RE (&)

(b) &S (&)

RZZTEZ=F+-A=+—B (&
BA)znEERMT
Machinery Other
Machinery leasing  operations  Unallocated ~ Consolidated
BH  BEEE  EpEE AR g8

HKS'000  HKS000  HKS$'000  HK$'000 HKS 000
TET TET TET TET TET

53,871 363 - 9 72,528
23,693 362 195 5,315 49,499
(355) 4175 7,213 - 13,656
3,635 - - - 3,635
921 920 2,204 1,677 8,063
9,609 ) ) 419 14,922
4,497 1377 (1,320) 2,000 13,938
4,095 - - - 3376
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REPBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 5. WARDEHKE (£2)

(Continued)

(b) Segment Reporting (Continued)

Geographical information

The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong,
Mainland China, other Asia-Pacific countries, North
America and Europe. The Group's trading of industrial
consumables division is located in Hong Kong and
Mainland China. The manufacturing of plastic products,
machinery and printed circuit boards divisions are
located in Mainland China.

An analysis of revenue from continuing operations and
external customers by geographical market, based on
the location of the goods were delivered or services
rendered, is as follows:

(b)

R E (4F)
i EEHF

AEENEBURELS FENA
Mo~ Hofh 25 K B 5K - dE SR M K B
M- AEBZIEXHAME S E
AMEREBEERFEAM T8 H
o AR R AR BE IR F R E X
BRI B 3l -

RIBERAN B SR AR Ay 3
BWEMSEA D HHELEER
KON EP WA DT

2024 2023

—E_NE —E =4

HKS$000 HK$000

FETT FET

(Restated)

(&g&E5)

Hong Kong aBA 31,961 26,779
Mainland China A 1,578,096 1,459,282
Other Asia-Pacific countries H g KEIZR 149,261 185,497
North America 4k &M 17,191 6,584
Europe B 88,845 45,605
1,865,354 1,723,747

An analysis of the Group's property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, goodwill and intangible
assets by the geographical area in which the assets are
located is as follows:

REENYE - -BFELEE - EH
REE BERENEEREE
FrEs@El D 20 mT :

2024 2023
—E_ME —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TFHET
Hong Kong B 108,146 127,694
Mainland China A B 3 389,876 440,591
498,022 568,285
Information about major customers FTEEFHEH

No customer of the Group has individually accounted
for over 10% of the Group’s total revenue during
the year (2023: Nil) and no information about major
customers is presented accordingly.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBBRERME (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-pmEf+ - H=1+—HItFZE

OTHER INCOME, GAIN AND LOSS, NET 6. HWA -WEREBEFR
2024 2023
—E-MEF —ETE-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TFHET
(Restated)
(ge=:5))
Continuing operations BEREER
Other income Hi g A
Gross rental income from MENRZRFE2HS W BT
properties and equipment 1,918 2,131
Handling, tooling and sales of BRIR - TR MIHERER
scrapped materials 612 1,351
Government grants (note) BT ek (Krat) 14,692 7,371
Sundry income E g A 10,235 8,759
27,457 19,612
Gain and loss, net WaREEFE
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEYWE BEEKEBZ
plant and equipment Wzt (E18) (743) 125
Exchange gain/(loss), net ERWE (BE)FH 8,466 (3,525)
7,723 (3,400)
35,180 16,212

Note:

Government grants are mainly related to unconditional government
subsidies received by the Group from relevant government bodies
for the purpose of giving incentive to enterprises, including but not

R

limited to engage in research and development activities and refund

of the value-added-tax.

BEHETEREENKFAFPIESHE
GHBREHE SEABEE (BRERIR
PROTEEME RS A MREHEET -

—Z-EEIHK Annual Report 2024 189



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REPBHRRME (F)
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

7. INVESTMENT INCOME 7. REWA
2024 2023
—E-E —E=F
HKS$000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated)
(&&&EH)
Continuing operations BEREER
Bank and other interest income RIT R EMF B A 7,665 8,063
Total interest income on WIkERAFEEFTEAE
financial assets not at FVTPL HEirANEBEmceRmEE
Z BN 7,665 8,063
Realised and unrealised gain on HhemEECD AR
other financial assets REIR W= 1,405 2,395
9,070 10,458
Discontinued operation ERILEREER
Bank and other interest income RT R H A F B U A 660 994
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MKEHR
2024 2023
—E_NF —E =
HK$'000 HK$°000
FETT FET
(Restated)
(&)
Continuing operations BEREER
Interest on: AT EEEENTE:
Bank borrowings wholly repayable BARAFANEBEEEZ
within 5 years BITE R 12,991 14,289
Lease liabilities HEBE 847 633
Total interest expense on WA FEEFEAR
financial liabilities not at FVTPL BETABRZEAE
2R BEEZ BT 13,838 14,922
Discontinued operation ERIEREER
Interest on: B TAIEEEEMF A :
Bank borrowings wholly repayable BARAFANBHEEL
within 5 years RITHERK - 105
Lease liabilities HEAR 5 1,522
5 1,627
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting) the

REMB®RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE—F-—mF+=—A=+—HIFE

9. BRIRATEF

BiRATEME MR (FEA) THE

following: 18 :
2024 2023
—E_-NF —E =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated)
(&&E5)
Continuing operations HEREER
Staff costs (including Directors’ BEINAK (BEESHE)
emoluments)
— Salaries and other benefits (note i) —Hre MEMERN () 270,779 248,807
— Retirement benefits scheme —RIK@FEH B
contributions 25,900 26,721
Total staff costs BE IR 296,679 275,528
Cost of inventories sold (note i) BEHEFEHAR (M atii) 1,520,433 1,391,189
(Reversal of allowance)/allowance RIZERRE (D7) /#E
for impairment of bad and FEE
doubtful debts, net (4,171) 13,656
Auditors’ remuneration Z B B 2
— Group auditors — S B EAD 2,250 2,695
Depreciation and amortisation on: EREN:
— Property, plant and equipment — W% BEREE
— Ownership interest in leasehold —BRAEELHE
land and buildings held for BFEHOMARER
own use 14,749 15,676
— Other owned assets —-HEMBEEEE 27,183 26,813
- Right-of-use assets —ERAEEE 6,013 7,010
Research and development expenditure #f2% & 69,251 69,660
Short-term lease payments EEMHERES 1,212 1,383
Notes: it -
(i)  Salaries and other benefits of approximately HK$104,314,000 (i) HFeRkHEMEF4104,314,0008 T

(2023: approximately HK$98,549,000) has been expensed

in cost of sales,

approximately HK$65,702,000 (2023:

approximately HK$57,103,000) in selling and distribution costs
and approximately HK$100,763,000 (2023: approximately
HK$93,155,000) in administrative expenses.

(i)  During the year ended 31 December 2024, the amount (i)
included written-down of inventories of approximately
HK$906,000 (2023: approximately HK$3,376,000).

(Z= — =% :%998,549,0008 7t) E
HWEr AR E KA #65,702,0007%8
n(_$1:¢ #757,103,0007% 7T )

S48 A K 4100,763,000 7T (=
ygn_i #993,155,0007 7T ) I 17 X
BA-

HE-_ZT_NWF+-_A=+—HILF
B ZeE e MR T E%906,0007%
JTT(—ZT = =% :493,376,000/87T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REPBHRRME (F)
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

10A.BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(i) Directors’ emoluments

1MAEEFEMNRES
(i) E=®2

The emoluments of each Director are set out as below:

For the year ended 31 December 2024:

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,

BREFZHMeHIIMT

BE-_Z_WmE+=-A=+—H
IEFE:

whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

REAREESHE (FRAFAARAMEAARR) CAAERME

Employer's
Allowances contribution
Discretionary and benefits  to a retirement
Fees Salaries bonuses inkind benefit scheme Total
BHRER
e e BETL REREVEN AENEIHX s
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Executive Directors HTEE
M. Tang To BE5k = 1,560 263 = 108 1,931
Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman Ha%E - 2,470 526 - 18 3,014
Non-executive Director FHTEE
Mr. Kan Wai Wah BEELE 100 - - - - 100
Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BU#HTEE
Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan ERERT 168 - - - - 168
Mr. Lam Kwok Ming EA % 4 100 - - - - 100
Mr. Lee Wai Yip, Alvin FRERE 100 - - - - 100
468 4,030 789 - 126 5,413

None of the Directors received or will receive any
emoluments in respect of a person accepting office as a

director during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-_F+ - H=1+—HIFE

10A.BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 1AEEEARERS (&)
(Continued)
(i) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (i) EEmME (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2023: HE-_ZT-=F+=-A=+—8H
IHFE:

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

AEAEEEZRR (TRRARARENERIEE) ENIRLHE

Employer's
Allowances contribution
Discretionary and benefits  to a retirement
Fees Salaries bonuses inkind  benefit scheme Total
BB
ik e METL  ZEREVERN  HENEEER A
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HKS$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Executive Directors HTEE
Mr. Tang To BE5k - 1,560 304 - 108 1,972
Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman HEEE - 2,080 607 - 18 2,705
Non-executive Directors FHEE
Mr. Kan Wai Wah HEEEE 100 - - - - 100
Mr. Qu Jinping (note) BoTRE(WE) - - - - - -
Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BU##TEE
Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan BERERL 168 - - - - 168
Mr. Huang Zhi Wei (note) BEERE (i) - - - - - -
Mr. Lam Kwok Ming EEA 5 100 - - - - 100
Mr. Lee Wai Yip, Alvin FRERE 100 - - - - 100
468 3,640 911 - 126 5,145
Note: Htat -
During the year, Messrs. Qu Jinping and Huang Zhi Wei waived BREESTFEEREEELEENER
their directors’ fees under their letters of appointment and E RERFARERREEZWE I
resigned as a non-executive Director and an independent non- ERZZE_=FNA=-+HBDHE
executive Director, respectively, on 25 September 2023. FHEATEERBLFRITES
None of the Directors received or will receive any FABBRESUEAAZERNES
emoluments in respect of a person accepting office as a B A7 0 B2 WCER 3 i W B (R B & o

director during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—E-FE+ - H=1+—HIFE

10A.BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination
benefits

None of the Directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits or termination benefits during the
year (2023: same).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the
Company did not pay consideration to any third parties
for making available directors’ services (2023: same).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

During the year ended 31 December 2024, there were
no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate
by and connected entities with such directors (2023:
same).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save as the related party transactions as disclosed in
note 43 to the consolidated financial statements and
in the heading of “Related Party Transactions” of the
section of "“Report of the Directors” of this annual
report, no transaction, arrangement or contract that
is significant in relation to the Group’s businesses to
which the Company, its holding company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or
his/her connected entity had, directly or indirectly, a
material interest was entered into or subsisted at any
time during the year or at the end of the year (2023:
same).
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

10B.EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

REMBBRERME (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-pmEf+ - H=1+—HItFZE

10B. B E A B

2024 2023
—E-@mE —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FiET
(Restated)
(&=5))
Wages, salaries, allowances and Fae L& ZAREMER
other benefits 270,779 248,807
Pension costs — defined contribution RRE AN — F B A G
plans 927 781
Pension costs — social securities BRERA-—FELSRES
in the PRC 24,973 25,940
296,679 275,528
Five highest paid individuals IuEeEFMzESR

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 included
two (2023: two) Directors whose emoluments are reflected
in note 10A to the consolidated financial statements. The
emoluments payable to the remaining three (2023: three)
individuals during the years ended 31 December 2024 and &

—_E =

AEEAUGESMEBEE ZH M
M) DES Hile
p¥§IJ MR A M IS MR GE10A - B

- Eiﬁ_v_—iJr ﬂ
_+ BIEFE A=
LL)E—m@H/fEI’HEE\E’JMI%ﬁEJ

iz (=

2023 are as follows: m
2024 2023
—E-mF —ZEZ=F
HK$000 HK$'000
F#E T FAET
Fees we = =
Salaries, allowances and other benefits %4 - 28 & H {ih 12 7 4,183 4,161
Discretionary bonuses BB IEAL 4,595 5,024
Pension fund Sy NGA = =

Pension costs — defined contribution BIRE KA — T HEREHE

plans 260 231
9,038 9,416
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REPBHRRME (F)
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

10B.EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (Continued)
Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

The emoluments of these remaining three (2023: three)
highest paid individuals fell within the following bands:

10B.EERABX (£Z)

TuBRSHFEMZES (&)

HHp = (ZT_=F : =) &=Me
E!’MEAZM@M F IR :

Number of individuals

EBEHE
2024 2023
—E-NE —EC-=F
Emolument bands B < &5 [

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 L&
2,000,000 7t 1 1

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 0%
3,000,0007% 7T 1 -

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 T2
3,500,000/ 7T - 1

HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001/ 702
4,500,0007 7T - 1

HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 L&
5,000,000/ 7t 1 -
3 3

For the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the Directors
or other members of the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join, upon joining the Group or to leave the

Group or as compensation for loss of office.

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax

The provision for Hong Kong profits tax for 2024 is
16.5%) of the estimated
assessable profits for the year, except for one subsidiary of
the Group which is a qualifying corporation under the Two-
tiered Profits Tax Rates Regime. For this subsidiary, the first
HK$2,000,000 of assessable profits are taxed at 8.25% and

calculated at 16.5% (2023:

the remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%.

The PRC enterprise income tax

(i) Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
"EIT Law"”) and Regulation on the Implementation of
the EIT Law, the rate of the PRC companies is 25%. The
Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are subject to the PRC

income tax at 25% unless otherwise specified.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-pmEf+ - H=1+—HItFZE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 1. rEMER (£)

The PRC enterprise income tax (Continued) FESEREBIR (&)
(i) High and New Technology Enterprise (“HNTE”) (i) BHFHEMLFE

According to the EIT Law and its relevant regulations, RIF(EXMGRA) REEE
entities that qualified as HNTE are entitled to a R0 7 & @ 5T 1 5 & A% A
preferential income tax rate of 15%. Certain of the FEREREZIICHMNEERMS
Group's subsidiaries are qualified as HNTE and are MR- AEEMNE T HE QA
subject to the PRC income tax at 15% for 2024 and HeamMBEMEEER KR_Z
2023. TOER T =FEEI5%H
MEHMNPREAER -
The 15% preferential tax rate applicable to HNTE is EANSHRMEENI5% EE
subject to renewal approval jointly by the relevant MR IE = F % T BB B A LR
authorities, upon expiry of the three-year grant period, B8 % 8 AR IR IR 1T 1 BT 1S AR 1R 1 X
according to the prevailing income tax regulations. RIHETTEITEHR -
2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=F
HK$000 HK$°000
FHT FET
(Restated)
(mE5))
Continuing operations REREEH
Tax charge comprises: REIHLEE:
Current tax FHRE
Hong Kong profits tax BEFER
Current year rEE 231 83
Over-provision in prior years AFEZR (289) -
(58) 83
The PRC enterprise income tax TR EMBR
Current year rEE 16,668 11,918
Under-provision/(over-provision) in prior years GAFEELR/ (%) 187 (716)
16,855 11,202
The PRC withholding tax on dividends HEIR EENR 3,219 600
Deferred tax (note 23) BERE (H5E23)
Deferred taxation relating to the (reversal) and FREREZR (FE)RESE
origination of temporary differences 2RI (3,942) 2,053
Income tax expense from continuing operations R EBERLEK 2 HERER 16,074 13,938
Discontinued operation BRIEREER
Hong Kong profits tax BEFER
Current year rEE 1,234 1,572
(Over-provision)/under-provision in prior years FEE(ZR) /LR (412) 115
822 1,687
The PRC enterprise income tax REI AR
Current AEHE 406 988
Under-provision in prior years FFELR 474 2
880 990
Deferred tax ERERIE - 442
Income tax expense from discontinued operation ~ KEBR HEEEK ZFIBEREH 1,702 3,119
Total income tax expense from continuing REFELEEBREKLILELE
and discontinued operations EB EHMGRER 17,776 17,057
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 1. FiBRER (£)
The taxation on the Group's profit before tax differs from K’% EHRpaMENBERARES R
the theoretical amount that would arise using the domestic ARz A MREMEL 2 BRmtS
taxation rates applicable to profits of the consolidated %E%EZZDT
companies as follows:
2024 2023
—E-MF —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
(Restated)
(&%)
Profit before tax from REBEBELEERZ
continuing operations B 75 B8 27,137 35,636
Tax calculated at the domestic LAZR #1572 %16.5%
income tax rate of 16.5% TR =F:165%):FHE
(2023: 16.5%) 4,477 5,880
Tax effect of share of results of JEAG B & A Rl B IRTE
associates T (659) (600)
Tax effect of expenses that are not T 5E JE AR FR ) A BF S BT A0
deductible in determining X MREEE
taxable profit 4,359 2,814
Tax effect of income that is not i)tr’éﬁﬁﬁ)ﬁf‘] SEPE 0
taxable in determining WARNRBE
taxable profit (3.704) (3,451)
Over-provision of current tax REFAMRBEES R
in current year, net FER = 122
Over-provision of current tax MAEFEAPREREZR
in prior years, net FRE (102) (716)
Tax effect of temporary AERZEREEZE TIE
differences/tax losses not EHENRBTE
recognised 16,858 14,592
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses  {FA @A RER 2 REEER
previously not recognised M2 (953) (1,768)
Additional deductible allowance WEERANEIINRE IR
for research and development
expense (10,119) (5,824)
Deferred tax on withholding tax TEHMREE£RIELERIA (490) 2,000
The PRC withholding tax on dividends B % 2 83073 3,219 600
Effect of different tax rates of EHEMAERRLE 2
subsidiaries operating in MEARMEZERE &
other jurisdictions 3,188 289
16,074 13,938
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 16 October 2023, the Group agreed to sell the entire
share capital of GB HK and the entire equity interest in GB
Shenzhen to Purchaser | and Purchaser Il respectively, at
the respective consideration of HK$1 and approximately
RMB137,000,000, subject to the Price Adjustment. On 27
May 2024, Purchaser Il has settled the Final Instalment in
full, and all transactions under the Disposals have been
completed in accordance with the MOU, the Sale and
Purchase Agreement I, the Sale and Purchase Agreement I
and the Confirmation. Details were set out in the Circular
and Announcements in relation to the Disposal of PCB
Processing Business.

On 10 July 2024, Major Success Company Limited, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a sale and purchase agreement to dispose of 5,200
ordinary shares of the Target Company (representing 52% of
the total number of its issued shares) at a cash consideration
of approximately HK$52,993,000. Details were set out in
the Circular and Announcement in relation to the Disposal
of PCB Trading Business.

The profit/(loss) for the period from 1 January 2024 to
21 August 2024 (for the year ended 31 December 2023)
from the discontinued PCB Business is set out below. The
comparative figures in the consolidated income statement
have been restated to re-present the PCB Business as a
discontinued operation.

Profit/(loss) of the PCB Business
for the period/year

Gain/(loss) on disposal of the PCB
Business (note 40)

FEZ@MN/ (BE)
& ENR AR B8 R 3675 2

12.

ENVR 4% B& 4R 26 75 1Y A B,

W (B1ER) (Aat40)

REMBBRERME (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-pmEf+ - H=1+—HItFZE

BRIEEEETK

N-—Zm-=#-+A8 + N EE
B E 5Bl AR E %AE%
137oooomnz(mﬁﬂﬁié )5 5l

HEFBAEN DI KLFE I FBE
HEMREFEFTIRESIN R _Z
:@¢£H—+ta EHICD2EX
NEEF UREESHEHATHRAER

%Eﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁmﬁ BEEWEIE
EzlI REREKTK FBEEHN D
EORIGERRINIES ZRBENZS

N

Q

T _HMFELA+TH BEAR
(K REEE2ENB ARG
hEEW UWReREAED
5299300@%nﬁﬂﬁa$ﬁﬂ“?m5zoo
frE@ER (REEBEHTRHDEEDN
52% ) o ;1B B R H & H R K IR
B¥EBzBEHERNE

Koo %

\_III

ATHEINBE_F_NF—A—HE
—E-EFENAZ+-BIEHE(E
EZF-_-_F+ZA=+—HLHF

) RESKIENREEIRER ZF

EaA, (EiE) GeakamkP Mt

BEFTEEY - LA EDR 4R IR E B
EHRMAERIEECEER-

2024 2023

—E_F —E-=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

7,690 (81,213)

2,560 (46,151)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e M HRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued)

The results of the PCB Business for the period from 1
January 2024 to 21 August 2024 (for the year ended
31 December 2023), which have been included in the
consolidated income statement, were as follows:

12. ERULREXK (&)

HE-_Z2-_WF—A—HZEZZ-Z2 Y
FNAZt+-—BLEtHE (%
=+ ZA=+—HLEFE) EH
A BRI GEEIREBXE

AN
2024 2023
—E-NE —E=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Revenue WA 154,446 453,153
Cost of sales $HE A (127,775) (416,046)
Gross profit EF 26,671 37,107
Other income, gain and loss, net HAb U A U3 R B8 A 18 1,805
Selling and distribution costs DEHE A (1,712) (7,273)
Administrative expenses THEA (18,800) (33,849)
Impairment loss on goodwill AERERSE - (29,100)
Operating profit/(loss) mHF, (B8) 6,177 (31,310)
Investment income HEWA 660 994
Finance costs BB (5) (1,627)
Profit/(loss) before tax BRIgATET () 6,832 (31,943)
Income tax expenses FisHE M (1,702) (3,119)
Profit/(loss) from discontinued KEBRIELEL 2 S,/
operation (B#HE) 5,130 (35,062)
Profit/(loss) on disposal of discontinued HEBRIEEER 2 HF,/
operation (B#5) 2,560 (46,151)
Profit/(loss) for the year from REBERIELEBRZEEREN,
discontinued operation (F8) 7,690 (81,213)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued)

Profit/(loss) for the period form 1 January 2024 to 21
August 2024 (for the year ended 31 December 2023) from
discontinued operation include the following:

Auditors’ remuneration
Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment
Depreciation and amortisation on:
— Property, plant and equipment
— Ownership interest in leasehold land
and buildings held for own use

— Other owned assets
— Intangible assets
— Right-of-use assets

REMBBRERME (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-pmEf+ - H=1+—HItFZE

12. ERULEREXR (&)

HE_Z_MF—A—RHE==_ZF=
FNANAZ+T-—BLEHBE(EE
=+ ZAZ=ZT—RLEE) - 3!5
BHERIERLEBN RN, (BE) W

T
2024 2023
—E-lF TE =4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Z ER A Bl & 60 373
HEMZE WERZRE2
&5 18 - 1,861
e R
- BEME
-—BRHEELME
BFHmEREER 402 620
—HMWBEEE 259 9,593
—\mEEE - 922
—FRAEEE 242 6,547

The cash flows of the PCB Business for the period from 1
January 2024 to 21 August 2024 (for the year ended 31

BHE-_Z-_WF—A—HEZZ-ZZ Y
FNAZ+—BILEHBE(#EEZF

December 2023), were as follows: Z=F+ZA=F+—HIEFE) B
BRREF 2RSS ROT
2024 2023
—E-NF —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from FEEHELEMNRESF
operating activities CRE) /mA (1,624) 33,249
Net cash inflow from investing REESHEEANRSF
activities mA 660 18,317
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from MEFHEANRDF
financing activities Cme) mA (93,175) 12,831
The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of the ERARMEEMABEZREEHEDR

Target Company are disclosed in note 40.

ﬁ'ﬁ u£40%& 25 °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBERERME (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

13. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE - BASIC

The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per ordinary share
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company is based

13.

BREFN (BE) —&F

ARBBERAEARENERERNE
R/ (BE)DERTINSHREFES

on the following: i
2024 2023
—EBE-_ME —E-=F
Weighted average number of BEETTBERMETSH
ordinary shares in issue 861,930,692 861,930,692
2024 2023
—E-mE —TE-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit/(loss) for the purpose of BRAEEHRELRRAT,
calculating the basic (B8 z&F,/ (BE)
earnings/(loss) per share
from continuing operations RERBFELCEER 2,668 20,571
from discontinued operation RERERIELEER 5,228 (64,372)
7,896 (43,801)

Earnings/(loss) per share from continuing and
discontinued operation attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company for the year

Basic HK
from continuing operations RERFELCE R
from discontinued operation RERBRILKEED

AAFAREFBEAFAEBEREFER
ERILEREXBHBREF, (HE)

2024
—E-msE

0.31
HK cent &l
0.61
HK cent /&1l

2023
—E-=F

2.39
HK cents 71l
(7.47)
HK cents &1l

Earnings/(loss) per share for the year

AEE 2z ERAT, (BE)

0.92
HK cent &l

(5.08)
HK cents &1l

No diluted earnings/(loss) per share is presented as there
were no potential ordinary shares in issue for both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBBRERME (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-pmEf+ - H=1+—HItFZE

14. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (EXPENSE)/INCOME 14. AEEH{IRMEBZ 2 HME M
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (XH) Wz
Tax effects relating to each component of other :ﬁ_ B = {J\@ i\;ﬁ (X ) sk & 4K
comprehensive (expense)/income are as follows: B ZMBFENT
2024 2023
ZEomE ZEZZF
Before tax Tax Net-of-tax Before tax Tax Net-of-tax
amount expenses amount amount expenses amount
BRESE REER HNKRELE BiRA 28 HEEBR NRRELE
HKS'000 HKS 000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FEx FEx FET FET FET
Share of other comprehensive [ LN R
income of associates 2AkE (81) - (81) (996) - (996)
(Deficit)/surplus on revaluation of BRMESE
properties held for own use (B8) /B4 (21,257) 3,387 (17,870) (4,525) 61 (4,464)
Exchange differences arising from R Z 185 575
translation of finandial BEREEZ
statements of foreign operations ERER (23,684) - (23,684) (17,848) - (17,848)
Reclassification adjustments: EHARAE:
Release of translation reserve upon {1\ — B & 1A 5165
disposal of an associate RERGEERL - - - 166 - 166
Release of translation reserve upon L EMB A A
disposal of subsidiaries RERRERT 1,803 - 1,803 8,568 - 8,568
(43,219) 3,387 (39,832) (14,635) 61 (14,574)
DIVIDEND 15. B2

15.

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2024 (31

December 2023: Nil).

EEeTERREEE_T_UF
+- A=+t HIEFERARE (=
T_=—F+-_A=t+—H:&E)-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. ¥ -BERRZE

Ownership
interest in
leasehold
land and Furniture,
buildings held  fixtures and Plant and Motor  Assets under
for own use equipment machinery vehicles  construction Total
BRHEE
THREFH HA EER
mEEER R BEREE "E HEIR “aE
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
COST OR VALUATION RASEE
At 1 January 2023 R-ZE-=%—HA—H 416,099 194,284 638,755 30,328 - 1,279,466
Exchange realignment ERHR (3,969) (3,906) (10,044) (304) (69) (18,292)
Transfer from right-of-use assets ~ FA{T{EE BER 1 E B E

upon exercise of purchase option ~ AEH® (fi#18)

(note 18) - - 4,914 608 - 5,522
Reclassification ENNE - - 8,462 - (8,462) -
Additions RE - 13,038 44,344 2,249 11,200 70,831
Disposals He&E - (12,707) (110,109) (5,724) - (128,540)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40) &N B AR (f240) - (64,293) (235,539) (1,087) - (300,919)
Adjustment on revaluation EfhAR (20,760) - - - - (20,760)
At 31 December 2023 and R-ZE-_ZF+-A=+-BEk

1 January 2024 ZTZmE-A-H 391,370 126,416 340,783 26,070 2,669 887,308
Exchange realignment ERHE (5,987) (1,613) (6,171) (742) (64) (14,577)
Reclassification EFDE - 148 2,954 - (3,102) -
Additions NE 447 5,597 8,161 1,742 497 16,444
Disposals & - (866) (1,085) (1,213) - (3,164)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40)  HEMBAF (#iz40) (11,400) (4,130) - (2,309) - (17,839)
Adjustment on revaluation EHAR (35,882) - - - - (35,882)
At 31 December 2024 R-B-ME+=-A=+-A 338,548 125,552 344,642 23,548 - 832,290
Analysis of cost or valuation: ~ HAREBEZ DT
At 31 December 2024 RZB-ME+=A=+-H

At cost BRAE - 125,552 344,642 23,548 - 493,742

At valuation REE 338,548 - - - - 338,548

338,548 125,552 344,642 23,548 - 832,290

At 31 December 2023 RZBZ=#+ZA=+-H
At cost BRAE - 126,416 340,783 26,070 2,669 495,938
At valuation RiGE 391,370 - - - - 391,370
391,370 126,416 340,783 26,070 2,669 887,308
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-pmEf+ - H=1+—HItFZE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. ¥ -BMERRKRE(£Z)

(Continued)
Ownership
interest in
leasehold
land and Furniture,
buildings held  fixtures and Plant and Motor  Assets under
for own use equipment machinery vehicles  construction Total
HRHEE
THREFH HH EER
FEERER #fE HBERES AE REIR aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ~ RtER#H
AND AMORTISATION
At 1 January 2023 R-Z-=%—HA—H - 172,892 532,407 25,248 - 730,547
Exchange realignment ERAE (61) (2,920) (7,063) (222) - (10,266)
Transfer from right-of-use assets ~ RT{EBEERAGEAELE
upon exercise of purchase 8% (Hrit18)
option (note 18) - - 1,845 466 - 2,311
Depreciation provided for the year £ E# & & 16,296 6,670 27,734 2,002 - 52,702
Written back on disposals HERER - (12,578) (108,340) (5,706) - (126,624)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40) ~ HEMBAE (#:#40) - (62,175) (205,281) (774) - (268,230)
Eliminated on revaluation EfEHE (16,235) - - - - (16,235)
At 31 December 2023 and R-ZB-=#+-A=t-HR
1 January 2024 —Z-_MmE-A-A - 101,889 241,302 21,014 - 364,205
Exchange realignment ERHE (124) (1,953) (3,984) (642) - (6,703)
Depreciation provided for the year ~ FE & & & 15,151 6,993 18,701 1,748 - 42,593
Written back on disposals HERER - (330) (753) (1,137) - (2,220)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40) &M BAF (#i240) (402) (3,559) - (2,253) - (6,214)
Eliminated on revaluation EART (14,625) - - - - (14,625)
At 31 December 2024 R-B-ME+=-A=+-A - 103,040 255,266 18,730 - 377,036
NET BOOK VALUES fREFE
At 31 December 2024 R-ZB-ME+=A=+-H 338,548 22,512 89,376 4,818 - 455,254
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=4+ZA=1+—H 391,370 24,527 99,481 5,056 2,669 523,103
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REPBHRRME (F)
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Depreciation expense of approximately HK$27,384,000
(2023: approximately HK$39,330,000) has been expensed
in cost of sales, approximately HK$992,000 (2023:
approximately HK$795,000) in selling and distribution costs
and approximately HK$14,217,000 (2023: approximately

HK$12,577,000) in administrative expenses.

Had ownership interest in leasehold land and buildings
been carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and
amortisation, the carrying value of leasehold land and
buildings would have been approximately HK$238,435,000

(2023: approximately HK$255,196,000).

17. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF PROPERTIES

(i) Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's properties measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair
value measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance of the inputs used

in the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level
1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement

date.

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs, i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data

are not available.

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant

unobservable inputs.
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16.

17.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-—FT-_pWFEf-—A=1+—HIFZ

17. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF PROPERTIES 17. WELFEEFNE (£F)

(Continued)
(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (i) PFPEELE(F)
Fair value measurement at
31 December 2024 categorised into
R-B-NE+=-A=1-H
AVFEEFEEATSE
31 December
2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RZB-QWF
+=A=+-H E-ERX EZER EZBR
HKS'000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$000
FET FET FET FET
Recurring fair value FENATEE
measurement of assets:  HEBEE:
Ownership interest in EREELR
leasehold land and BFMMER
buildings held for own use  #% 338,548 - - 338,548
Fair value measurement at
31 December 2023 categorised into
#:;:_¢+*H_+ =
ATBEHEENTHE
31 December
2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RZEZ=%F
+=ZA=+—H E—ER EEK E=BR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FRET
Recurring fair value BENATERE
measurement of assets:  FTEEE:
Ownership interest in BEREELTHR
leasehold land and BFmmAE
buildings held for own use  #z 391,370 - = 391,370
During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, RZEZWHFRE_=F+=
there were no transfers into or out of Level 3. The B=+—H ifl*l]lﬂij%?ﬂ“
Group's policy is to recognise transfers between levels = D’CEJZT?E% EN R -]
of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting AT EBEEERE FﬁZL?ﬁé‘?‘E
period in which they occur. SRBRASE ZBEK R@REH
Xﬁﬁ?ﬁ o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REPBHRRME (F)
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

17. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF PROPERTIES
(Continued)

()

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

All of the Group’s ownership interest in leasehold land
and buildings held for own use were revalued as at 31
December 2024 and 2023. The valuations were carried
out by independent firm of professional valuers, Roma
Appraisals Limited, which is a world-wide commercial
real estate services firm with recent experience in the
location and category of property being valued. The
Group's property manager and chief financial officer
had discussion with the valuers on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results when the valuations
are performed at the annual reporting date.

(ii) Information about Level 3 fair value measurement
Valuation techniques
BT
Ownership interest in leasehold (@)  Direct comparison
land and buildings held for approach
own use
BRRELREFHNMEREES EREBIEE

(a)

(b)  Income approach

WAGE)

The fair value of properties located in Hong Kong
is determined using direct comparison approach
by reference to recent sales price of comparable
properties on a price per square foot basis,
adjusted for a premium or a discount specific to
the quality of the Group’s properties compared
to the recent sales. The valuations take into
account the characteristic of the properties which
included the location, size, view, floor level, year
of completion and other factors collectively. Higher
premium for higher quality properties will result in
a higher fair value measurement.
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17. WELAFEEFE (&)

() 2FPEERSE(E)
AEEMAEzBERAESE L NE

FHEEEZRA_Z-_OF K
:%:E$+:H_+ BT
Eﬁ°%$ﬁl¢mﬁiﬁ¥ﬁ

BERAR-ZSFEERFHEARA
(EHRUENBEFHERSE A
ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%@%%m%&
BENEGMER)TK -RFEER
TEHAKEEZVELEERER
MHBEERFEMEIRR
A& R (ERD A o

(i) F=ZERATEEFEES
Unobservable input Range
TUBREHE Fil

Market price per square foot Approximate HK$13,500
per square foot (2023:
HK$3,900 to HK$15,800)
BT HHER#13,5008 T
(ZZZ=%:3908T
%15,8007% 7T )

¥ HERME

6% t0 7.75%

(2023: 5.75% to 7.75%)
6% %7.75%
(ZE-=%: 575%
£ 7.75%)

Capitalisation rate

EXfX

(@) URNEBENMEZ R FEE

ERERLBAEEIET
&2 E A R 8
EEBZBFHERRER
Iiﬁ%%%m?&$ﬁl
YEEEFLEERT A
B-HEDTEEBEADEZ
Bl BREDEZWE @
EREBOBE EKFN
HAZZER - AR ERE
E%%Tiﬁ?%%%’%
NeshuszrFEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

17. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF PROPERTIES
(Continued)
(ii) Information about Level 3 fair value measurement
(Continued)

(b) The fair value of properties in the PRC is
determined using income approach by the
capitalisation of the net rental income derived
from the existing leases and/or achievable in
existing market with reversionary income potential
by adopting appropriate capitalisation rates.
Capitalisation rates are estimated by the valuer
based on the risk profile of the properties being
valued. The higher the rates, the lower the fair
value. Prevailing market rents are estimated based
on recent lettings within the subject properties
and/or other comparable properties. The lower the
rents, the lower the fair value.

The movements during the year in the balance of these
Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows:

=

REMBBRERME (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2024
ZEZWFEf A=+ —HIUFE

17. WEQAFEEFE (&)

(i) %

(b)

ZRRAFEEFEESR (&)

EHREONMEZAFEERK
RBAFEERBEEESNL
RBBRBEEORXE /T
MABRORKEONFHEE
WAERL - BARAEREE
ke gk 000 3N
eMEXHE AFEEY
E-BRITMBEERZAME
R/ B A A LR R
HAst-HeBE RAF¥EE
AR o

NFEEFENGEHR

E=ZER
AERRAZEBWT

2024 2023
—E-WMEF —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET

Ownership interest in leasehold land B RMAE T RIEFH

and buildings held for own use: FRB R

At 1 January n—H—H 391,370 416,099
Exchange realignment E R (5,863) (3,908)
Additions NE 447 =
Depreciation provided for the year FEWERB (15,151) (16,296)
Disposal of subsidiaries &M B A R (10,998) =
Deficit on revaluation EhEE (21,257) (4,525)
At 31 December W+Z—RA=+—H 338,548 391,370

Deficit/surplus on revaluation and currency adjustment
of ownership interest in leasehold land and buildings
held for own use is recognised in other comprehensive
income in “property revaluation reserve” and
“translation reserve” respectively.

BEREEL W RETORARE
HEREBER/BABRREERE
ENREANE M EEKE D
(MEEGFEE N ERRERE] -

—F=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REPBHRRME (F)
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18. EFREEE
Land use Plant and Land and Motor
rights ~ machinery buildings vehicles Total
THERE BEREE tTHRET RE “E
(note a) (note b)
(fiita) (Hi#th)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
COST RA
At 1 January 2023 R-ZE-_=F—F—H 54,441 4,985 70,953 608 130,987
Exchange realignment ERAE (783) (80) (1,483) - (2,346)
Additions NE - 1,535 1,562 - 3,097
Modification of lease term BEERER - - (5,054) - (5,054)
Transfer to property, plant and RIIEEE $Eﬁjif%’9 EHl/ES
equipment upon exercise of BE R (fritie)
purchase option (note 16) - (4,914) - (608) (5,522)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40) HEWB AR (HiF40) - - (45,032) - (45,032)
Written off 5 - - (3,422) - (3,422)
At 31 December 2023 and )‘5”L§:‘¢+ A=+-8k
1 January 2024 —E-_MNF¥—-fF—H 53,658 1,526 17,524 - 72,708
Exchange realignment DHE (1,160) (33) (304) - (1,497)
Additions %E - - 11,477 - 11,477
Modification of lease term HEBRTIET - - (3,932) - (3,932)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40) HENB LR (HiF40) - - (1,164) - (1,164)
Written off g - - (7.172) - (71,172)
At 31 December 2024 “EME+ZA=t-H 52,498 1,493 16,429 - 70,420
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ~ Z: i E
At 1 January 2023 R-E-_=%—F—H 19,884 1,277 37,229 426 58,816
Exchange realignment ER AR (296) (17) (922) - (1,235)
Depreciation provided for the year ir%%ﬁ% 1,150 585 11,782 40 13,557
Modification of lease term HEGRRER - - (2,889) - (2,889)
Transfer to property, plant and RiTEEE $Eﬁj§>ﬁ§ 9%
equipment upon exercise of B KR E (Hit1e)
purchase option (note 16) - (1,845) - (466) (2,311)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40) HENBAR (HiH40) - - (31,094) - (31,094)
Written off 5 - - (3,422) - (3,422)
At 31 December 2023 and Ef\fgiiiJr A=+-8k
1 January 2024 —E-_MNF¥—-fF—H 20,738 - 10,684 - 31,422
Exchange realignment DHE (470) (3) (134) - (607)
Depreciation provided for the year irﬁ%ﬁé 1,135 154 4,966 - 6,255
Modification of lease term BEERE - - (1,305) - (1,305)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40) HEHBA —J (#17£40) - - (941) - (941)
Written off g - - (7.172) - (7,172)
At 31 December 2024 RZB-@mE+=A=+-H 21,403 151 6,098 - 27,652
NET BOOK VALUES BHEE
At 31 December 2024 RZE-MFE+=ZA=+—H 31,095 1,342 10,331 - 42,768
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F+-A=+—H 32,920 1,526 6,840 - 41,286
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18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

19.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-pmEf+ - H=1+—HItFZE

18. EREEE (&)

Notes: M it -

(@) The land use rights had a remaining lease term of between 10 (a) THFAENFSEEHRRI10E505 ¢
to 50 years.

(b) The Group has leased several land and buildings for offices (b) AEBECDHEA - S£LiREFERD
and factories. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual EERBERAZ -HE] & Bl 1% 75
basis and contain a wide range of terms and conditions. B - 0B B T B A {6 R R AR 4 o T & ER
Tenures of the leases range from 1 to 10 years. BIE10F -

(c) Total cash outflow for leases was approximately HK$7,364,000 (0 BEZZT-_WNF+_A=+—HLHF

(2023: approximately HK$17,609,000) for the year ended 31

December 2024.

E-HERSRMEEALT,364,000

BT (ZE =9 :417,609,000/%

JL) e
GOODWILL 19. 58
HK$'000
FET
cosT R
At 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023 and RZEZ=F—H—HEK
1 January 2024 —E-=F+=-A=+—H 53,483
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40) HEWB QR (#at40) (53,483)
At 31 December 2024 N-TE-—mE+—-—A=+—¢H B
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT R E
At 1 January 2023 R-ZE-_=%—A—H 20,487
Impairment loss recognised for the year REEEHARMESE 29,100
At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 RZE-_=F+-_A=+—H 49,587
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40) HEM B R R (477240) (49,587)
At 31 December 2024 RZZE_MFE+_A=+—H -
CARRYING AMOUNT BREE
At 31 December 2024 R=-ZE-_OmOFE+=-HA=+—H -
At 31 December 2023 R-E-_=F+-_A=+—H 3,896

The amount represents goodwill arising from the acquisition
of 100% equity interest in KFE Hong Kong Co., Limited
("KFE") in 2013. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill has been allocated to an individual cash-generating
unit, representing KFE, a subsidiary in the processing and

trading of printed circuit boards segment.

o

HEERR T -—=FRAKRBHSR =
EMRBEBERLAA ([HER-E])H
100% P AN 4 55 M &£ 4 = BUE DRI HLZ A
BEISEZMEMREELEEM  AE

4R B AR 00 T R B 5 2 2R e it 8 2 &)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REPBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20 BLEE
Customer
relationship
EFB%
HK$'000
FET
cosT A
At 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023 and A\—_FE_=F—H—A8"
1 January 2024 ZEZ=F+ZHA=+t—HE
—E-mME+=ZHA=+—H 13,831
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40) HEWB QR (#at40) (13,831)
At 31 December 2024 RZZEZWMF+=-A=+—H -
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION ESg:
At 1 January 2023 RZZFE=—_=%—HA—H 12,909
Amortisation for the year FE 922
At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 RZEZ=F+=ZA=+—8K
—ZT_NFE—HF—H 13,831
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40) HEKEB AR (KiE40) (13,831)
At 31 December 2024 RZZE-_MFE+_A=+—H -
CARRYING AMOUNT RHEE
At 31 December 2024 R-ZE-_ME+=-A=+—H -
At 31 December 2023 RZFZ=F+-_A=1+—H .
Customer relationship is amortised on a straight-line basis EFBERAESEZZI0FEFEREH
over its useful life of 10 years. B o
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21.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

REMBHRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE—F-—mF+=—A=+—HIFE

21. BE QT REE

2024 2023
—E-@mE —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
Cost of investments & KA 6,630 6,630
Share of post-acquisition profits and DIEWEER 2R T R
reserves, net of dividends received (e e) 30,357 29,919
36,987 36,549
Amounts due from associates & W Bt & 1% R SRR 352 5,394
Less: allowance for impairment of i %afﬁﬁ/}iﬁlﬁﬁé‘ﬁ
bad and doubtful debts (352) (5,394)
36,987 36,549
(@) Amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest (a) JEURHE & Q&) 2 FIE I &
free and have no fixed terms of repayment. In the T~ +é7ﬁJ§&Iﬁlm1a R AR o
opinion of the Directors, the amounts will not be EERA URBIEIERNWME
repayable within 12 months of the end of the reporting HRt+-EAREER WIEFE
period and are accordingly classified as non-current MEBEE
assets.
(b) Interests in associates at the end of the reporting period (b) REBHR BELARERDE
include goodwill of approximately HK$313,000 (2023: EEEAL313,0008 L (ZF

approximately HK$313,000).

= £ #9313,0008 T) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBERERME (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Details of the principal associate of the Group at 31
December 2024 are as follows:

FENRIRER ()

Bk
AEBTIEREQRANR _T _HF
TZA=tT—HZHEBWT:

7

Proportion of
Place of nominal value of
incorporation/ registered capital

registration

Name of associate and operation

BR 3L EE R R
BENTEE ERRE®T
Suzhou Sanguang Science & The PRC
Technology Co., Ltd.
M =B RN BRAQF a3

The above table lists out the associate of the Group which,
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affects the results
of the Group for the year or forms a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group at the end of the year.

In the opinion of the Directors, the associates of the
Group are all individually not material. Aggregate financial
information in respect of the Group's associates is set out
below:

Aggregate carrying amount of
individually immaterial associates in
the consolidated financial statements

Aggregate amounts of the Group’s
share of those associates BE

Profit from continuing operations BELE 25T

Other comprehensive expense HEM2mE=

Total comprehensive income BmEREWR

o

AN e R B E R R RAR

attributable
to the Group Principal activities
AEBES
= it & 2
HEZLEH FEXER

%

21.1  Manufacturing of industrial

machinery, equipment and

supplies
ITEEW RELRIEAREE
NEREEBERTDEREERR
HUAFEXERAEBRFRFEE
WEALIEEZZEMEMRT -

EXER/AKEZBERREHRE
BIRFER - AEEZBERRERE Y
BEMKRINWMT :

RERE BB HRR P EBIZEE R
BEQRINEEREE

2024 2023
—E-mE —E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET F#T
36,987 36,549
3,991 3,635

(81) (996)

3,910 2,639
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

22. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

REMBBRERME (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-pmEf+ - H=1+—HItFZE

22. ERmEHEERE

Present value of

Minimum lease receipts minimum lease receipts

BEAERA RERERAZRE
2024 2023 2024 2023
—E_ME —EZ=F —E-_ME —EZ=F
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Amounts receivable under finance leases: EWAMEHEFESE:

Not later than one year —FR 57,837 63,482 54,180 60,802
1-2 years F-E-F 22,136 14,013 21,143 13,488
2-3 years B_R=fF 1,777 179 1,744 178
81,750 77,674 77,067 74,468
Less: Unearned finance income B RERIBRA (4,683) (3,206) N/ATEA N/A T
77,067 74,468 77,067 74,468
Overdue finance lease receivables BHEKMERENR 21,918 34,591 21,918 34,591
Present value of minimum lease receipts HIEBERAZ R A EE 98,985 109,059 98,985 109,059

Less: Allowance for impairment A RBRAERE
of bad and doubtful debts (12,979) (10,632) (12,979) (10,632)
86,006 98,427 86,006 98,427

Less: Finance lease receivables B AR BEZ
under current assets R RERETR (63,750) (84,802)
Non-current finance lease receivables FrnBELBERETE 22,256 13,625
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBERERME (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

22. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group has entered into finance lease arrangements with
their customers. The terms of finance leases entered into for
periods ranged from one to three years.

The movements on the allowance for impairment of bad and
doubtful debts are as follows:

22. B mEHERE(£Z)

AEBCEEFPRIBREREL -
MEHEHORTBRA—E=F-

RIERBEREESHBEROT

2024 2023

—E-MF —T_=F

HK$'000 HK$000

FET FET

Balance at 1 January R—A—B#&& 10,632 6,574
Exchange realignment JE 7 (265) (117)
Impairment loss recognised W REEE 3,110 5,669
Unused amount reversed Bl &R B &R - (1,494)
Uncollectible amounts written off 8 A B] Y e /9 3R 08 (498) -
Balance at 31 December R+ A=+—B#&% 12,979 10,632

At 31 December 2024, the allowance for credit loss
represents lifetime expected credit loss recognised for
finance lease receivables under simplified approach. Details
of impairment assessment of finance lease receivables for
the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in note 42(b)
(iv).

All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and there were no
unguaranteed residual values in connection with finance
lease arrangements or contingent lease arrangements of the
Group that need to be recorded as at 31 December 2024
(2023: Nil).

Finance lease receivable balances are secured over the plant
and equipment leased. The Group is not permitted to sell
or re-pledge the collateral in the absence of default by the
lessee.

The interest rate inherent in the leases is fixed at the
contract date for the entire lease term. The effective interest
rates are ranging from 2.7% to 16.3% per annum (2023:
from 4.7% to 16.1% per annum).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-pmEf+ - H=1+—HItFZE

23. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

23. EEREBLEE AF
AT AARBERRNELTRELE

The following are the major components of deferred tax
assets/(liabilities) recognised by the Group and movements

(BRE)NEZEXORAFERLEFE

thereon during the current and prior years: ZEH:
Intangible
assets arising  Decelerated  Revaluation
from business tax  of land and
combination  depreciation building  Tax losses Others Total
ERAHEL 1R
ZEVEE RERERE BREfR RBER Efh ag
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TEr TEr TEr Fér FiET FEr
At 1 January 2023 WZE-=F—-f-H (154) 919 (22,152) 208 15,783 (5,396)
Exchange realignment ERAE - - 150 - 1) (61)
Credited to equity RERIIA - - 61 - - 61
(Charged)/credited to income RBEE (MK) /
statement (note 11) SN (AT 154 (546) - 436 (2,539) (2,495)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40) HEMBLA (H740) - - - - (572) (572)
At 31 December 2023 and WZZZ=F+ZA=1—H
1 January 2024 kZZZME-A—-H - 373 (21,941) 644 12,461 (8,463)
Exchange realignment ERRE - - 172 - (358) (186)
Credited to equity HERIIA - - 3,387 - - 3,387
(Charged)/credited to income MRER (%) /
statement (note 11) BN (BiEr1) - 15 - 67 3,860 3,942
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40) LERBAR (fzt40) - 37 2113 - 5 2,081
At 31 December 2024 RZF-ZME+ZA=1+-A - 351 (16,269) m 15,968 761

—ZE-MEEIK Annual Report 2024 217



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e A% R R B EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024

=

—EomFES A=+ —HIFFE

23. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

(Continued)

For the purposes of consolidated statement of financial
position presentation, certain deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
have been offset in accordance with the conditions set out
in HKAS 12. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax

23. EEMREEE BE (&)

REABPBEMRRR 2B ThE T’
k%ﬁlﬁéfiz/(%1f)%<<<a$ﬁ?§ (B#R

SEER) B

1258 2 &P 8 T 5

EBE2INEAMBIRARANELT

balances shown in the consolidated statement of financial MIBABRE DT
position:

2024 2023
—E-E —EC-=F
HKS$000 HK$000
FET FAET
Deferred tax assets FRIEFRIEE = 25,525 22,048
Deferred tax liabilities RAEIRIBEE (24,764) (30,511)
761 (8,463)
Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried RECEREEERGEMAEREBEWESE

forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax
benefit through the future taxable profits is probable.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has the
following unutilised tax losses available for offsetting against
future taxable profits for which no deferred tax asset is
recognised:

—Jﬁéﬁﬂﬂixﬁuﬁﬁmﬂ“fﬁﬁf;ﬁé

W AR IR TR E 1R

RBEEHR AEEEATRBAR
THE B A AR 8H B R B ER AR i I

WEERETCRBAEE:

2024 2023
—E-MF —E-=F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET

Tax losses expiring: FRIEE 18 2 H
Within 5 years RAFA 134,324 89,074
Within 6 to 10 years RARETERA 162,881 159,933
Without expiry date mEER 412,814 395,652
710,019 644,659

Temporary differences arising in connection with interests in
associates are insignificant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

24. INVENTORIES

25.

REMBBRERME (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-pmEf+ - H=1+—HItFZE

24. &

Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial

position comprise:

RAPBRARTONTFERRE:

2024 2023
—E-MF —T-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FiET
Trading inventories and finished goods B ENMEKR 187,039 191,390
Work in progress £ 28 72,086 94,852
Raw materials R ¥ 149,459 132,583
408,584 418,825
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES EZRHEMERRE
2024 2023
—EME —E=F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade receivables B 5 W RIE 500,493 539,287
Less: allowance for impairment of B RERRERE
bad and doubtful debts (30,265) (79,075)
Trade receivables, net B S EWFE S 470,228 460,212
Bill receivables RE R IR 54,607 73,496
Total trade and bill receivables B REBERINGIARE 524,835 533,708
Other receivables H A & YR IR 25,537 108,096
Less: allowance for impairment of B RIBRBER R
bad and doubtful debts (14,745) (21,009)
10,792 87,087
Prepayments SELNE:S 42,125 30,707
Deposit paid for purchase of property, BEEWE BENMEEZ
plant and equipment =AD& 19,996 =
Amounts due from related parties FE YL B8 Bt 77 2 5RIR 128 82
597,876 651,584
Analysed for reporting purpose as: REMEERNSNOT:
Non-current e ED 19,996 -
Current mE 577,880 651,584
597,876 651,584
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25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade
and other receivables approximate to their fair values.
Except for the deposit paid for purchase of property, plant
and equipment, all other trade and other receivables are
expected to be recovered or recognised as expense within
one year.

The Group grants an average credit period of 90 days to
120 days to customers. Further details on the Group's credit
policy and credit risk arising from trade debtors and bills
receivable are set out in note 42(b)(iv). An aging analysis of
the trade and bills receivables at the end of the reporting
period based on the past due date and net of allowance for
impairment of bad and doubtful debts is as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

5. ESREMEWRFIE(Z)

EERREZREMERFRREZER
EREAVFEEHI-BEEYE B
EhkHEEZENREI EMHAAE
7 N E A W R KR — F AR
B 3 iR AR X

AEEBLTFTHEFZFEHEEH A
XKENROR-BEARAEBZEERR X
HESEBARZEERRNBEEZ
FEERBE 48 M iEd42(b)(iv) - R
EHER AR RS NG REERR
BERENE S RERERE 2R
DT

2024 2023

—Z_NF —E o=

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Current R 10 HA 388,883 388,168
0 to 3 months ETE={EA 92,001 97,450
4 to 6 months MmN E A 26,861 32,124
7 to 9 months +ZNEA 10,742 7,093
Over 9 months fBiELE A 6,348 8,873
524,835 533,708

The movements on the allowance for impairment of bad and
doubtful debts of the Group are as follows:

At W R R (B B 2 B BB
-

Trade receivables

g3 EWFHE
2024 2023
—E-NE —E =4
HKS$000 HK$000
FET FET
Balance at 1 January R—A—B#&& 79,075 82,850
Exchange realignment JE G B (1,682) (1,104)
Impairment loss recognised WRREEE 9,012 2,784
Unused amounts reversed [O] B R B) A # 58 (5.,456) -
Uncollectible amounts written off 8 A B] Y ] /Y 2018 (50,684) (1,987)
Disposal of subsidiaries 65 B B A A - (3,468)
Balance at 31 December R+ZA=+—H&#% 30,265 79,075
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25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBBRERME (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-pmEf+ - H=1+—HItFZE

5. EGREMEWRFIE(Z)

Other receivables

H fth B WL 518
2024 2023
—E_NF —E =%
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET
Balance at 1 January R—RA—A&&#% 21,009 15,289
Exchange realignment TE G TE B (366) (610)
Impairment loss recognised HRZMEERE = 7,227
Unused amounts reversed O] 8 & &) A # & (5,795) (175)
Uncollectible amounts written off 88 1 A U [ /9 508 (103) (722)
Balance at 31 December N+—A=+—B%&% 14,745 21,009

The above allowance for impairment of bad and doubtful
debts is a provision for individually impaired trade
receivables and impaired other receivables. The individually
impaired trade receivables mainly represent sales made to
the PRC customers which have remained long overdue. The
impaired other receivables relate to debtors that have been
long outstanding without settlement or having any business
relationship with the Group. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Unlisted unit trust funds (note)

ERRZHRBERERENCRER
2 &M R TR & B R B H b & U 5k TR B
wo-ERNEREEZBEFEAREEE
ZREETHIRTEP ZBH RN H
ERERMHEbEKRAERBENERA
B & 8 R R K B K 5% 8 3 4 AE ] 75
MR- AEERMLTERY ERFE
EEERLE WIS

26. HthEmEE

FLEMEBREFTES (M) -

2024 2023
—ENF —ETE-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
5,630

Note:

The fair values of the unlisted unit trust funds were based on net
assets value of the investment funds at the end of the reporting

period provided by the financial institutions.

Hiat
FELTEMEEESOHATEESENER

SHRERSRBBRUEREESNEETF
&
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REPBHRRME (F)
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

27. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 27. B RIBITHER

2024 2023
—E-MEF —E-=F
HKS$000 HK$°000
FET FET

Bank time deposits with maturity over  E|HiH A =18 3 £
three months but within one year —FUAAMIEITEBEFER 6,456 6,664
Pledged bank deposits (note 39) BIRIRZRITER (A iE39) 21,812 10,591
Cash and cash equivalents BekBEeEE 490,762 643,213
519,030 660,468

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. The
carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents approximate
their fair values.

At the end of the reporting period, cash and cash
equivalents of the Group denominated in RMB amounted
to approximately HK$335,204,000 (2023: approximately
HK$418,350,000). RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies. However, under the PRC's Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, and
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES/CONTRACT

LIABILITIES

(i) Trade and other payables

28.

RITHEBREBEE ARITHERMEIZF
P ERBEBRAE - RTEFERFRRE
BRIEFAOHEENTHEMNRT A
TR EEYVNEREIURER
FEE-

RBEHR AEBUAREFERN
HeMIBeSEWAH335,204,000
BT (ZF = =Z4F :4418,350,000/%
L) ARERNEEREBRKEME
B o SR AR B R B ANE B IR KB K 4
E - EERMESEBIEN ~AEFASE
BEREBELCEINEEBNRITEAR
Mo s EMmER-

ESRHMENRE SHEE

(i) EZRHEMEMNKE

2024 2023

—®-EF —E=F

HK$°000 HK$000

FHET FET

Trade and bills payables B REBEMNKIE 523,852 536,550
Accruals and other payables JE A AR AT B EL h JE < SR IE 98,856 145,352
622,708 681,902

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of
trade and other payables approximate to their fair
values. All trade and other payables are expected to be
settled or recognised as income within one year or are
repayable on demand.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-pmEf+ - H=1+—HItFZE

28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES/CONTRACT 2. EZREMENRE SHEE
LIABILITIES (Continued) (#)
Trade and other payables (Continued) (i) ESREMENSRE(E)
The aging analysis of the Group's trade and bills RBRERR AEEZEZERDH
payables at the end of the reporting period based on NESREBENREZERESD
the date of invoice is as follows: T
2024 2023
—E_NE —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
0 to 3 months ZE=@A 379,051 410,179
4 to 6 months mZE N E A 99,249 103,661
7 to 9 months +ZEZNEA 16,942 13,154
Over 9 months it 1@ JL1E A 28,610 9,556
523,852 536,550
Contract liabilities (i) EHNEE
2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FHET
Billings in advance of performance & #9178 Uk 378 81,613 72,446
When the Group receives a deposit before the BN & B 1E A B DE B8R AT AR

production activity commences, this will give rise to
contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until the
revenue is recognised. The Group receives deposits
on acceptance of orders on a case by case basis with
customers before work commences.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, revenue
recognised in the current year relating to contract
liabilities at the beginning of the year is approximately
HK$72,446,000 (2023: approximately HK$85,211,000).
The amount of billings in advance of performance
received is expected to be recognised as income within
one year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REPBHRRME (F)
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

29. BANK BORROWINGS

29. RITHERK

2024 2023
—E-WEF —E-=HF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Non-current E1 )|
Bank loans IRITEX
— unsecured — I A 4,860 -
Current E
Bank loans RITER
— secured —H - 9,490
- unsecured — 4K R 110,399 225,108
110,399 234,598
Total borrowings A 115,259 234,598

The aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s bank loans
as at 31 December 2024 (that are repayable more than one
year after the end of the reporting period but contain a
repayment on demand clause) that have been reclassified
as current liabilities is approximately HK$3,640,000 (2023:
approximately HK$5,240,000).

These loans are callable by the lenders, but the management
does not expect the lenders to exercise their rights to
demand repayment in normal circumstances.

The maturity of the bank borrowings based on the scheduled
repayment date set out in the loan agreements ignoring the
effect of any repayment on demand clause are as follows:

R-E-_NFEF+_-_A=+—H £K&EE
RITERZHAIRAEA#3,640,000
B (ZF = =% : 495,240,000/ 7T)
(ARRESHAN—FREEZ BHE
AEREREFEIOERIERDERE
B EARBARE-

BMAAAREREEER BEERE
BEHMBRAAE—RBERATITEITESR
PENEREEENR

R B B B AR AT 4% 2 SR8 TR
RZHE REENERAZEER
TR

2024 2023

—E-_ME —E-=F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Within 1 year —F R 106,759 229,358
Between 1 and 2 years —z = 2,032 1,600
Between 2 and 5 years —ERF 6,468 3,640
115,259 234,598
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

29. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

The non-current bank borrowings are stated at amortised
cost.

The borrowings are variable-rate borrowings which carry
interest ranging from HIBOR plus 1.5% to 2.0% per annum.
The weighted average effective interest rate as at 31
December 2024 for bank borrowings is 4.54% per annum
(2023: 6.23% per annum).

The carrying amounts of borrowings are denominated in

currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant
group entities are set out below:

Renminbi AR

REMBBRERME (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-pmEf+ - H=1+—HItFZE

29. BITER(EZ)

FEM B SRIT B KA 0 AN ABR ©

WRITERBZEEBER BEMNENT
BRABETRAEREMI S% E2.0%
HERITEFIN-_ZE-_MNE+—-A
—t+—BZNEFHERFEEXE4.54
E(ZZE—=F FEEXE6.23E) -

fERARBEEERINETRE AN
EEHEMNEEEIENT

2024 2023
—EmE B
HK$000 HK$°000
FHT FET
50,925 -

The facilities expiring within one year are annual facilities
subject to respective bank's review at various dates each
year.

Amount of approximately HK$76,598,000 (2023:
approximately HK$185,933,000) were variable-rate
borrowings carried interest ranged from HIBOR plus 1.75%
to 2% (2023: HIBOR plus 1.5% to 2.75%) or Loan Prime
Rate minus 0.4% (2023: nil).

Amount of approximately HK$38,661,000 (2023:
approximately HK$48,665,000) were fixed-rate borrowings
carried interest ranged from 3.05% to 3.75% (2023: 3.15%
10 3.9%).

*iWi‘Jﬁﬁvﬁé%ﬁfﬁifﬁf Z
REBEFATRBHEIERNRITES -

#4976,598,0008 L (= = = F : 4J
185,933,000/ L) B ZEEE  FfI X
NITEHERITRERENI.75% £2%
(ZZE-_=ZF HAERTHEEK BN
1.5% £2.75% ) B A& B R F X
04% (Z T =45 &) -

#4)38,661,0008 T (ZE == F : 4
48 665 000/%71)75'5I;£ﬂ & E - F
RNF3.05% F3.75% (ZE_=%F:

3.15% &3.9% ) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

30. LEASE LIABILITIES 30. HE &
The following table shows the remaining contractual TRHAEPAEBRHEBELE AL
maturities of the Group's lease liabilities at the end of the AR S B R FIeR & A B ERERTR -

current and previous reporting periods:

31 December 2024 31 December 2023
ZE-ME+ZA=t-H ZZ=f+t”A=+—-H
Present value Minimum Present value of Minimum
of the minimum lease the minimum lease
lease payments payments lease payments payments
EEAE Bi& REHE 54iy
YHZRE HEXH THZRE MEXH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHET
Within 1 year —£R 4,657 5,275 4,182 4,632
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRBE-FR 3,925 4,275 2,604 2,855
After 2 years but within 5 years “EREBERER 3,121 3,379 2,137 2,247
7,046 7,654 4,741 5,102
11,703 12,929 8,923 9,734
Less: total future interest expenses I, : R IRF| B & H (1,226) (811)
Present value of lease liabilities HEBRRE 11,703 8,923
The Group leases office properties, factories and plants and AEEBHANAYE - THARKE
machinery. Leases are negotiated mostly for terms ranging Mgw -HMOFHDIAN—E+FHET
from 1 to 10 years and rentals are almost fixed for the said A mAeEEFREOFHRTE -
term.
At 31 December 2024, the Group's lease liabilities of RZE-_WF+_A=+—H K&EH
approximately HK$1,064,000 (2023: approximately ZHEABEDBH1,064,0008C (= F
HK$1,607,000) are secured by the lessors’ charges over the =4 : 491,607,000 ) 2 LAHEE
leased assets. EEFTHEA-
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31.

32.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBBRERME (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-pmEf+ - H=1+—HItFZE

SHARE CAPITAL 31. RA&
2024 2023
—EME —E-=fF
Number of Number of
ordinary ordinary
shares Amount shares Amount
ERERRY wm LTHRiRE B
HKS$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Ordinary shares, issued and BOIRBRERR:
fully paid:
At 1 January 861,930,692 609,027 861,930,692 609,027
At 31 December R+ZA=+— 861,930,692 609,027 861,930,692 609,027

All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the

PrAEEBREARZENARENFE

Company's residual assets. BREEE ©
OTHER RESERVES 32. Hituf#E e
Property
revaluation  Translation
reserve reserve Others Total
MESHRHE ERf#E Hit “ag
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FHET FAET FET
Balance at 1 January 2023 R-B-=F-F—A&H 109,323 (295) 473 109,501
Share of reserves of associates RS DR - (996) - (996)
Surplus on revaluation of properties BRAMEXERRH
held for own use 2,029 - - 2,029
Deferred taxation adjustment ERRIEAR (926) - - (926)
Exchange differences arising from REBNEBIBREBESE
translation of financial statements LERER
of foreign operations - (15,440) - (15,440)
Release of translation reserve upon HE— A R AR
disposal of an associate REREHERL - 166 - 166
Release of translation reserve upon & F B A BB
disposal of subsidiaries RERRERD - 8,568 E 8,568
Balance at 31 December 2023 R-E-=f+-A=+-H
and 1 January 2024 R-ZE-_ME-A-B#&& 110,426 (7,997) 473 102,902
Share of reserves of associates EEBE N R - (81) = (81)
Surplus on revaluation of properties ERNEERREH
held for own use (22,056) - - (22,056)
Deferred taxation adjustment BIER I AR 3,507 = = 3,507
Exchange differences arising from BEBIEBRBREFESE
translation of financial statements ERERE
of foreign operations - (22,459) - (22,459)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 41) WEEH B AR (ffi241) - = 1,305 1,305
Release of translation reserve upon & BB A A B
disposal of subsidiaries (note 40) WERGBR L (Hzt40) = 1,803 = 1,803
Release of property revaluation reserve  HEKBRRBEYESR
upon disposal of subsidiaries FEERL (5,705) = = (5,705)
Balance at 31 December 2024 R-E-_MmFE+-A=+-H
&® 86,172 (28,734) 1,778 59,216
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REPBHRRME (F)
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

(a) Company-level statement of financial position

33. A2 R M HAR R &K

(a) ADFAMBARR T

2024 2023
—E_NEF —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Non-current Assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BEkFEE 130 163
Interests in subsidiaries P EENGIE e 1,201,370 1,153,192
1,201,500 1,153,355
Current Assets RBEE
Other receivables E  pE W 3R 1,072 484
Cash and bank balances He RIRTTH 48,472 28,599
49,544 29,083
Current Liabilities REBEE
Other payables E h JE T 5RIE 1,412 799
Amounts due to subsidiaries HERM B A RIFRIA 226,220 124,161
Bank borrowings SRITER 5,240 66,840
232,872 191,800
Net Current Liabilities REBAEEE (183,328) (162,717)
Net Assets EEFE 1,018,172 990,638
Capital and Reserves (note 33(b)) BEARK S (HE330))
Share capital fi% < 609,027 609,027
Retained profits REB R 409,145 381,611
Total Equity EREE 1,018,172 990,638

The statement of financial position of the Company
was approved and authorised for issue by the Board on
27 March 2025 and is signed on its behalf by:

TANG TO
BnE
DIRECTOR
EZF
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DIRECTOR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Movement in components of equity of the

(c)

REMBBRERME (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-pmEf+ - H=1+—HItFZE

33. AN A M BRI K (&)

(b) ARFEZEEH

Company
Share Retained
capital profits Total
[N REEA Bt
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FHET FHET FHET
Balance at 1 January 2023 RZZE-_=F—A—H#&#% 609,027 388,349 997,376
Loss for the year FEERE - (6,738) (6,738)
Balance at 31 December 2023 RZZEZ=F+ZA=+—H
and 1 January 2024 k—Z-_mFE—-Af—B# 609,027 381,611 990,638
Profit for the year FEEM - 27,534 27,534
Balance at 31 December 2024 R-ZB-ZMFE+ZA=t—-R&H 609,027 409,145 1,018,172
Distributability of reserves (c) FEEDIK
At 31 December 2024, the aggregate amount E@ - mE+=- /A =+ —
of reserves available for distribution to equity *E TF << AE A ) 5B X
shareholders of the Company, as calculated under E’] BXEE - RARRQAAH SR
the provisions of Part 6 of Companies Ordinance, was TREBRAEANBEBRER/D
approximately HK$409,145,000 (2023: approximately 409,145,000 L (&2 = = :

HK$381,611,000). After the end of the reporting
period, the Board did not recommend the payment of
a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2024
(2023: Nil).

47381,611,000/8 7) - R R & 5
K EESTEREEHZEC
TN FF+_A=Z+—HLEFE
KEBBE(ZE_=ZF 1) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REPBHRRME (F)
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

34. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
will be, classified in the Group's consolidated statement of
cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

3. REMEZHNAERERE
E R H IR

TRAJNAEEN KB /@ E S
HEENEZY aREEekIFEREN
PEH-REMELTHINABEBREHER
i//lbjszjszﬁﬁ/)lbaﬁf\zﬁﬁlmlﬂ'
EHERERPHROIBEA/AKXKERER
@JH’]EEEE/ML

Bank Lease
loans liabilities Total
BITER HEARE A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2023 R-ZFE-_=%—H—H 227,595 40,704 268,299
Changes from financing cash flow REWMEETHRERZEH
New bank loans raised HERTER 168,788 - 168,788
Repayment of bank loans Eiﬁﬁﬁ%?ﬁ (161,268) - (161,268)
Bank loans interest paid ERBITERFE (14,394) - (14,394)
Capital element of lease rentals paid H?ﬁffﬁiﬁ’]K i) - (14,071) (14,071)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENHEREHFE uMﬁ - (2,155) (2,155)
Total changes from financing cash flows REREEHEL T
EBEE (6,874) (16,226) (23,100)
Exchange adjustments ERAR (517) (700) (1,217)
Other changes Hitr2 5
Increase in lease liabilities from entering AN & & ] 37 3 70 & 3 o0 49
into new leases during the year HEEE - 3,230 3,230
Modification of lease term HERRIE - (2,635) (2,635)
Interest expenses (note 8) FIREHR (/5/7&8) 14,394 2,155 16,549
Disposal of subsidiaries LEWBA - (17,605) (17,605)
Total other changes Hitt# 845 14,394 (14,855) (461)
At 31 December 2023 R-ZZ-=Z#+=A=t+-H 234,598 8,923 243,521
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

34. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continued)

35.

REMBBRERME (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-pmEf+ - H=1+—HItFZE

3. RERMEEZHNEERERE
ENHIR(E)

Bank Lease
loans liabilities Total
BITER HESE a3t
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2024 R-ZE-M&E—-F—H 234,598 8,923 243,521
Changes from financing cash flow REWMEZHRERZEH
New bank loans raised HMBRITER 241,345 - 241,345
Repayment of bank loans BERITER (359,766) = (359,766)
Bank loans interest paid ERBTERAE (12,991) = (12,991)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENHEERENASEHH - (5,300) (5,300)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENHEERSNF SO - (852) (852)
Total changes from financing cash flows REBEZHERETZ
BEAE (131,412) (6,152) (137,564)
Exchange adjustments ERAR (918) (205) (1,123)
Other changes Hitr2# 5
Increase in lease liabilities from entering AN E R ] 3 311 E 3L A0
into new leases during the year HEEE - 11,477 11,477
Modification of lease term HEKRRE - (2,960) (2,960)
Interest expenses (note 8) HEEBR (His) 12,991 852 13,843
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40) HEMB AR (#:240) - (232) (232)
Total other changes Htt# 8485 12,991 9,137 22,128
At 31 December 2024 R-ZB-NE+=A=+-H 115,259 11,703 126,962
OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 35. REFHAERIE

At the end of the reporting

period, the Group had

contracted with tenants for the following future minimum
lease receipts under non-cancellable operating leases:

RBERR NEEHETRBUEZ
HEARTHRKREIHELADT

2024 2023

—E_MmE —E-=F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Not later than one year —F K 2,249 2,430
Later than one year and not later EZERF

than five years 2,761 2,356

5,010 4,786
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e A% R R B EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024

=

36.

37.

38.

—EomFES A=+ —HIFFE

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 36. EARKE
2024 2023
—ZE-EF —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FBT FHETT

Capital expenditure: BARXH

Contracted but not provided for EEOBERELEE 1,453 2,136

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 37. RAEE

The Group does not have any litigations or claims of
material importance and, so far as the Directors are aware,
no litigation or claims of material importance are pending or
threatened by or against any companies of the Group.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group participates in both a defined contribution
scheme (the “"ORSO Scheme”) which is registered under
the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (Chapter
426 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) established under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485
of the Laws of Hong Kong) in December 2000. The assets
of the schemes are held separately from those of the Group
in funds under the control of trustees. Employees who were
members of the ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment of
the MPF Scheme were offered a choice of staying within the
ORSO Scheme or switching to the MPF Scheme, whereas all
new employees joining the Group on or after 1 December
2000 are required to join the MPF Scheme.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes
5.0% of relevant payroll costs to the Scheme, which
contribution is matched by the employee.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions from
both employees and the Group at rates ranging from 5.0%
to 7.5% of the employee’s basic salary, depending on the
length of service with the Group.
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38.

39.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES (Continued)

Employees who are employed by subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of the state-managed pension scheme operated
by the Chinese government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute 16% to 20% of payroll costs to the pension
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the pension scheme is to make the
required contributions under the scheme.

The total cost (continuing operations) charged to
the consolidated income statement of approximately
HK$25,900,000 (2023: approximately HK$26,721,000)
represents contributions payable to these schemes by the
Group in respect of the current accounting period. As at 31
December 2024, contributions of approximately HK$77,000
(2023: approximately HK$358,000) due in respect of the
reporting period had not been paid over to the schemes.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, assets with the following
carrying amounts were pledged by the Group to secure
general banking facilities:

38.

39.

REMBBRERME (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-pmEf+ - H=1+—HItFZE

RIKBEREE (F)

TREFTEZHBRAANEES AP E
BREEEBEZBRREN A BEETEze
B EWMBEARIENETER AN
16% £20% M AEEFTEHAAE
Bt ATEEE 2 —RE TR E

REHFHER-

B TRGEANRZIRARN ZAER(F
BB FET) A #)25,900,00008 7T (=
T =4 :426,721,000/ 1) £
FAE B R A2 5T H e W iE L2
MEF- R T -—_NF+=_A=+—
B 477,000 0 (=& -=%:4)
358,000/ 7o) M 3R A TR 4= BARE B B
BB ARME LT E R

EERA

RBEBMR NEEDK T NUAER
BFENEEFER UWBGEHETA
SEz—RB|ITEER:

2024 2023
—E-MEF —T-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET

Ownership interest in leasehold land ERARELHEETHN
and buildings held for own use Fir A R - 133,092
Land use rights TR AR - 4,279
Plant and machinery R Fo 28 1,342 1,526
Bank deposits |ITF R 21,812 10,591
23,154 149,488
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REPBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 40. HEMBLQF
(a) Disposal of PCB Trading Business in 2024 (@) R=-ZF-_M&E HEDREBERE
VEL |

On 10 July 2024, Major Success Company Limited, RZZE-_MELATH - BEER
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, RAaal (RAREE2EWNBAR
entered into a sale and purchase agreement to dispose AV —HEEHZ URER
of 5,200 ordinary shares of the Target Company 8 % #%)52,993,0008 c H&E B 12
(representing 52% of the total number of its issued A A HY5,2000% i@ AR (45 A B 8
shares) at a cash consideration of approximately TR BERNS2%) - FRBEEHRN
HK$52,993,000. Details were set out in the Circular HENRERIRE HEK 2B IK
and Announcement in relation to the Disposal of PCB ErE - BEREESEREEAHZ
Trading Business. Net assets of the Target Group at the BEFEWNOT

date of disposal were as follows:

2024
—E_NF
HK$°000
FET
Net assets disposed of: EHECEEFH:
Property, plant and equipment M- WERZE 11,625
Right-of-use assets EREEE 223
Goodwill [ 3,896
Inventories FE 13,078
Trade and other receivables B 5 & EH A WA 97,873
Cash and bank balances Re RIRTTHEH 37,076
Trade and other payables ZH5REMEMNFKIEA (66,044)
Lease liabilities HEAE (232)
Current tax payable AKERFEH IR IR (1,894)
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIBAE (2,081)
93,520
Release of translation reserve upon disposal HERTERRERD 1,803
Non-controlling interest FEPE MR A (44,890)
Gain on disposal of the Target Group HEBEEE 2 Hm 2,560
Total consideration BmRE 52,993
An analysis of net inflow of cash and bank balances in B E B IZ&E B 2R & MRTT
respect of disposal of the Target Group is as follows: #5&8R ASFEDTAT
Cash consideration received EWRESRE 52,993
Cash and bank balances disposed of BHEZRe RIRTTARK (37,076)
Net proceeds from disposal of the Target Group HEBREEMTZRBFR 15,917
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40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(b) Disposal of PCB Processing Business in 2023

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-pmEf+ - H=1+—HItFZE

40. LEMBLAT (&)
(b) R=B==% HEEDRIKBARM

T
On 16 October 2023, the Group agreed to sell the RZZEZ=F+A+"B &
entire share capital of GB HK and the entire equity BEDRUREISITRLYA
interest in GB Shenzhen to Purchaser | and Purchaser R #137,000,0007 (K # 8 158
Il respectively, at the respective consideration of HK$1 FAEIDAHEEREBENZ P
and approximately RMB137,000,000, subject to the BRARRNAENZ2HRETE
Price Adjustment. On 27 May 2024, Purchaser Il has FIRBERFN-R-_ZT_MFEHA
settled the Final Instalment in full, and all transactions Zt+tH BFIEZHEIMNER
under the Disposals have been completed in accordance FUARHEEEETAERS
with the MOU, the Sale and Purchase Agreement I, the ERERBESE BEEHE
Sale and Purchase Agreement Il and the Confirmation. EEMHEIRERETEK F1ED
Details were set out in the Circular and Announcements AN HEERZBRINTER 2
in relation to the Disposal of PCB Processing Business. BHEZERE - HENBERA
Net assets of GB Subsidiaries at the date of disposal RNEEBBZEEFBENOT
were as follows:
2023
B4
HK$°000
FET
Net assets disposed of: EHECEEFH:
Property, plant and equipment g 32,689
Right-of-use assets TRAEEE 13,938
Deferred tax assets EERIAEE 572
Inventories FE 37,028
Trade and other receivables g 5 & H b e 518 162,036
Cash and bank balances Re RIBITES 62,172
Trade and other payables B 5 & E AR RIE (74,368)
Lease liabilities HEBE (17,605)
216,462
Release of translation reserve upon disposal HERCERREERD 8,568
Non-controlling interest FE 12 AR A 2 (35,009)
Expenses related to the disposal HEEIEZ HERX 1,213
Loss on disposal of GB Subsidiaries HEHFEWB AR ZEIE (46,151)
Total consideration wR(E 145,083
Consideration: RAE:
Cash received B UIE & 76,940
Consideration receivable (included in FERREFIE (EBER
other receivables) Efh U RIEA) 68,143
145,083
An analysis of net inflow of cash and bank balances BRELEFEMBARZRE R
in respect of disposal of GB Subsidiaries is as follows: $R{T4E M AFE AT :
Cash received B2 U8 & 76,940
Expenses related to the disposal H & =18 2 MR (1,213)
Cash and bank balances disposed of ERECR S RRTER (62,172)
Net proceeds from disposal of GB Subsidiaries HEHEMNBRFIE2
RIEFER 13,555
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e A% R R B EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Bz

41.

F_HEFEF_A=1+—HIFE

ACQUISITION OF NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS OF AN INDIRECT WHOLLY-OWNED
SUBSIDIARY

On 20 September 2024, Digital Top Limited, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
sale and purchase agreement to acquire 30% of the equity
interest in Mega Victor Limited for a total consideration of
approximately RMB2,562,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,887,000). Subsequent to the acquisition, Mega Victor
Limited became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

The carrying amount of net assets of Mega Victor Limited
and its wholly-owned subsidiary, namely 522X [7 %8 £} £ 7
B BR A 7] (Dongguan Cosmos Plastic Products Co., Ltd.*), in
the Group's consolidated financial statements on the date of
the acquisition was approximately HK$13,974,000.

M WE—REEZENBARN

FERES
RZZE-_WNMFLAZ+H AFE
BARI(ARAREEZENB AR
s

ZHEEHE NEREHARE
2,562,0007T (& 1 42,887,000/8
n)ﬂ&&%f@ﬁ_ﬁﬁﬁ A HI30% R%#E - Uk
BE - BERERAAKAALA —M
ME2EWNB R A

)

EBEERAALREZENEBEAR R
ARBHERERAR RKEAR
HEAEEZAVMBRERTITNFEE
BRTEI{E A& #4713,974,00078 7T °

HK$°000

FET

Carrying amount of non-controlling interests acquired HﬁZE%?H I s AR (A 4,192

Total consideration (2,887)
An increase in equity attributable to owners RABHEA ANEIG RGN

of the Company 1,305

* For identification purposes only
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-pmEf+ - H=1+—HItFZE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Financial instruments by categories

BHEBREERERIAZR
FEE

(a) ZBERB S Z2EWMTA
RENCEEBBREED) F

42.

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 9, the accounting policies

for financial instruments have been applied to the line

O ERMT ASHBERCDEAR

items below: THIER :
Financial Financial
assets at assets
amortised cost at FVTPL Total
RE% LATEENE
RAGTEMN BHEHFTA
SREE BRNeREE “m
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$000
FET FET FET
Assets as per consolidated REEHBRRTZEE
financial statements
31 December 2024 —EME+ZA=T—H
Finance lease receivables FEYRERERE 86,006 - 86,006
Trade and other receivables B REMEKFE 535,755 - 535,755
Deposit paid for purchase of property, ~ BEWE -BMERREZ
plant and equipment [REPEE 19,996 - 19,996
Bank time deposits with maturity over ~ E/HIH A=A A L —F UK
three months but within one year MR E BT R 6,456 - 6,456
Pledged bank deposits EER 2 RITER 21,812 - 21,812
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBeEE 490,762 - 490,762
1,160,787 - 1,160,787
Financial Financial
assets at assets
amortised cost at FVTPL Total
WEE NATEESE
AR EH) BEEHHA
SHEE BamepBE ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Assets as per consolidated REEHBRRTIZEE
financial statements
31 December 2023 —E-=F+ZRA=+—H
Other financial assets HEtepiE - 5,630 5,630
Finance lease receivables FERRmERERE 98,427 = 98,427
Trade and other receivables ECPER e 620,548 = 620,548
Bank time deposits with maturity over ~ EJHIRA=FA E—F LR
three months but within one year MIRITE BN 6,664 = 6,664
Pledged bank deposits BHEBZRITER 10,591 = 10,591
Cash and cash equivalents BelReEE 643,213 = 643,213
1,379,443 5,630 1,385,073
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REPBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Financial instruments by categories (Continued)

42.

MHEAREEREMIAZA
FEE(E)

(a) ZBERBHZEMTIA (&)

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
g £ IR
FEZSRAE
HK$000
FET
Liabilities as per consolidated financial statements RiZEHBHREDZEE

31 December 2024 —E-WE+=ZA=+—8H
Trade and other payables B 5 R H M ENFIE 622,708
Bank borrowings RIATE N 115,259
Lease liabilities HE&AE 11,703
749,670

31 December 2023 —E-=F+-A=+—H
Trade and other payables B 5 K E A JE S 5RIB 681,902
Bank borrowings RITHER 234,598
Lease liabilities HEBE 8,923
925,423

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk,
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk arising in the normal course of its business and
financial instruments. The Group's risk management
objectives and policies mainly focus on minimising
the potential adverse effects of these risks on the
Group's financial performance by closely monitoring the
individual exposure as summarised below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

42.

REMB®RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE—F-—mF+=—A=+—HIFE

BHEREERERIAZR
FEE&E)

(b) MBEAREZE (&)

Foreign currency risk (i) NEREE
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange AEEAZELABHBEE
risk arising from various currency exposures, WINER GRS EEZERAR
primarily with respect to Renminbi, Hong Kong BT EXLRAT-ZF
Dollars, United States Dollars and Japanese Yen. R BTy A AW B A F LK B
Such exposures arise from sales or purchases RAIZNEEBE NN B
by subsidiaries other than the subsidiaries’ ETEEMES WEBRK
functional currencies. This currency exposure DEZFRRENEREE
is managed primarily through sourcing raw HEZRMEBER S0 &
materials denominated in the same currency. In FERRZEERBERRE
addition, certain recognised assets and liabilities WIENIEFEROIDEEK
are denominated in currencies other than the EIRER
functional currencies of the entities to which they
relate.
Certain assets and liabilities of the Group are rEEBCETEEREBGE
principally denominated in US$. HK$ is pegged ZUAETTEHE B T E R T
to US$, and thus foreign exchange exposure is A it SN E R B AT AR E &
considered as minimal. fik o
At the end of each reporting period, the carrying TE T8 omE AR RNE B LA
amounts of the monetary assets and liabilities B OEEEEEETEEND
of the Group, which are denominated in foreign EEEB)HENEEEEEMN
currencies, that is not the functional currency of BEMREENT
respective group entities are as follows:
Liabilities Assets
& BE
2024 2023 2024 2023
—BCNE —T-o=-F ZB-NE —T-=F
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET
Renminbi AR 70,818 13,574 51,907 20,797
Japanese Yen H - - 4,686 3,456
70,818 13,574 56,593 24,253

The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currency. The
management will monitor its foreign currency
exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

LR 8 B AL S DA NS
AREMNEERAGEHEINE
HARR - BEEE/T ISR
HANER B - W% B ZEE
i EASMNERR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REPBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND . BEEREEREMIAZD
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FEE(Z)
(Continued)

(b) MERBERE (&)
(i) Foreign currency risk (Continued) (i) SMERE (&)
BRI AT

TRHINAEEH BT A
RENKBEAEXREZESY

(b) Financial risk factors (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's sensitivity
to a 5% increase and decrease in HK$ against
Renminbi and Japanese Yen. 5% is the sensitivity B SR E 5% 2 AT{E A 9 8
rate used which represents management’s REX REXEBEEHIH
assessment of the reasonably possible change in EEXSERREHHNMG-
foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis BREMESTEBFEREEI
includes only outstanding foreign currency HNESTEMNERBIER  WIR
denominated monetary items and adjusts their B B R5% B HNEE B
translation at the end of the reporting period for a FEEBREBE-

5% change in foreign currency rates.

2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=F
Increase/ (Increase)/
(decrease) in decrease in
post-tax profit post-tax loss
MEER & &8
i GRd)  (Em) R
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
If HK$ strengthens against RMB ~ E B TR AREFE%
by 5% 790 (302)
If HK$ weakens against RMB ABTRARBEES%
by 5% (790) 302
If HK$ strengthens against JPY AB TR BEEAE%
by 5% (196) (144)
If HK$ weakens against JPY AB TR AERES%
by 5% 196 144

Management considered the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange
risk as the exposure at the end of each reporting
period does not reflect the exposure during the
years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign exchange
rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to each of the Group
entities’ exposure to currency risk for financial
instruments in existence at that date, and that all
other variables, in particular interest rates, remain
constant.

The stated changes represent management'’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in
foreign exchange rates over the period until the
next annual reporting date. In this respect, it is
assumed that the pegged rate between the HK$
and the US$ would be materially unaffected by
any changes in movement in value of the US$
against other currencies. Results of the analysis as
presented in above represent an aggregation of
the effects on each of the Group entities’ profit
after tax and equity measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into HK$ at the
exchange rate ruling at the end of the reporting
period for presentation purposes. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2023.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to finance lease receivables, pledged
deposits, fixed-rate borrowings and lease liabilities.

The Group has not used any financial instruments
to hedge its exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk.

At 31 December 2024, if interest rates on variable-
rate borrowings had been 50 basis points higher/
lower with all other variables held constant, the
profit after tax would have been approximately
HK$320,000 (2023: approximately HK$777,000)
lower/higher as a result of higher/lower interest
expenses on floating rate borrowings.

42.

=

REUBRRME ()
For the year ended 31 December 2024
ZEZWFEf A=+ —HIUFE

BHERAREEREMTIAZA
FEE(E)

(b) MBEAREZE (&)

(i)

(ii)

—F=

57/‘/5/_[ 3 ( )

FRMES M DERBRRINE
EXSBLENREMREL

VTERZBERREREFRE
ZAGBEEEEBAXERT
HuPEXRRAR - [ REHA
8 (LERME)GRHTE-

ot B B R K B IR B AT ik S
EEXEBHZET —ERAF®R
EHERRMzaBEEE U
BEBTRETL I HBHEREX
WAEAETREMEE 2 1F
MEMEERTLE Ltz
SMBERDAEEZ B
BRI ar kiEsmXTE
(REMBzNEEEHE
WAREMRZ EXERR
}%ﬁf’E%@JZﬁﬁ)Z%@gﬁc’:
E=FNUNRA-—EHEED
¢ﬁ°

FAEmB

7 o 5 T G 5 R A R O B K
HEAER BEANRER
FEEREEENAABE
5 L o

AEEYEFERAEMNESERT
AR BRIR SR EN KRR -

RZE_WE+_—_B=+—
B R ZEF R E R F R
iﬂ/Tl&sol%%ﬁ mE b
I%Wéﬁ """" Bl BB R 2B F

1%¥melJ§§EHjim7JD//JEY
/J\-ﬁ&mﬂﬂ R il
%%@320,000?&7‘1(:%:5
£ #9777,00087T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REPBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and
had been applied to the exposure to interest rate
risk for financial instruments in existence at that
date. The above changes in interest rates represent
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible
change in interest rates over the period until
the next annual reporting date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2023.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities at
FVTOCI price risk in its financial assets. As the
Group's policy is only to invest on such investments
by its surplus funds, the exposure may not have
significant impact on the Group’s financial position.
The Group is not exposed to commodity price risk.

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation
to its trade and other receivables, finance lease
receivable and cash and bank balances. The
carrying amounts of trade and other receivables,
finance lease receivable and cash and bank
balances represent the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

The Group expects that there is no significant
credit risk associated with cash and bank balances
since they are substantially deposited at state-
owned banks and other medium or large-sized
listed banks. Management does not expect that
there will be any significant losses from non-
performance by these counterparties.

242 cosmos MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED X kit %4 R A 5

42.

MHEAREEREMIAZA
FEE(E)

(b) MBEABREZE (&)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

FIEmBE (E)

A EBRE DT RRRN |
EHIRBANEES WO
ZEHEAREARESRT
HEFEEZMERERMETE
NEZMEBBRREERE
HAEEET-BERFHRES
EEHEANABEBEENKE
B —_T_—FHBEINIE
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EmE
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éZ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ZE%@
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-pmEf+ - H=1+—HItFZE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND . BEEREERERMIAZD
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FEE(Z)
(Continued)

(b) BMIEEBEE (&)
(iv) sE=mE (&)

(b) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv) Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has large number of customers and
there was no concentration of credit risk. The
Group has monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group reviews the recoverability
of these receivables at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The Group considers the probability of default
upon initial recognition of asset and whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk on an
ongoing basis throughout each reporting period.
To assess whether there is a significant increase
in credit risk, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the asset as at the reporting
date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forward looking information. Especially
the following indicators are incorporated:

. internal credit rating;
e  external credit rating;

e actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
change to the customer’s ability to meet its
obligations;

e  actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the debtor/customer;

e significant changes in the expected
performance and behaviour of the customer,
including changes in the payment status of
customer in the Group and changes in the
operating results of the customer.

AEBAREREF LEEF
MEERR NEEFAEE
T2 7 DA B R BR B 2 45 78 1
(el 80 83 & 75 o itk S - 1 (B R
FHR AEERTZFRK
FRIBH) AT U 31 - DARE AR 3L T
TH&Z@ BIEHEERER

-

REE B E NV I8 R
EERENBE bESERS
HEHEFGEER AxEE":W
mEEM EFHEER
ﬁaﬁ%i‘ﬂﬂﬂv$ﬁl%$&i
Eﬁ%ﬁé{?%’fiiiﬁiﬁi%ﬂﬁ’*
AR B B A R P T HL B
RAEtEEARASERNSE
MAIRER -ATHERTE
LS

o ABEMEEFL:
o HNEMEERFA:

- EEEHEFETAL
AR EARB Y
BB AR
BREMEATHED

s BBA/BRPELEEN
ERNFBHEREE):

s EFFEHRRETAN
EXREH BEAKERN
P H N SR NE E R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REPBHRRME (F)
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 42.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iv) Credit risk (Continued)
(a) Trade receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach
to provide for ECLs prescribed by HKFRS 9,
which permits the use of the lifetime expected
loss provision for all trade receivables.

The loss allowance for trade receivables was
determined as follows. The ECLs below also
incorporated forward looking information.

Current 7K 60 HA

0 to 3 months TE={AA

4 to 6 months =75 1E A

7 to 9 months = NEA
10 to 12 months +E=+=@A
1 to 2 years —E_F

2 to 3 years —E=F
Over 3 years iR =1F

MHEAREEREMIAZA
FEE(E)

(b) MBEABREZE (&)
(iv) EEmE (&)
(a) BHEWFIA

A& B R R8T A
AHRRE (BEVB®RE
R F5 AR E # T H
EEBE ZENAFFR
RBZEHTERMBEBESE
WREBEFERNIESE
B

Z 5B K & B &
BEEWT TXWES
FEEBRITESAENL

B o
2024
—E-mE
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance

EHERE REAE EBREE
%  HKS$'000  HK$'000

FET FET

1.7% 340,054 (5,778)
3.1% 94,944 (2,943)
6.4% 28,684 (1,823)
17.2% 12,973 (2,231)
38.2% 3,941 (1,507)
31.9% 5,298 (1,691)
85.8% 2,165 (1,858)
100.0% 12,434 (12,434)

500,493 (30,265)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REUBRRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-_F+ - H=1+—HIFE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iv) Credit risk (Continued)

(a) Trade receivables (Continued)

Current K18 AR

0 to 3 months T ={AA

4 to 6 months =75 1E A

7 to 9 months +tZ=NEA
10 to 12 months +E=E+ @A
1 to 2 years —E=F

2 to 3 years ZE=F
Over 3 years Bim=F

02 BEAREEREBMIAZA
FEE(E)

(b) MBEREZE (&)
(iv) EEmE (&)

(a) BEHSREWHIE (&)
2023

=4

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount  allowance
TEHIEERX RERLE BERE
% HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
2.0% 321,176 (6,504)
1.7% 99,127 (1,677)
4.3% 33,565 (1,441)
9.1% 7,804 (711)
25.2% 3,081 (775)
31.0% 8,439 (2,614)
80.9% 3,121 (2,526)
99.8% 62,974 (62,827)

539,287 (79,075)

(b) Finance lease receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach
to provide for ECLs prescribed by HKFRS 9,
which permits the use of the lifetime expected
loss provision for all finance lease receivables.

e B B IR

AEEEABLNT A
FHRRE (BAEVH®RE
R FIRMEMEY
EEEE ZE AR
R 735 R B I IR
EHERANFERNE
HiB R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REPBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(b) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv) Credit risk (Continued)

(b)

Finance lease receivables (Continued)

The loss allowance for finance lease
receivables was determined as follows. The
ECLs below also incorporated forward looking
information.

42.

MHREAREEREMIAZA
FEE(E)

(b) MBEREZE (&)
(iv) EEmEE (&)

(b)

R EHERIE (&)

EUBREEERENE
BREBEEW N TXH
EHEEBRAME S A
EIEE R

Not overdue Overdue Total
KB i a5t
2024 —E-mE
Expected loss rate FEHIEE X 0.3% 58.2%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) REBE(FET) 77,067 21,918 98,985
Loss allowance (HK$'000) EEEE(FET) (231)  (12,748)  (12,979)
Not overdue Overdue Total
AR palzl BEr
2023 —E=F
Expected loss rate EHIBE X 0.3% 30.1%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) REAE(FET) 74,468 34,591 109,059
Loss allowance (HK$'000) BERE (FET) (223) (10,409) (10,632)
Other receivables (c) EfMhpEWFEIA

The Group assessed the ECL for other
receivables individually. The expected loss rate
was determined by reference to past default
experience and have been adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors that affecting the
ability of settlement. For other receivables,
the management makes periodic individual
assessment on the recoverability of other
receivables based on historical settlement
records, past experience, and also quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportive forward-looking information.
The management believes that there are no
significant increase in credit risk of these
amounts since initial recognition and the
Group provided impairment based on 12m
ECL. For the years ended 31 December 2024,
the Group recognised reversal of impairment
of approximately HK$5,795,000 (2023:
impairment of approximately HK$7,052,000)
in the consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-pmEf+ - H=1+—HItFZE

BHERAREEREMTIAZA
FEE(E)

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

42.

(b) MBEAREZE (&)

(b) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(v) Liquidity risk (v) ZEELRERE
Individual operating entities within the Group AEEBETENEEPHNE
are responsible for their own cash management, B-EREBEHEERE B8
including the short term investment of cash FHEeASNEHRKRENSE
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover BERNENBEHTNR S
expected cash demands, subject to approval by EROEMERBERE TEE
the parent company’s board when the borrowings FEEKF ABAKHRAIES
exceed certain predetermined levels of authority. SHEFTUEZ - NEBR K
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its RETHEERBESFT R
liquidity requirements and its compliance with NEBBETEERS g
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains REBEHNBERAEE
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed B 75 H R USRS A0 e
lines of funding from major financial institutions Ao HUENEAFHNERRE
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and HrRaEeF K.
longer term.
The table below categorised the Group’s financial TERBEREARESH T
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based BAZH THE B4AEE 2
on the remaining period from the end of the cRBEIRAE AR D
reporting period to the contractual maturity HeP|RhmaBmE I AER 2
date. The tabulated amounts are the contractual GHIFERIRB @M ERIE -
undiscounted cash flow payments of the Group.
Less than Between Between
1year 1and2years 2and5 years Total
DIE 122f 2E5% @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FAET FET
At 31 December 2024 R-E-ME+=-A=+—H
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERN A 622,708 - - 622,708
Lease liabilities HEARE 5,275 4,275 3,379 12,929
Bank borrowings RITIEN 115,483 445 4,563 120,491
743,466 4,720 7,942 756,128
At 31 December 2023 RZZ-Z=F+-A=+—H
Trade and other payables Z 5 REMERNRIE 681,902 - - 681,902
Lease liabilities HEER 4,632 2,855 2,247 9,734
Bank borrowings SRITIER 248,103 = = 248,103
934,637 2,855 2,247 939,739
—ZE-MEEIK Annual Report 2024 247



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REPBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 42 BHEEAKBREEREMIAZD
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS TEE(Z)
(Continued)
(c) Fair value measurement (c) AEEEFE
(i) Financial assets measured at FVTPL (i) AFEEFTEAEZE]A
B2t EE

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the carrying value
of the Group's financial instruments measured at
fair value at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair
value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified is
determined with reference to the observability and
significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

—  Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date.

—  Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not
available.

—  Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBHRMEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-pmEf+ - H=1+—HItFZE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 4. BREREEREMIAZA
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS TEE (&)
(Continued)
(c) Fair value measurement (Continued) () AFEEFEE)
(i) Financial assets measured at FVTPL (Continued) NFEETEAREZEA
BEZEHEE (F)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) NEEBEEE (&)

Fair value measurement as at

31 December 2024 categorised into

R-ZE-_MNFE+=-A=+—H

DAFEEFEEUATLE
Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
DFEE E—ER EZEIR BZEBNX
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Other financial assets EthemEE
— Unlisted unit trust funds —EEMEMNETES - - - -
Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2023 categorised into
RZEZ=F+ZA=+—H
NFBENAEENTHIE
Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
NFEE F—ERX E_ERX EZENX
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Other financial assets EthemEE
— Unlisted unit trust funds —EEMEMNETES 5,630 - 5,630 =

The fair values of unlisted unit trust funds,
principal guaranteed and non-guaranteed
investment funds in Level 2 are based on net
assets value of the investment funds at the end
of the reporting period provided by the financial

institution.

FLETEMEREES FAR
ERAREESZ A FEE
EE_BAREREREH
AERTREBRHRER
TWEEFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REPBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 2. BREREEREMIAZA
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FEE (&)
(Continued)
(c) Fair value measurement (Continued) (c) AFEEFEE)
(i) Financial assets measured at FVTPL (Continued) (i) RFEETELREETA
B Z2t@MEE (&)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) N EEEE (£)
The fair value of unlisted equity investment in FEMERKREZATEMA
Level 2 is based on fair value of initial subscription Eéﬁ TEARARERKEHRE
cost adjusted by market movements for the EWEMRZAERBARED
corresponding period from the date of subscription rh HBEHAE 2 VIHEREK
up to the end of the reporting period. RZANFEE

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and
2023, there were no transfers between Level 1
and Level 2, or transfer into or out of Level 3. The
Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

(ii) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are

BE_Z_NMFER_ZFT_-=
F+-_A=+—RHULEFERN
F—EXEE-_EBR2EI
EERENERIE =-EBRNK
ﬁ% ErE -8 AT EE
REEZMRBEERR K&
B =i BIBUR A WS B R

(i) UFRFEETEHZHE
EREEHALFEE

RIE-_WNER T -=F
+—A=+—H XxEEHE

not materially different from their fair values as at LI =S NGRSl N
31 December 2024 and 2023. HEHAEQAFEBHETESEX

55l e

(d) Capital risk management d) ExRBEE?
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to TEENESETEBREERRE

safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the total
debts ratio. This ratio is calculated as total borrowings
divided by total capital. Total borrowings include
current liabilities and non-current liabilities. Total capital
includes total borrowings and total equity as shown in
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REUBRRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-_F+ - H=1+—HIFE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(d) Capital risk management (Continued)

The total debts ratios at 31 December 2024 and 2023
are as follows:

FEE(E)

(d) ESERER (&)

IBEREEREMIAEZA

R-_E-_NFR T -_=F+_A4
—t+—HZz#EAELRA:

2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHEIT

Current liabilities mEBE 825,004 997,964
Non-current liabilities EREBEE 36,670 35,252
Total borrowings BN 861,674 1,033,216
Total equity Emias 1,310,517 1,428,864
Total capital N L 2,172,191 2,462,080
Total debts ratio BEELE 40% 42%

Certain entities of the Group are subject to loan
covenants. There is no material non-compliance with
those loan covenants.

AEEETERBBUERRE-
MELRERERBBEZEFETR

EREM
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REPBHRRME (F)
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

43. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH

RELATED PARTIES

During the year, the Group had significant transactions with
the following related parties, together with balances with
them as at the end of the reporting period, details of which
are as follows:

HETEFRERE
k] AN
BRESW (Mita)

Company controlled by certain
Directors and their relatives:
Management fee paid (note a)

Remuneration of key management
personnel of the Group (note ¢):

Salaries and other short-term
employee benefits

(Htatc) :

Further details of Directors’ and the chief executives’
emoluments are included in note 10 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Notes:

(@) The prices of the transactions were determined by the
Directors with reference to prices for similar transactions with
unrelated third parties.

(b) Key management personnel of the Group whose profiles are
included in the section of “Directors and Senior Management’s
Biographies” of this annual report.

(c) Save as disclosed above, no other transaction, arrangement or
contract that is significant to which the Company was a party
and in which a Director had a material interest was entered
into or subsisted at any time during the year or at the end of
the year.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other significant
transactions with related parties during the year or any
significant balances with them at the end of the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-pmEf+ - H=1+—HItFZE

44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as

follows:

Name of subsidiary

WEAREH

Cosmos Grand Plastics Co., Ltd.

AREARBHZEERAFY

Cosmos Machinery Limited

RABRERDA

Cosmos Machinery International Limited

AABHERERA

Cosmos Machinery (Dongguan) Trading
Co., Ltd.@
REEH (RZ)HEFRDA

Cosmos Machinery Technology (Jiangsu)
Co., Ltd.”
ARBHHE (1%)BRAR

Cosmos Machinery (Wuxi) Trading Co., Ltd.”/

RA#R (EH) HEERRFY

Dekuma Rubber and Plastic Technology
(Dongguan) Limited®
ERERERR (RR)ERAFY

Dongguan Cosmos Plastic Products Co., Ltd.*?

REARZHERERAT

Donghua Machinery Ltd.”’
REBWBRAFY

Grand Technology Products Limited
REREERERAR

Guangzhou Melco Industrial Supplies Co., Ltd.*

ENTESIEZMBRARC
Huixin Leasing (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.*?
EEHEME ORIDERRAY

Jackson Equities Incorporated

Mega Victor Limited

Place of

incorporation/ Place of

registration

R/ LA

The PRC
i

Hong Kong
Hong Kong

The PRC
i

The PRC
i

The PRC
i

The PRC
il

The PRC
i

The PRC
EP

Hong Kong

The PRC
i

The PRC
G

British Virgin
Islands

ABRAHE

Hong Kong

operation

mEwH

The PRC
7

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

The PRC
i

The PRC
k!

The PRC
i
The PRC

E

The PRC
7

The PRC
i

Hong Kong

The PRC

Gl

The PRC

i

British Virgin
Islands

ABRAHE

Hong Kong

Issued and
fully paid
share capital

ERTRAERE

HK$56,000,000
56,000,0007% 7T

HK$10,000,000
10,000,000/ 7

HK$32,000,000
32,000,000% 7T

HK$5,000,000
5,000,0007% 7T

US$25,000,000
25,000,000% 7T

HK$5,000,000
5,000,000/ 7T
RMB25,725,353

25,725,353 AR %

RMB10,000,000
10,000,000A B %

RMB146,199,955
146,199,955 \ B ¥

HK$9,500,000
9,500,000% 70
US$400,000
400,0003 1T
RMB170,000,000
170,000,000\ R #
Us$2

2K

HK$10,000,000
10,000,000/ 7T

44,

Percentage of equity

attributable to the
Company

ARAEERERD L
2024 2023
—E-ME -—T-o=&
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
85.00 85.00
100.00 70.00
75.56 75.56
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 70.00

TEMBRAAFE
TEWBAAFENT

Principal activities

TEEH

Processing of plastic products
AEEENT

Investment holding
RERR

Investment holding
REZR

Trading of machinery

BIRES

Manufacturing and trading
of machinery

BREERES

Trading of machinery

BRES

Manufacturing and
trading of machinery

BREERES

Manufacturing of
plastic products
AEYRRE

Manufacturing and trading
of machinery

BREERE S

Investment holding
REZR

Trading of industrial
consumables

IXHERRESD

Machinery leasing

EREE

Investment holding
RERR

Investment holding

REZR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REPBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 44. TEMB R RFE (£)
(Continued)
Place of Issued and  Percentage of equity
incorporation/ Place of fully paid attributable to the
Name of subsidiary registration  operation share capital Company Principal activities
HEADER R/ RS SEHE BRiRazRs FOABEBRESE  ymay
2024 2023

—B-ME -—T-=F

Karmay Industrial Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$55,000,000 100.00 100.00  Investment holding and
REEEERAA 5 3 55,000,000/ 7 trading of plastic products
BREERRIEERES
Karmay Plastic Products (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd.*® The PRC The PRC HK$16,800,000 100.00 100.00  Processing of plastic products
REZHER (K8 ERRAY HE HE 16,800,000/ 70 EEHAMT
KFE Hong Kong Co., Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$ 1,500,000 0.00 52.00  Trading of printed circuit
BER_ENRBBERAR EE BE 1,500,000/ 7T boards
RSB RE S
Melco Industrial Supplies Company Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1,500,000 100.00 100.00  Trading of industrial
ERIEEVAERRAA 0 EE 1,500,000 7 consumables
T£ERRES
Melco Industrial Supplies (Shanghai) Co., Ltd*®  The PRC The PRC US$600,000 100.00 100.00  Trading of industrial
ERIESEM (L8)BRARA HE HE 600,000 T consumables
T$ERRE
Welltec Machinery Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100.00 100.00  Trading of machinery
ZEABWERRA 3 B 10,000,000/ 7T KHE S
Wuxi Grand Machinery Sales And Service The PRC The PRC US$2,850,000 100.00 100.00  Investment holding
Co., Ltd® HE HE 2,850,000% T REER
BERERREERBERARY
Wuxi Grand Tech Machinery Group Ltd.? The PRC The PRC US$9,586,000 100.00 100.00  Manufacturing and trading
ELBRRENEEERARY il HE 9,586,000% 7T of machinery
BH2ERES
*  For identification purposes only * o EHEER
Notes: Kt it
(@) The companies are registered in the form of wholly-owned (a) ARERAMAIEBELE-
foreign investment enterprises.
(b) The companies are registered in the form of sino-foreign (b) RAEEREMARIINEGERE-
cooperative enterprises.
(c)  Refer to note 41 for acquisition of non-controlling interests of (0 #H2EWIAMNEBEKRE -—HERZE2E
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary. M AR M I R s o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

The above table lists out the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affect
the results of the Group for the year or form a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group at the end of the
year. To give details of other subsidiaries would, result in
particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt capital at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Company’s subsidiary that has material non-controlling
interest (“NCI”) is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents the amounts before intra-
group eliminations.

NCI percentage FEREFA DL
Current assets MEEE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Current liabilities MEARE
Non-current liabilities FEMEBE

Equity g

Carrying amount of NCI FERERREE
Revenue A

Loss for the year REEFHE

Total comprehensive expense PHE XM EBEH

Loss allocated to NCI

Cash generated from operating activities REFHELEZERS
Cash used in investing activities BRELBHEACRS

Cash (used in)/generated from
financing activities

NEREEFREBRES ZEE

REMBBRERME (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-pmEf+ - H=1+—HItFZE

44, T EMB AT FEE (£Z)

AEARRBIMBRARDEREERAE
HAFERERERMREINFRIG
AREBFEEEZERLPIMHRK A
HifiB AR FEEsIHRREIRK

A R S AN 6 2 A fa] B ) 9 - A5 AR B B
DA BEITEAER A -

ARBEAGFERE S ([FEEREE])
MEB AR EERBELT AT
MBEMBEOREEABEHEINES
B o

Donghua Machinery Ltd.

MEEH(EA) / EEZRS

RERWERA A

2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
24.44% 24.44%
296,403 270,750
117,875 126,311
(161,511) (144,643)
(12,264) (7,010)
240,503 245,408
58,779 59,978
286,890 242,074
(2,470) (17,776)
(4,905) (43,615)
(1,199) (10,660)
21,249 6,725
(5,611) (22,704)
(17,809) 11,436
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REPBHRRME (F)
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—E-mFE+ A=+ —HIFFE

45. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

The following amendments to standards and revised
interpretation, which may be applicable to the Group, have
been issued and are effective after 2024. The Group has not
elected to early adopt these pronouncements in 2024. These
pronouncements are not expected to have a material impact
on the results or the financial position of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 21

(BBGER) 215 2&3]

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7

(BBMBREEL) FoR K
(BATBREEN) B7R 2B

Annual improvements to HKFRS Accounting
Standards - Volume 11

(BEMBREEN) et EAFE
YUE — 1R

HKFRS 18

(BETBRSE

Rz A

) 185

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these developments is expected to be in
the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that
the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact
on the consolidated financial statements.

46 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been adjusted to conform
to the disclosure requirement in respect of the discontinued
operation set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements. In addition, the comparative figures in the
consolidated income statement have been restated as if the
operation discontinued during the current year had been
discontinued at the beginning of the prior year.
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFERE

e W R

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t-HL#%EE

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
—T-%F ZF--§ CZE-Zf CZZZ=H IZE_NE
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
FET FET FEL FET FHET
Continuing operations SECEEE
Revenue WA 2432,021  3,075305 2,339,898 1,723,747 1,865,354
Profit before tax BRRAES (B8) 35,423 113,119 33,071 35,636 27,137
Taxation WA (9,545) (28,914) (14,234) (13,938) (16,074)
Profit for the year EERF/ (BB) 25,878 84,205 18,837 21,698 11,063
Profit/(loss) for the year from RECRIFEEER
discontinued operation ZEF/ (BE) - - - (81,213) 7,690
Non-controlling interests FERER (6,300) 5,527 5,577 15,714 (10,857)
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity A2 BIBHER B A
shareholders of the Company EiEET/ (BE) 19,578 89,732 24,414 (43,801) 7,896
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL GREMBMRRE
POSITION
At 31 December
R+t=A=+-H
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
—E-FF ZE--% ZE--F ZE-=%F CZE-_QNE
HK$'000 HKS$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Total assets BEBE 2,834,678 2,967,885 2,625,450 2,462,080 2,172,191
Total liabilities BEHE (1,334,695)  (1,327,361)  (1,087,054)  (1,033,216)  (861,674)
Total equity BmBE 1,499,983 1,640,524 1,538,396 1,428,864 1,310,517
Non-controlling interests FERER 231,357 229,715 216,274 157,142 68,880
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GLOSSARY

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise specifies, the following expressions have the following meanings:

RAFEHRAN BRXESEREN

“Articles”
[ KEIRZ4HE]) |

“Audit Committee”
[BEZZEw]
“Board”

=3

"CG Code”
[ KEEERSFAD |

“China”, “Mainland China”

or "PRC”
[ E A | gk [

"CMEL Code”
[ CREIRZESFAD

“Codo”

"Committee of
Executive Directors”

[RTEFZRESE]

“Companies Ordinance”

[ KR BEHD

“Company”

RAVNCIN

“Cosmos Holdings”

[ Rz R

"

"Director(s)

(&%)

THFAZEBIATEE:

the articles of association of the Company

ARz CEHBEERADAD

the audit committee of the Company
AATIBEZEZES®

the board of Directors of the Company
KAREEG

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules

(EMRADMERCIPE 2B EERTED

the People’s Republic of China, for the purpose of this annual report, excluding
Hong Kong, the Macao Special Administrative Region and Taiwan

FEARKNE RATHRME  FREES RPISATHERAE

the Code for Securities Transactions by Directors and Relevant Employees of
Cosmos Machinery Enterprises Limited, revised from time to time thereafter

(RKAEREXERRAAEZTNEBREETESR S TRID(BERTEEET)

Codo Development Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability, which is a substantial Shareholder (as defined under the Listing
Rules)

SEERBERAR —HEREBAMACINERAG  AEERF(EER (L
mREAD )

the committee of executive Directors of the Company
RARIPITEREZE®

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(RBMERGIN(EBEDIE622%)

Cosmos Machinery Enterprises Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability and the Shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 118)

ARAEMERBRAR —HREBBIMEAZNEGR DA HRO B E
£ (B HSE:118)

Cosmos Machinery (Holdings) Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability, which is a controlling Shareholder (as defined under the
Listing Rules)

REEW (ZER)BERAR] —HAREBTMKINERAE RERRKE (F
ER(EWHRAD )

director(s) of the Company

RRREE
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"Group”
[A&E

"HK$"
Biogd

“Hong Kong”
(&%

“Hung Cheong”

[Hung Cheong ]

“Listing Rules”
[ CEMmHRAD |
“Model Code”
[ CGEZESPAL ]

“Nomination Committee”

[RREEE]

“Remuneration Committee”

EES =R

“RMB”
AR

“Saniwell”
[ Saniwell |

“SFO"
[ (EH=MAEERDD

“Share(s)”
[R5 ]
"Shareholder(s)”
[A% 3]

“Stock Exchange”
[ Bt 32 Py J

GLOSSARY (CONTINUED)
AR (&)

the Company and its subsidiaries

EN/NCIDSES )N

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
B BEEEENR

Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
B E B R RITT R

Hung Cheong Realty Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cosmos
Holdings

Hung Cheong Realty Limited - —fRIA EERZHESTMA IO ER AR - /X
Rz 2 &M B AR

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited
(BABARSMAERRARES EMHRD

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set
out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules
(ETHRADMECIAH (T HITAESETIFRXHNFRESTE)

the nomination committee of the Company

ARFHEHREBR®

the remuneration committee of the Company

ARRFMEES

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

AR -HBEDETEH

Saniwell Holding Inc., a company incorporated in the Cook Islands with limited
liability

Saniwell Holding Inc. - —fRER A SEMK LB R A F

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(BHLEBAEGRIN(EBEPEST1E)

ordinary share(s) of the Company
KATZEBRK

holder(s) of the Share(s)
SR E=DN

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERBMERGMARRDA
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GLOSSARY (CONTINUED)
AR (&)

“Tai Shing”
[Tai Shing |
“US"” or “United States”

=N

"Us$”
E

"YEN"
[BE]

" % "

[% |

Tai Shing Agencies Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
with limited liability, which is a substantial Shareholder (as defined under the
Listing Rules)

Tai Shing Agencies Limited " —fAIR R B R L ST MK ER AR BREE
BRE(EER CETHRAD) )

the United States of America
ENEBEBEH

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States
EL ERZEEEE

Japanese Yen, the lawful currency of Japan

HE - BRZEEER

per cent.

Bk

260 cosmos MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED X EI#if & %4 R A 5



L4 4
& & oo 4 \‘\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\
&F &P PP \\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\

\ 4L AT A A AV A AV AV AV A DI YIIIIIIIIIIIIIII
" s I W W DD IYEEEEEELLLLlldlddddd
- - et B PP Y YIIYEEesildddd
\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\x
\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\

PP iss
PIV I LLdd -

rrs

N\

AN

NAANANANNNND
AN LAV ANV VAN

AW

NN

\\\

ARANNY

AN
ALY




	封面
	目錄
	公司資料
	主要業務架構
	主席報告
	管理層論述及分析
	董事及高級管理人員簡歷
	董事會報告書
	企業管治報告
	環境、社會及管治報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合收益表
	綜合全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	五年財務摘要
	詞彙
	封底



